
 
 

PACIFIC GROVE UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT  
BOARD OF EDUCATION 

REGULAR MEETING: THURSDAY, SEPTEMBER 1, 2022 
 

     
            
 
 

 
  
 DATE:  September 1, 2022 
 
 TIME:  5:30 p.m. Closed Session  
   6:30 p.m. Open Session 
 
           LOCATION: IN PERSON 
   Pacific Grove Unified School District Office 
   435 Hillcrest Avenue 
   Pacific Grove, CA 93950 

 
VIRTUAL ZOOM MEETING  
Join Zoom Meeting 
https://pgusd.zoom.us/j/89444875907?pwd=d3c0T0ZJRDRxWG12eEZ0bXVndjN5QT09 
Meeting ID: 894 4487 5907  
Passcode: 772167  
One tap mobile +13017158592,,89444875907#,,,,*772167# US (Washington DC) 
+13092053325,,89444875907#,,,,*772167#  
US Dial by your location +1 301 715 8592 US (Washington DC) +1 309 205 3325 US +1 
312 626 6799 US (Chicago) +1 346 248 7799 US (Houston) +1 386 347 5053 US +1 564 
217 2000 US +1 646 931 3860 US +1 669 444 9171 US +1 669 900 6833 US (San Jose) 
+1 719 359 4580 US +1 929 205 6099 US (New York) +1 253 215 8782 US (Tacoma) 
Meeting ID: 894 4487 5907 Passcode: 772167  
Find your local number: https://pgusd.zoom.us/u/kegEh8oVfq 
 
Additional Teleconferencing Location 
 
This meeting is also being conducted by teleconference at the following locations:  
White Tesla vehicle in District Office parking lot at 435 Hillcrest Ave, Pacific Grove, Ca 
93950. 
 
Each teleconference location is open to the public and any member of the public has an 
opportunity to address the School Board from a teleconference location in the same 
manner as if that person attended the regular meeting location. The School Board will 
control the conduct of the meeting and determine the appropriate order and time 
limitations on public comments from teleconference locations. 

 
 
The Board of Education welcomes you to its meetings, which are regularly scheduled for the first and third Thursdays of the month. Regular 
Board Meetings shall be adjourned by 10:00 pm, unless extended to a specific time determined by a majority of the Board.  This meeting may 
be extended no more than once and may be adjourned to a later date. Individuals who require special accommodation, including but not limited 
to an American Sign Language interpreter, accessible seating or documentation in accessible formats, should contact the Superintendent at 
least two days before the meeting date. 
 

Any writings or documents that are public records and are provided to a majority of the Governing Board regarding an open session item on 
this agenda will be made available for public inspection in the District Office located at 435 Hillcrest Avenue, Pacific Grove during normal 
business hours. 

 
 
 

Mission Statement 
Pacific Grove Unified School District, in partnership with the community and with a focus on equity, will challenge every student by providing a quality 
instructional program in a positive, safe and stimulating environment.  The District will meet the diverse needs of all students by ensuring exceptional 
learning opportunities to acquire and apply the knowledge and skills that develop the insight and character necessary for a productive and rewarding 
life. 
 

Trustees 
Cristy Dawson, President 

Dr. Frank Rivera III, Clerk 
John Paff 

Brian Swanson 
Carolyn Swanson 

Rey Avila, Student Representative 

https://pgusd.zoom.us/j/89444875907?pwd=d3c0T0ZJRDRxWG12eEZ0bXVndjN5QT09
tel:+13017158592,,89444875907#,,,,*772167#
tel:+13092053325,,89444875907#,,,,*772167#
https://pgusd.zoom.us/u/kegEh8oVfq


 
 

PACIFIC GROVE UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT  
BOARD OF EDUCATION 

REGULAR MEETING: THURSDAY, SEPTEMBER 1, 2022 
 

AGENDA AND ORDER OF BUSINESS 
 
I. OPENING BUSINESS 

 
A. Call to Order 

 
B. Roll Call 

 
C. Adoption of Agenda 
 
• Board Questions/Comments: 
• Public Comment: 
• Move: _____________        Second: _____________        Roll Call Vote: _______ 

Trustees: Dawson  ___      Rivera  ___      Paff ___      B. Swanson  ___      C. Swanson ___ 
 

II. CLOSED SESSION 
 

A. Identify Closed Session Topics  
The Board of Education will meet in Closed Session to consider matters appropriate for Closed 
Session in accordance with Education and Government Code. 

 
1. Conference with Legal Counsel Regarding Anticipated Litigation. 

  
Significant exposure to litigation pursuant to subdivision (d)(2) and/or (3) of Government 
Code section 54956.9:  There is one potential case based on a letter received by our legal 
counsel dated August 27, 2022, regarding the status of CTE teachers. 

 
B. Public comment on Closed Session Topics 
 
C. Adjourn to Closed Session  
 

III. RECONVENE IN OPEN SESSION  
 
A. Report action taken in Closed Session: 

 
1. Conference with Legal Counsel Regarding Anticipated Litigation. 

  
Significant exposure to litigation pursuant to subdivision (d)(2) and/or (3) of Government 
Code section 54956.9:  There is one potential case based on a letter received by our legal 
counsel dated August 27, 2022, regarding the status of CTE teachers. 

 
B. Pledge of Allegiance

 
IV. COMMUNICATIONS 

 
A. Written Communication 
 
B. Board Member Comments 
 
C. Superintendent Report 
 
D.  PGUSD Staff Comments (Non-Agenda Items) 



 
 

PACIFIC GROVE UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT  
BOARD OF EDUCATION 

REGULAR MEETING: THURSDAY, SEPTEMBER 1, 2022 
 

V. INDIVIDUALS DESIRING TO ADDRESS THE BOARD 
 

Public comment on any item of interest to the public that is within the Board’s jurisdiction will be heard.  The Board will also 
take public comment on each specific action item prior to Board action on each item.  The Board will allow a reasonable amount 
of time for public comment on each agenda item not to exceed 3 minutes per speaker and no more than 20 minutes per agenda 
item, pursuant to Board Policy 9323.  Speakers will be called sequentially until there is no speaker coming forward on the 
agenda item or the amount of time allocated for the agenda item has elapsed, whichever comes first.  This meeting of the Board 
of Education is a business meeting of the Board, conducted in public. Please note that the Brown Act limits the Board’s ability to 
respond to public comment. The Board may choose to direct items to the Administration for action or place an item on a future 
agenda. 

 
VI. CONSENT AGENDA   
 

Items listed under the Consent Agenda are considered to be routine and/or may have been discussed at a previous Board 
meeting.  There is no discussion of these items prior to the Board vote unless a member of the Board requests specific 
items be discussed and/or removed from the Consent Agenda. Each item on the Consent Agenda approved by the Board of 
Trustees shall be deemed to have been considered in full and adopted as recommended. 
 
A.  Minutes of August 18, 2022 Board Meeting                       7 
 Recommendation: (Ralph Gómez Porras, Superintendent) Approval of minutes as presented.  
 
B.  Minutes of August 23, 2022 Special Board Meeting                     16 
 Recommendation: (Ralph Gómez Porras, Superintendent) Approval of minutes as presented.  
 
C. Certificated Assignment Order #2                   18 
 Recommendation: (Billie Mankey, Director II of Human Resources) The District Administration 

recommends the Board review and approve the Certificated Assignment Order #2. 
   
D. Classified Assignment Order #2                        20 
 Recommendation: (Billie Mankey, Director II of Human Resources) The District Administration 

recommends the Board review and approve the Classified Assignment Order #2. 
 
E. Acceptance of Donations                          22 
 Recommendation: (Song Chin-Bendib, Assistant Superintendent for Business Services) The 

Administration recommends that the Board approve acceptance of donations referenced below. 
 
F. Out of County or Overnight Activities                    25 
 Recommendation: (Song Chin-Bendib, Assistant Superintendent for Business Services) The 

Administration recommends that the Board approve or receive the request as presented. 
 
G. Acceptance of Quarterly Treasurer’s Report                   33 
 Recommendation: (Song Chin-Bendib, Assistant Superintendent for Business Services) The 

Administration recommends that the Board accept the Quarterly Treasurer’s Report for the 
 quarter ending June 30, 2022. 
 
H. Cash Receipts Report No.#2                          51 
 Recommendation: (Song Chin-Bendib, Assistant Superintendent for Business Services) As Assistant 

Superintendent for Business Services, I have reviewed the receipt and deposit of the identified Cash 
Receipts for consistency with District policies and procedures and certify that the actions have been 
appropriately conducted. I recommend Board approval of the Cash Receipts. 

 
I. Otto Construction Wood Rot Repair at Monterey Bay Charter School          53 

Recommendation: (Jon Anderson, Director of Facilities and Transportation) The District 
Administration recommends the Board review and approve the Otto Construction change order for 
wood rot repair at Monterey Bay Charter School. 



 
 

PACIFIC GROVE UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT  
BOARD OF EDUCATION 

REGULAR MEETING: THURSDAY, SEPTEMBER 1, 2022 
 

J. Contract for Services with Pacific West Water Purification, Inc.             64 
Recommendation: (Sean Keller, Robert Down Elementary School Principal) The District 
Administration recommends the Board review and approve the contract for services with Pacific West 
Water Purification, Inc. for Robert H. Down (RHD) Elementary School. 
 

K. Contract for Services with MaryLee Sunseri at Pacific Grove Adult School        70 
Recommendation: (Barbara Martinez, Pacific Grove Adult School Principal) The District 
Administration recommends the Board ratify and approve the contract for services with MaryLee 
Sunseri to provide Parent Enrichment classes at Pacific Grove Adult School during the 2022 Summer 
Session. 
 

L. Pacific Grove High Sschool Equipment and Furniture Disposal             76 
Recommendation: (Lito M. Garcia, Pacific Grove High School Principal) The District Administration 
recommends the Board review and approve the disposal of inoperable and broken furniture from 
Pacific Grove High School (PGHS). 
 

M.  Consolidated Application for Federal Funding, Part 1 79 
Recommendation: (Buck Roggeman, Director of Curriculum and Special Projects) The District 
Administration recommends the Board approve the 2022-23 Consolidated Application for Funding, 
Part 1 as presented. 

 
N.  Contract Services with Open Parachute Social Emotional Curriculum 88 

Recommendation: (Sean Roach, Pacific Grove Middle School Principal) The District Administration 
recommends the Board review and approve the contract for services with Open Parachute Social 
Emotional Curriculum and Pacific Grove Middle School (PGMS). 
 
• Board Comments/Questions: 
• Public Comment: 
• Move: _____________        Second: _____________        Roll Call Vote: _______ 

Trustees: Dawson  ___      Rivera  ___      Paff ___      B. Swanson  ___      C. Swanson ___ 
 
VII. PUBLIC HEARING I/ACTION/DISCUSSION ITEM A  

 
Public Hearing of Resolution No. 1092 Regarding Sufficiency of Instructional Materials for Fiscal Year 
2022-23                               109 
Recommendation: (Buck Roggeman, Director of Curriculum and Special Projects) The District 
Administration recommends that the Board hold a public hearing of the Resolution No. #1092 Regarding 
Sufficiency of Instructional Materials for fiscal year 2022-2023. 

 
Open Public Hearing _____________________  Close Public Hearing _________________ 

                       
• Board Comments/Questions: 
• Public Comment: 
• Move: _____________        Second: _____________        Roll Call Vote: _______ 

Trustees: Dawson  ___      Rivera  ___      Paff ___      B. Swanson  ___      C. Swanson ___ 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

PACIFIC GROVE UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT  
BOARD OF EDUCATION 

REGULAR MEETING: THURSDAY, SEPTEMBER 1, 2022 
 

VIII. ACTION/DISCUSSION 
 

B.  District Update on Response to COVID-19 114 
Recommendation: (Ralph Gómez Porras, Superintendent) The District Administration will update  
the Board, staff and community on current District response and protocols to COVID-19.  
 
• Board Comments/Questions: 
• Public Comment: 
• Move: _____________        Second: _____________        Roll Call Vote: _______ 

Trustees: Dawson  ___      Rivera  ___      Paff ___      B. Swanson  ___      C. Swanson ___ 
 

C. Resolution No. 1093 Commemorating the 75th Anniversary of Monterey Peninsula Community    
College District                     115 
Recommendation: (Ralph Gómez Porras, Superintendent) The Administration recommends the Board 
adopt Resolution No. 1093 commemorating the 75th anniversary of Monterey Peninsula Community 
College District.  
 
• Board Comments/Questions: 
• Public Comment: 
• Move: _____________        Second: _____________        Roll Call Vote: _______ 

Trustees: Dawson  ___      Rivera  ___      Paff ___      B. Swanson  ___      C. Swanson ___ 
 

D.  Plan for Arts, Music, and Instructional Materials Discretionary Block Grant 118 
Recommendation: (Song Chin-Bendib, Assistant Superintendent) The Administration recommends 
that the Board review and approve the attached plan for expenditure of funds for the Arts, Music, and 
Instructional Materials Discretionary Block Grant. 
 
• Board Comments/Questions: 
• Public Comment: 
• Move: _____________        Second: _____________        Roll Call Vote: _______ 

Trustees: Dawson  ___      Rivera  ___      Paff ___      B. Swanson  ___      C. Swanson ___ 
 

E. Contract with Frontline Education for The Implementation of Time & Attendance Module  122 
Recommendation: (Song Chin-Bendib, Assistant Superintendent for Business Services) The District 
Administration recommends the Board review and approve the contract with Frontline Education for 
the implementation of Time & Attendance module. 
 
• Board Comments/Questions: 
• Public Comment: 
• Move: _____________        Second: _____________        Roll Call Vote: _______ 

Trustees: Dawson  ___      Rivera  ___      Paff ___      B. Swanson  ___      C. Swanson ___ 
 

F.  Agreement with Monterey County Office of Education Transportation Department 128 
Recommendation: (Lito M. Garcia, Pacific Grove High School Principal) The District Administration 
recommends the Board review and ratify the agreement with Monterey County Office of Education 
(MCOE) Transportation Department and Pacific Grove High School (PGHS). 
 
• Board Comments/Questions: 
• Public Comment: 
• Move: _____________        Second: _____________        Roll Call Vote: _______ 

Trustees: Dawson  ___      Rivera  ___      Paff ___      B. Swanson  ___      C. Swanson ___ 
 



 
 

PACIFIC GROVE UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT  
BOARD OF EDUCATION 

REGULAR MEETING: THURSDAY, SEPTEMBER 1, 2022 
 

G. Board Calendar/Future Meetings    131 
Recommendation: (Ralph Gómez Porras, Superintendent) The Administration recommends  
that the Board review and possibly modify meeting dates on the attached calendar and determine,  
given information from the Administration, whether additional Board dates or modifications need 
to be established.  
 
• Board Comments/Questions: 
• Public Comment: 
• Move: _____________        Second: _____________        Roll Call Vote: _______ 

Trustees: Dawson  ___      Rivera  ___      Paff ___      B. Swanson  ___      C. Swanson ___ 
 
IX.  INFORMATION/DISCUSSION 

 
A. Safety Update 134  

Recommendation: (Barbara Martinez, Safety Director) The District Administration recommends the 
Board be informed and provide feedback on updates related to District safety. 
 

• Board Questions/Comments: 
• Public Comment: 
• Direction: ______________________________________________________________ 

 
B. Presentation of Pacific Grove Middle School’s Social Emotional Learning Goals/Targets   135  

Recommendation: (Sean Roach, Pacific Grove Middle School Principal) The District Administration 
recommends the Board participate in learning about the Social Emotional SMARTIE goals that will 
be utilized as a guide for the use of the Pacific Grove Middle School’s (PGMS) CalHope and 
Chapman Grant money. 
 

• Board Questions/Comments: 
• Public Comment: 
• Direction: _____________________________________________________________ 

 
C. Pacific Grove High School Pool Modifications, Maintenance & Spares       139 

Recommendation: (Jon Anderson, Director of Facilities and Transportation) The District 
Administration recommends the Board review presentation and discuss options for consideration. 
 

• Board Questions/Comments: 
• Public Comment: 
• Direction: _____________________________________________________________ 

 
D. Summer School Review 2022                 140 

Recommendation: (Buck Roggeman, Director Curriculum and Special Projects) The District 
Administration recommends the Board receive the review about Summer School 2022. 
 

• Board Questions/Comments: 
• Public Comment: 
• Direction: _____________________________________________________________ 

 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

PACIFIC GROVE UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT  
BOARD OF EDUCATION 

REGULAR MEETING: THURSDAY, SEPTEMBER 1, 2022 
 

E. Future Agenda Items 143  
Recommendation: (Ralph Gómez Porras, Superintendent) The Administration recommends  
that the Board review the list of future agenda items and direct Administration to add items to  
the list and/or schedule items for a particular agenda. 

 
• Added March 3, 2022: A Board member requested a special meeting to discuss Cultural 

Proficiency professional development (Fall 2022) 
• Added March 3, 2022: Discuss elementary school reconfiguration as it relates to issues of 

equity (Early Fall 2022) 
• Added March 17, 2022: Board Self Evaluation (June 16, 2022) 
• Added April 21, 2022: Discuss “PG Promise” of funding CTE certification process (Fall 

2022) 
• Added May 19, 2022: Teacher of the Year Recognition (Fall 2022) 
• Added June 2, 2022: Discuss CSBA Sample School Safety Resolution 
• Added June 2, 2022: A Board member requested bringing in someone to do a presentation 

regarding low-income housing in Pacific Grove.  
• Added June 16, 2022: Discuss proposal of skatepark in Pacific Grove 

 
• Board Questions/Comments: 
• Public Comment: 
• Direction: ______________________________________________________________ 

 
X.  ADJOURNMENT  
 
Next regular Board meeting: September 15, 2022 



            
 

PACIFIC GROVE UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT BOARD OF EDUCATION 
Minutes of Regular Meeting of August 18, 2022 – District Office/Virtual 

I. OPENED BUSINESS

A. Called to Order  5:31 p.m. 

B. Roll Call President: Trustee Cristy Dawson (CD) 
Clerk: Trustee Frank Rivera (FR) 

Trustee(s) Present: Trustee John Paff (JP) 
  Trustee Brian Swanson (BS) 
Trustee Carolyn Swanson (CS) 

 Trustee(s) Virtual At Alternate Location:  
Trustee(s) Absent: 

 Administration Present: Superintendent Porras 
Asst. Superintendent Chin-Bendib 

Board Recorder: Alyssa Rodriguez 
Student Board Member: Rey Avila 

C. Adopted Agenda

MOTION  __JP__/__FR__  to adopt agenda as presented.
Public comment: None
Motion CARRIED  by roll call vote   5  -  0

II. CLOSED SESSION

A. Identify Closed Session Topics
The Board of Education will meet in Closed Session to consider matters appropriate for Closed
Session in accordance with Education and Government Code.

1. Conference with Legal Counsel Regarding Anticipated Litigation

2. Superintendent Goals/Evaluation 2022-23

B. Public comment on Closed Session Topics:  None

C. Adjourn to Closed Session      Time: 5:33 PM

III. RECONVENE IN OPEN SESSION     Time: 6:37 PM

A. Report action taken in Closed Session:

For all items: Information taken and direction given. No Action taken. 

1. Conference with Legal Counsel Regarding Anticipated Litigation

Mission Statement 
Pacific Grove Unified School District, in partnership with the community and with a focus on equity, will challenge every student by providing a quality 
instructional program in a positive, safe and stimulating environment.  The District will meet the diverse needs of all students by ensuring exceptional 
learning opportunities to acquire and apply the knowledge and skills that develop the insight and character necessary for a productive and rewarding 
life. 

PGUSD Regular Meeting of September 1, 2022 7

CONSENT A



 
2. Superintendent Goals/Evaluation 2022-23 

 
B. Pledge of Allegiance 

 
IV. COMMUNICATIONS 

 
A. Written Communication 

• CD: Public information request; Follow-up letter on masking 
• JP:  Received question regarding Prop 28. 
• CS: Follow-up letters on masking; Accounting request; Contract status question; Article on 

masking in Los Angeles County; Thank you letter for previous meeting; Question related to CTE; 
Concerns of pool update; Woodshop item disposal; Questions regarding bus routes 

 
B. Board Member Comments 

 
• CD: Welcomed and introduced student rep Rey Avila. Enjoyed the beginning of the year events. 

Shared Shuman Hearthouse will be serving families who are experiencing homelessness. 
• FR: Enjoyed attending back to school night; Excited about the upcoming school year. 
• BS: Enjoyed attending back to school night; Liked the idea of looking into beautification of High 

School exterior; Clarified comment made from previous meeting.  
• CS: What does transportation bill mean for PGUSD?; Referenced article opinion on High School 

exterior; Would like there to be extra requirements for vendors of outside programs who use 
PGUSD facilities; Enjoyed attending back to school night; Would like a Spanish program update; 
Would like a update on pool repairs; Welcomed new appointed trustees; Expressed gratitude to 
water polo team on extending an invitation; Expressed gratitude to CSUMB for allowing water 
polo team to use their pool for free.  

 
C. Superintendent Report 

Kudos to entire Pacific Grove Unified staff on a great start to the new school year. Thank you to 
our community partners. Reported a great start to Spanish program. 38 Staff members attended 
the first phase 2 cultural proficiency meeting/training, discussing equity and student success 
regardless of background. Will look into beautification master plan for the high school.  
 

D.  PGUSD Staff Comments (Non Agenda Items) 
• Sean Roach (Pacific Grove Middle School Principal): Mentioned a great start to the school year. 

Provided positive Spanish program update. Shared upcoming events at PGMS. 
• Song Chin-Bendib (Assistant Superintendent): Kudos to maintenance, transportation, custodians, 

grounds, and food service. Enjoyed attending back to school events.  
 

V. INDIVIDUALS DESIRING TO ADDRESS THE BOARD 
• Elliot Hazen: Introduced himself as a newly appointed trustee.  
• Jennifer McNary: Introduced herself as a newly appointed trustee. 
• Sioban McGuire: Shared dedication of water polo parents, coaches, players, despite pool closed 

due to maintenance.  
 

VI. CONSENT AGENDA  
A. Minutes of June 16, 2022 Board Meeting                         
B. Minutes of July 28, 2022 Special Board Meeting                 
C. Certificated Assignment Order #1                  
D. Classified Assignment Order #1               

PGUSD Regular Meeting of September 1, 2022 8

CONSENT A



E. California School Board Association Membership             
F. Acceptance of Donations              
G. Cash Receipts Report No. #1                
H. Warrant Schedule 645           
I.  Warrant Schedule 646      
J.  Out of County or Overnight Activities                
K. Amended Contract with Positive Behavior Supports Corp.       
L.  Contract for Services – eSpark, Inc.   
M. Contract for services with Kaatz Photography                       
N. Contract for services with Beem Videography & Photography   
O. Contract for services with Peninsula Sports, Inc.    
P.  Contract for services with Premier Studios of California            
Q.  Contract for services with Valerie Rhoades at Pacific Grove Middle School        
R.  Contract for services with Ellsworth Gregory                
S.  Contract for services with Apolinario Vivit, DBA, Vivit Musical Instrument Repair at Pacific Grove 

Middle School  
T.  Contract for services with Gary M. Stotz              
U. Contract for Services with Nicholas Gonzales              
V. Contract for Services with Santa Cruz Office of Education for Outdoor Science School         
W. Assistant Superintendent’s Office Surplus 
X.  Obsolete Electronic Equipment Disposal    
Y.  Pacific Grove High School Woodshop Surplus Items   
Z.   Contract for Services with Between Your Ears Entertainment LLC. at Forest Grove and Robert H. 

Down Elementary Schools 
AA. Contract for Services with Kyle Dine at Forest Grove and Robert H. Down Elementary Schools 
 

Consent Items D, J, K, L, M, O, P, Q, U, V, Z, and AA pulled by the Board. 
 
MOTION   JP  /  BS   to adopt Consent Agenda WITHOUT Items D, J, K, L, M, O, P, Q, U, V, Z, and AA 
as presented 
Public comment: None 
Move:     JP Second:       BS Roll Call Vote: 5  -  0   
Trustees: Dawson      Y      Rivera     Y     Paff     Y     B. Swanson     Y     C. Swanson     Y      
 
Consent Item D: Classified Assignment Order #1 
Board Comments/Questions:  

• CS: Requested the board be able to read exit interviews of employees who resigned. 
Public Comment:  

• None 
 

Motion   JP  /   CS  to adopt Consent Item D: 
Move:     JP Second:       CS Roll Call Vote:   5 -  0 
Trustees: Dawson      Y    Rivera     Y     Paff      Y      B. Swanson     Y     C. Swanson     Y     
 
Consent Item J: Out of County or Overnight Activities 
Board Comments/Questions:  

• CS: Expressed issue with the form. Can it be updated? 
• BS: Referenced there appeared to be conflicting information on form. 
• JP: Would like to see the form updated for a smoother workflow.  

Public Comment:  
• None 

PGUSD Regular Meeting of September 1, 2022 9

CONSENT A



 
Motion   JP  /   CS  to adopt Consent Item J: 
Move:     JP Second:       CS Roll Call Vote:   5 -  0 
Trustees: Dawson      Y    Rivera     Y     Paff      Y      B. Swanson     Y     C. Swanson     Y     
 
Consent Item L: Contract for Services – eSpark, Inc. 
Board Comments/Questions:  

• CS: Praised the front cover page for providing information in line with district goals.   
Public Comment:  

• None 
 

Motion   CD  /   CS  to adopt Consent Item L: 
Move:     CD Second:       CS Roll Call Vote:   5 -  0 
Trustees: Dawson      Y    Rivera     Y     Paff      Y      B. Swanson     Y     C. Swanson     Y     
 
Consent Item K: Amended Contract with Positive Behavior Supports Corp.  
Board Comments/Questions:  

• CS: Questioned the requirement of fingerprinting and background checks of independent contractors. 
Public Comment:  

• None 
 

Motion   CD  /   FR  to adopt Consent Item K: 
Move:     CD Second:       FR Roll Call Vote:   5 -  0 
Trustees: Dawson      Y    Rivera     Y     Paff      Y      B. Swanson     Y     C. Swanson     Y     
 
Consent Item M: Contract for services with Kaatz Photography  
Consent Item Q: Contract for services with Valerie Rhoades at Pacific Grove Middle School 
Board Comments/Questions:  

• CS: Questioned the requirement of fingerprinting and background checks of independent contractors. 
• CD: Clarified the photographer is always supervised directly by site staff. 
• BS: Who bears the costs of background checks? 

Public Comment:  
• None 

 
Motion   CD  /   JP  to adopt Consent Items M and Q: 
Move:     CD Second:       JP Roll Call Vote:   4 -  1 
Trustees: Dawson      Y    Rivera     Y     Paff      Y      B. Swanson     Y     C. Swanson   N___        
 
Consent Item O: Contract for services with Peninsula Sports, Inc. 
Board Comments/Questions:  

• CS: Would like to see fingerprinting/background check attached to contract.  
• JP: Suggested modifying the contract to specify whether fingerprinting/background check was completed 

by the organization independently.  
Public Comment:  

• None 
 

Motion   CD  /   FR  to adopt Consent Items O: 
Move:     CD Second:       FR Roll Call Vote:   4 -  1 
Trustees: Dawson      Y    Rivera     Y     Paff      Y      B. Swanson     Y     C. Swanson   N___        
 
 

PGUSD Regular Meeting of September 1, 2022 10

CONSENT A



Consent Item P: Contract for services with Premier Studios of California 
Board Comments/Questions:  

• None 
Public Comment:  

• None 
 

Motion   JP  /   FR  to adopt Consent Items P: 
Move:     JP Second:       FR Roll Call Vote:   4 -  1 
Trustees: Dawson      Y    Rivera     Y     Paff      Y      B. Swanson     Y     C. Swanson   N___        
 
Consent Item U: Contract for Services with Nicholas Gonzales 
Consent Item V: Contract for Services with Santa Cruz Office of Education for Outdoor Science School    
Consent Item Z: Contract for Services with Between Your Ears Entertainment LLC. at Forest Grove and 
Robert H. Down Elementary Schools 
Board Comments/Questions:  

• CS: Expressed concern with completeness of contract, as well as fingerprinting.  
• JP: What is the process we do to onboard vendors? 

Public Comment:  
• Louisa J.: Would like to photographers to be fingerprinted.  
• Cristiana: Who is responsible for supervising contractors? 
• Amy R: If parent are required to be fingerprinted to be on campus, everyone should be.  

 
Motion   CD  /   FR  to adopt Consent Items U, V, and Z: 
Move:     CD Second:       FR Roll Call Vote:   4 -  1 
Trustees: Dawson      Y    Rivera     Y     Paff      Y      B. Swanson     Y     C. Swanson   N___        
 
Consent Item AA: Contract for Services with Kyle Dine at Forest Grove and Robert H. Down Elementary 
Schools 
Board Comments/Questions:  

• CS: Would like to see this assembly or a version of it every year. 
• JP: Sites can bring this item to the board every year should they choose.  

Public Comment:  
• None 

 
Motion   BS  /   JP  to adopt Consent Item AA: 
Move:     BS Second:       JP Roll Call Vote:   5 -  0 
Trustees: Dawson      Y    Rivera     Y     Paff      Y      B. Swanson     Y     C. Swanson     Y     
 
XI. ACTION/DISCUSSION  
 
A.   District Update on Response to COVID-19 
 
Board Comments/Questions: 

•  CD: Kudos to Nurse Powley on continuing to be informative.  
• CS: Requested sending out update on home symptom check.  

Public Comment:  
• Elliot Hazen: How are we making sure students, who are sick at home, do not fall behind in school? 

 
No Action Taken. 
B.   New job description and salary schedule proposal, Robotics Performance Coach and Assistant Robotics     
Performance Coach 

PGUSD Regular Meeting of September 1, 2022 11

CONSENT A



 
Board Comments/Questions:  

• CD: Happy to see this item be voted on. 
• FR: Impressed with robotics team and happy to see this item on the agenda.  
• JP: In favor of item.  
• BS: Requested clarification on fiscal impact. 
• CS: In favor of item. Asked Sally Richmond if the item meets her approval? 

Public Comment:  
• Sally Richmond: Requested “performance” be taken out of the job title. 

 
Motion to approve with the change of removing “performance” from both job description titles.  
Move:     CS Second:       JP Roll Call Vote:  5  -  0 
Trustees: Dawson      Y     Rivera     Y     Paff      Y     B. Swanson     Y     C. Swanson      Y     
 
C. District Office Support Staff – Allocation and Re-allocation of Resources 
 
Board Comments/Questions:  

• FR: In favor of finding a better payroll process. Will this move to general funds? 
• JP: How do we currently process timesheets? In favor of finding a better payroll process.  
• CS: In favor of finding a better payroll process. Would like to see breakdown of the increase in personnel. 

Public Comment:  
• Beth S: Would like the board to take a deeper look into the increase of personnel and the costs 

associated. 
 

Motion to approve as presented. 
Move:     CS Second:       JP Roll Call Vote:    5  -  0 
Trustees: Dawson     Y     Rivera      Y     Paff      Y     B. Swanson     Y     C. Swanson       Y       
 
D. Otter Aquatic Center Pool Facility Use Agreement with California State University Monterey Bay and Pacific 
Grove High School 
 
Board Comments/Questions:  

• CD: Expressed gratitude to CSUMB.  
• FR: Expressed gratitude to CSUMB. 
• BS: Expressed gratitude to CSUMB. 
• CS: Expressed gratitude to CSUMB.  

Public Comment:  
• None 

 
Motion to approve as presented. 
Move:     JP Second:       BS Roll Call Vote:  5  -  0 
Trustees: Dawson     Y     Rivera      Y     Paff      Y     B. Swanson     Y     C. Swanson       Y       
 
E. Ratification of Measure D Change Orders for Wilson’s Plumbing and Grade Break Engineering 
 
Board Comments/Questions:  

• None 
Public Comment:  

• None 
 

PGUSD Regular Meeting of September 1, 2022 12

CONSENT A



Motion to approve as presented. 
Move:     FR Second:       BS Roll Call Vote:   5  -  0 
Trustees: Dawson     Y     Rivera      Y     Paff      Y     B. Swanson     Y     C. Swanson       Y       
 
F. Contract with Linda Shingu, Speech and Language Pathologist (SLP) 
 
Board Comments/Questions:  

• CS: Kudos to thoroughness of contract. 
Public Comment:  

• None 
 
Motion to approve as presented. 
    Roll Call Vote:   5  -  0 
Trustees: Dawson     Y     Rivera      Y     Paff      Y     B. Swanson     Y     C. Swanson       Y       
 
G. Contract with Positive Behavior Supports Corp. to Include a Functional Behavioral Assessment (FBA) 
 
Board Comments/Questions:  

• CS: When do we do a bidding process for contractors? Would like the dollar amount to be included in the 
contract.  

• BS: Is this mandated?   
Public Comment:  

• None 
 
Motion to approve as presented. 
Move:     FR Second:       JP Roll Call Vote:   5  -  0 
Trustees: Dawson     Y     Rivera      Y     Paff      Y     B. Swanson     Y     C. Swanson       Y       
 
H. Contract for Services with Northwest Education Association (NWEA) 
 
Board Comments/Questions:  

• None 
Public Comment:  

• None 
 
Motion to approve as presented. 
Move:     FR Second:       CD Roll Call Vote:   5  -  0 
Trustees: Dawson     Y     Rivera      Y     Paff      Y     B. Swanson     Y     C. Swanson       Y        
 
XII. INFORMATION/DISCUSSION 
 
A. Review of the 2021-22 Actual and 2022-23 Estimated Property Tax Revenues 
 
Board Questions/Comments: 

• None 
Public Comment:  

• None 
Board Direction:  

• None 
 
B. Review of the 2022-2023 Enacted State Budget 

PGUSD Regular Meeting of September 1, 2022 13

CONSENT A



 
Board Questions/Comments: 

• JP: Requested clarification of funds. Requested the definition of discretion regarding the budget. 
Public Comment:  

• None 
Board Direction:  

• None 
 
C. Review of District Enrollment for The First Day of School and Overall Projections for 2022-23 
 
Board Questions/Comments: 

• CD: Do we foresee additional students at this point? Do we know where are the students who were 
previously enrolled with us but are no longer? 

• JP: Referenced to change of enrollment number in kindergarten classes. 
Public Comment:  

• Beth S: Expressed concern regarding enrollment numbers.  
Board Direction:  

• None 
 
D. Update on Measure D Projects, High School swimming pool, and Transportation 
 
Board Questions/Comments: 

• CD: Kudos on presentation. 
• FR: Robert Down looks great. 
• JP: Would like to know the age of all of the schools in PGUSD. Complimented roof repair. Electrical 

questions regarding pool. 
• BS: Kudos on presentation. 
• CS: Mentioned taking a look at fencing at state preschool/special ed preschool. Requested voicemail for 

transportation to be less automated. How long does it take to get the pool heated? 
Public Comment:  

• Sioban McGuire: Requested clarification on whether the pool heater was being replaced. 
Board Direction:  

• None 
 
MOTION BS/ CD to extend the meeting until 10:30 P.M. 
Public comment: None 
Move:     BS Second:       CD Roll Call Vote:   5  -  0 
Trustees: Dawson     Y     Rivera      Y     Paff      Y     B. Swanson     Y     C. Swanson       Y        
 
E. Update on Pacific Grove Unified School District Crossing Guards 
 
Board Questions/Comments: 

• CD: Questioned why the number for crossing guards increased. 
• JP: Questioned the need for seven crossing guards.  
• CS:  Are we still looking to hire crossing guards? Requested crossing guards receive updated training. 

Public Comment:  
• Beth S: The city needs to be included.  

Board Direction:  
• None 

 

PGUSD Regular Meeting of September 1, 2022 14

CONSENT A



Time expired prior to getting to the following item(s). 
 
F. Future Agenda Items 
 

• Added March 3, 2022: A Board member requested a special meeting to discuss Cultural 
Proficiency professional development (Fall 2022) 

• Added March 3, 2022: Discuss elementary school reconfiguration as it relates to issues of equity 
(Early Fall 2022) 

• Added March 17, 2022: Board Self Evaluation (June 16, 2022) 
• Added April 21, 2022: Discuss “PG Promise” of funding CTE certification process 
• Added May 19, 2022: Discuss Teacher of the Year Recognition 
• Added June 2, 2022: Discuss CSBA Sample School Safety Resolution 
• Added June 2, 2022: A Board member requested bringing in someone to do a presentation 

regarding low-income housing in Pacific Grove.  
 

• Added June 16, 2022: Discuss proposal of skatepark in Pacific Grove 
 
XIII.  ADJOURNMENT       Time: 10:33 PM 
 
Next regular Board meeting: September 1, 2022 
 
 
 
Approved and submitted:  

 _________________________________________ 
Dr. Ralph Gómez Porras 
Secretary to the Board 

PGUSD Regular Meeting of September 1, 2022 15

CONSENT A



  
            
 
 

 
PACIFIC GROVE UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT BOARD OF EDUCATION 

Minutes of Special Meeting of August 23, 2022 – District Office/Virtual 
 

I. OPENED BUSINESS    
 

A. Called to Order    5:33 p.m. 
 

B. Roll Call  President: Trustee Cristy Dawson (CD) 
  Clerk: Trustee Frank Rivera (FR) 
  Trustee(s) Present: Trustee John Paff (JP) 
   Trustee Brian Swanson (BS) 
  Trustee(s) Absent: Trustee Carolyn Swanson (CS) 
      Trustee(s) Virtual At Alternate Location:  N/A 
  Administration Present: Superintendent Porras 
   Asst. Superintendent Chin-Bendib 
  Board Recorder: Mandi Ackerman 
  

C. Adopted Agenda 
 

MOTION  FR/CD to adopt agenda as presented. 
Public comment: None 
Motion CARRIED by roll call vote 4 - 0 

 
II. INFORMATION/DISCUSSION 
 

A. California School Board Association Review of Board Bylaws 
 

Board Questions/Comments: 
• CD: Thank you to BS and CS for doing so much work on behalf of the Board to review and 

update policies along with CSBA in the workshop earlier this year. Thank you to Tezeta for 
juggling all the feedback and direction. 

• Bylaw 9012:  
 The Board discussed the bylaw and its application regarding social media use. 

Recommended adopting and review later to revise as needed. Keep 9012. Board agreed. 
• Bylaw 9100: 

 The Board discussed rotational option of Vice President/President. Discussed consecutive 
years in the same position. Board agreed a Board member shall not service more than 2 
consecutive years in the same position. Discussed removing #6 on the bylaw.  

• Bylaw 9250: 
 Board discussed remuneration and health benefits options.  

• Bylaw 9320: 
 Board discussed language from agendas regarding extending meetings, special 

accommodations will be added to the Bylaw.  
• Bylaw 9322: 

 Board discussed adding items to the agenda, requests made in writing, and timeline of 
when items are placed on the agenda.  

Mission Statement 
Pacific Grove Unified School District, in partnership with the community and with a focus on equity, will challenge every student by providing a quality 
instructional program in a positive, safe and stimulating environment.  The District will meet the diverse needs of all students by ensuring exceptional 
learning opportunities to acquire and apply the knowledge and skills that develop the insight and character necessary for a productive and rewarding 
life. 
 

PGUSD Regular Meeting of September 1, 2022 16

CONSENT B



• Bylaw 9323:  
 The Board requested the Bylaw prohibit transfer public speaking time to another speaker.  

 
Public Comment:  

• Jennifer McNary (appointed trustee)- Nomination process. Doing the Board’s business outside of a 
meeting, if the pubic is not a part of that process. Asked why the Board was discussing how to handle the 
alternate Community Human Services Board representatives. 

 
MOTION  FR/CD to extend the meeting until 9:00 p.m. 
Public comment: None 
Motion CARRIED by roll call vote 4 - 0 

 
III. CLOSED SESSION 
 

A. Identify Closed Session Topics  
 

1. Conference with Legal Counsel Regarding Anticipated Litigation 
 

2. Superintendent Goals/Evaluation 2022-23 
 
B. Public comment on Closed Session Topics:  None 
 
C. Adjourn to Closed Session      Time: 8:32 PM 
 

IV. RECONVENE IN OPEN SESSION     Time: 8:50 PM  
 
A. Report action taken in Closed Session: 
 
For all items: Information taken and direction given. No Action taken. 

 
1. Conference with Legal Counsel Regarding Anticipated Litigation 

 
2. Superintendent Goals/Evaluation 2022-23 

 
B. Pledge of Allegiance 

 
X.  ADJOURNMENT       Time: 8:50 PM 
 
Next regular Board meeting: September 1, 2022 
 
 
 
Approved and submitted:  

 _________________________________________ 
Dr. Ralph Gómez Porras 
Secretary to the Board 

PGUSD Regular Meeting of September 1, 2022 17

CONSENT B



☒Student Learning and Achievement 
☒Health and Safety of Students and Schools 
☐Credibility and Communication 
☐Fiscal Solvency, Accountability and Integrity 
 

☒Consent  
☐Action/Discussion 
☐Information/Discussion 
☐Public Hearing 

 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
SUBJECT: Certificated Assignment Order #2 
 
DATE: September 1, 2022 
 
PERSON(S) RESPONSIBLE: Billie Mankey, Director II of Human Resources  
______________________________________________________________________________ 

Page 1 of 2 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
The District Administration recommends the Board review and approve the Certificated 
Assignment Order #2 
 
BACKGROUND:  
 
Under Board Policies #4200 and #4211, the Human Resource Office is directed by the 
Superintendent and the Board of Education to employ the most highly qualified person available 
for each position.  Recruitment and selection procedures include dissemination of vacancy 
announcements to newspapers, trade journals, the internet through the Pacific Grove Unified 
School District website, Monterey County Office of Education website and other recruitment 
websites in California.  The recommendation to hire a selected candidate is made after weighing 
the information obtained by the complete application package, the interview process, and 
confidential reference checks.  No inquiry is made with regard to the age, sex, race, color, 
religion, national origin, disability or sexual orientation.  
 
INFORMATION: 
 
Persons listed in the Certificated Assignment Order are being recommended to the Board of 
Education for employment in the District.  No individual is recommended to the Board of 
Education for employment prior to receipt of the criminal background summary.  
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
 
Funding has been approved and allocated for these items. 
 
 
 
 
 

PGUSD Regular Meeting of September 1, 2022 18

CONSENT C



PACIFIC GROVE UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 CERTIFICATED PERSONNEL ASSIGNMENT ORDER NO. 2 

September 1, 2022 
Page 2 of 2 

 
 
SUBSTITUTE: 
Michael Dremel 
Nathanial Kent Letham 

PGUSD Regular Meeting of September 1, 2022 19

CONSENT C



☒Student Learning and Achievement 
☒Health and Safety of Students and Schools 
☐Credibility and Communication 
☐Fiscal Solvency, Accountability and Integrity 
 

☒Consent  
☐Action/Discussion 
☐Information/Discussion 
☒Public Hearing 

 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
SUBJECT: Classified Assignment Order #2 
 
DATE: September 1, 2022 
 
PERSON(S) RESPONSIBLE: Billie Mankey, Director II, Human Resources  
______________________________________________________________________________ 

Page 1 of 2 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
The District Administration recommends the Board review and approve the Classified 
Assignment Order #2 
 
BACKGROUND:  
 
Under Board Policies #4200 and #4211, the Human Resource Office is directed by the 
Superintendent and the Board of Education to employ the most highly qualified person available 
for each position.  Recruitment and selection procedures include dissemination of vacancy 
announcements to newspapers, trade journals, the internet through the Pacific Grove Unified 
School District website, Monterey County Office of Education website and other recruitment 
websites in California.  The recommendation to hire a selected candidate is made after weighing 
the information obtained by the complete application package, the interview process, and 
confidential reference checks.  No inquiry is made with regard to the age, sex, race, color, 
religion, national origin, disability or sexual orientation.  
 
INFORMATION: 
 
Persons listed in the Classified Assignment Order are being recommended to the Board of 
Education for employment in the District.  No individual is recommended to the Board of 
Education for employment prior to receipt of the criminal background summary.  
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
 
Funding has been approved and allocated for these items. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

PGUSD Regular Meeting of September 1, 2022 20

CONSENT D



PACIFIC GROVE UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 CLASSIFIED PERSONNEL ASSIGNMENT ORDER NO. 2 

September 1, 2022 
Page 2 of 2 

NEW HIRE: 
Evie Harter, Special Education Preschool, Paraprofessional, Part-time, 4.5 hours/day, 180 day 
work calendar, Range 37, Step C, effective August 15, 2022 (replaces Michelle Garcia) 
 
Jessica Smith, PGMS, Special Education Instructional Assistant, Part-time, 6.0 hours/day, 180 
day work calendar, Range 31, Step A, effective August 15, 2022 (replaces Megan Munson) 
 
Brandon Rosa, PGMS Crossing Guard (A.M.), Part time, 1 hour per day, 180 day work calendar, 
Range 27, Step B, effective August 22, 2022 (new position)  
 
PROMOTION/ADDITIONAL HOURS; 
Kimberly Ortiz, from Human Resources Technician, 7.0 hours/day, 190 day work calendar, 
Range F-2, to Human Resources Technician, 3.0 hours/day, Range PT F-2 and promotes to 
Human Resources Specialist, 4.5 hours/day, 10.5 month work calendar, HR F-2, effective 
August 22, 2022 
 
TEMPORARY, ADDITIONAL HOURS: 
Paraprofessional, temporary, additional hours paid per time sheet at the employee’s regular 
hourly rate to perform duties for before/after school student support, based on enrollment and 
effective the 2022-23 school year. 
 
Brandy Deppert, Paraprofessional 
April Gabriel, Paraprofessional 
 
RESIGNATION/STATUS CHANGE: 
Bobette Rood, requests an employment status change from Food Service I to Food Service 
Substitute effective 8/22/2022 
 
Trinidad Maturino, PGAS IT Technician, 4 hrs./day 12 month work calendar, resigns effective 
September 4, 2022 
 
 

PGUSD Regular Meeting of September 1, 2022 21

CONSENT D



☐Student Learning and Achievement 
☐Health and Safety of Students and Schools 
☐Credibility and Communication 
☒Fiscal Solvency, Accountability and Integrity 
 

☒Consent  
☐Action/Discussion 
☐Information/Discussion 
☐Public Hearing 

 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
SUBJECT:  Acceptance of Donations 
 
DATE:  September 1, 2022 
 
PERSON(S) RESPONSIBLE: Song Chin-Bendib, Assistant Superintendent for Business Services 
 
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
  
RECOMMENDATION: 
The Administration recommends that the Board approve acceptance of donations referenced below. 
 
INFORMATION: 
During the past months the following donations were received: 
 
Forest Grove Elementary School 
None 
 
Robert H. Down Elementary School 
None        
 
Pacific Grove Middle School  
None 
      
Pacific Grove High School 
Various Donations-see attached     $635.00 (CTE Program) 
            
      
Pacific Grove Community High School  
None 
 
Pacific Grove Adult School /Lighthouse Preschool &  
Preschool Plus Co-op       
None     
 
Pacific Grove Unified School District 
None 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

PGUSD Regular Meeting of September 1, 2022 22

CONSENT E



PACIFIC GROVE HIGH SCHOOL 2022-23 CTE DONATIONS 
 
8/10/2022-8/23/2022 
 
Program 
 
Art 

PGUSD Regular Meeting of September 1, 2022 23

CONSENT E



2022-2023 PACIFIC GROVE HIGH SCHOOL CTE DONATIONS

8/10/2022-8/23/2022

Program Amount Donor

Art 200.00$ Siobhan Maguire
60.00$   Jason Sutor

100.00$ Erin Deegan
100.00$ Kari Serpa
150.00$ Kilene Brosseau

25.00$   Alison Baguio

TOTAL 635.00$ 

PGUSD Regular Meeting of September 1, 2022 24

CONSENT E



☒Student Learning and Achievement 
☒Health and Safety of Students and Schools 
☐Credibility and Communication 
☐Fiscal Solvency, Accountability and Integrity 
 

☒Consent  
☐Action/Discussion 
☐Information/Discussion 
☐Public Hearing 

 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
SUBJECT: Out of County or Overnight Activities     
 
DATE:  September 1, 2022  
 
PERSON(S) RESPONSIBLE: Song Chin-Bendib, Assistant Superintendent for Business Services 

 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
The Administration recommends that the Board approve or receive the request as presented. 
 
BACKGROUND:   
 
Board Policy 6153 requires prior approval of all school sponsored trips.  Out of County/State or overnight 
trips require Board approval. Other trips may be approved by the Superintendent or designee.   
 
INFORMATION: 
 
The attached list identifies an overnight/Out of County/State trip(s) being proposed by a school site at this 
time.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
 
The request has an identified cost and associated source of funds. The activities expose the District to 
increased liability with a resulting potential for financial impact.  
 
 
 

PGUSD Regular Meeting of September 1, 2022 25

CONSENT F



PACIFIC GROVE UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

2022-23 OUT OF COUNTY OR OVERNIGHT ACTIVITIES 

Date(s) Destination Student/ Class/ Activity Transportation Cost Funding Source 

9/24/2022 Watsonville HS Varsity Volleyball Auto $ 300 Athletics 
Watsonville, CA 

9/10/2022 Watsonville HS JV Volleyball Auto $ 300 Athletics 
Watsonville, CA 

10/15/2022 Rancho San Juan HS Varsity Volleyball Auto $ 300 Athletics 
Salinas, CA 

10/21/2022-10/23/2022 Bellarmine College Prep PGHS Robotics Auto $ - na 
San Jose, CA Robotics Competition 

11/10/2022 NASA (Brockmeyer) Auto $ - na 
Mountain View, CA Field Trip 

11/29/2022 NASA Robert Down 4th Grade (Pechan) Auto $ - na 
Mountain View, CA Field Trip 

Board Meeting 9/1/2022 PGUSD Regular Meeting of September 1, 2022 26

CONSENT F



PACIFIC GROVE UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRlCT 
REQUEST FOR OFF CAMPUS ACTIVITY 

Board Approval is required for all out-of-county, out-of-state, or overnight activities. 
The request must be approved by the Board prior to the event, therefore the request must be submitted AT 
LEAST TWO (2) WEEKS PRIOR TO THE BOARD MEETING PRIOR TO THE EVENT. 
For ALL other activities, submit request two weeks in advance of activity. I understand. 

Date of Activity_0_9_/2_4_/2_0_2_2 Day of Activity_S_a_tu_rd_a_y _ 

L . fA . ity Watsonville High School C' W t .11 ocation o ctivi ity a sonv, e County Sant_a_c_ru_z _ 

School PG High School Class or Club Varsity volleyball Grade Level/s...;;9_·1:.:::2 _ 

School Departure Time 8 

Pickup Time from Place of Activity 6 

Name of Employee Accompanying Students _K~y_le_M_o_u_n_ta_in _ 

Number of Adults 2 Number of Students 15 _ 

AM 

PM 

Description of Activity/Educational Objective 
Varsity volleyball tournament 

List All Stops Watsonville High School 

Means of Transportation: Auto· 
* Board Regulation 3541.1 Requirements will be complied with when using private Autos _cn_1 _ 

(Teacher initials) 

*Names of Auto Drivers (subject to change): Lauralea Gaona, Melissa Gibson, Christian Gibson, Petula Lee, Dana Marshall, Margaret Rice 

1+x•If using District vans, driver names must be listed: _ 

Cost of Activity $_3_o_o_.o_o _ + Cost of Transportation $~o~----- = Total $_3_o_o_.o_o _ 

Fund/s to be charged for all activity expenses ( ) Students ( ) Club ( ) PG Pride ( x) Other Team Account 

Account Code: Wells Fargo bank Athletics Department Fund• 1965169244/405 

Requested by:_Ons_·_M_o_o/-:'.,__ __,/_C_h_ri_s _M_o_rg~a_n Date 0511912022 
Employee Signature ( accompanying student actiuitu) Printed Name 

Administration Approval/Principal_u_·t_o_M_._~_ua_· Date oa,1912022 

4***************************•****•*********************************~********************************** 

Transportation Department/District Office Use 

( ) School Bus ( ) Chart.er 
Cost Estimate$ _ 

( ) Available ( ) Not available Date Received _ 

Approved by Transportation Supervisor: _ 

Approved by Assistant Superintendent: Date _ 

Date. _ 

Date of Board Approval _ 

Does form need board approval 
PGUSD Regular Meeting of September 1, 2022 27

CONSENT F



AliaUt::rlllli rear: ,:.v,:.;:.-,:.,, 

PACIFIC GROVE UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
REQUEST FOR OFF CAMPUS ACTIVTIY 

Board Approval is required for all out-of-county, out-of-state, or overnight activities. 
The request must be approved by the Board prior to the event, therefore the request must be submitted AT 
LEAST TWO (2) WEEKS PRIOR TO THE BOARD MEETING PRIOR TO THE EVENT. 
For ALL other activities, submit request two weeks in advance of activity. I understand. 

Date of Activity_0_9_11_0_12_0_22 Day of Activity_S_a_tu_rd_a_y _ 

Lo t. f A t' ity Watsonville High School c· W .11 ca 10n o c JVJ ity atsonv1 e County Santa Cruz 

School PG High School Class or Club_J_V_v_o_t1e-'-y_ba_11 Grade Leveljs_9_11_0 _ 

School Departure Time _8 _ 

Pickup Time from Place of Activity _6 PM 

AM 

Name of Employee Accompanying Students _K.:....yl_e_M_o_u_nt_a_ln_o_r _A_m_ay'-a_G_a_m_e_c_h_o _ 

Number of Adults 2 Number of Students 15 ---------- 
Description of Activity/Educational Objective 
JV volleyball tournement 

List All Stops Watsonville High School 

Means of Transportation: Auto• 
·~ Board Regulation 3541.1 Requirements will be complied with when using private Autos _rc_rn _ 

(Teacher initials) 

*Names of Auto Drivers (subject to change): Lauralea Gaona, Melissa Gibson, Christian Gibson, Petula Lee, Dana Marshall, Margaret Rice 

"*If using District vans, driver names must be listed: _ 

Cost of Activity $_3_o_o._oo _ + Cost of Transportation $-'o:__ = Total $_3_o_o._oo _ 

Fund/s to be charged for all activity expenses ( ) Students ( ) Club ( ) PG Pride ( x) Other team account 

Account Code: Wells Fargo Bank Athletics Department Fund - 1965169244/405 

Requested by: Lhris 110f'ff1Y' /---'C h __ ris;c.._M---o'""rg"'"a---n Date aa119I2a22 
Employee Signature ( accompanying student actiuitij) Printed Name 

Administration Approval/Plincipal_u_·to_M_._&-dA __ · Date oa,1912022 

* *4 ** ******* ********** ** ** * * ** *** ** ** *** ** ***** ** ** ** * **** * ** ** ** ** * * *** ** * *****•* -lt-it** * ****** *****i<·**ff- 

Transportation Department/District Office Use 

( ) School Bus ( ) Charter 
Cost Estimate$ _ 

( ) Available ( ) Not available Date Received _ 

Approved by Transportation Supervisor: Date _ 

Approved by Assistant Superintendent: Date _ 

Date of Board Approval _ 

Does form need board approval 
PGUSD Regular Meeting of September 1, 2022 28

CONSENT F



PACIFIC GROVE UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
REQUEST FOR OFF CAMPUS ACTIVITY 

Board Approval is required for all out-of-county, out-of-state, or overnight activities. 
The request must be approved by the Board prior to the event, therefore the request must be submitted AT 
LEAST TWO (2) WEEKS PRIOR TO THE BOARD MEETING PRIOR TO THE EVENT. 
For ALL other activities, submit request two weeks in advance of activity. I understand. 

Date of Activity_1_0_11_s_12_0_22 Day of Activity_S_a_tu_rd_a_y _ 

L . fA . . Rancho San Juan High c· S 1. ocation o ctlVlty..;;S""G~ho;<,;o"'"I ity a inas County Mont_e_re.:..y _ 

School PG High School Class or Club Varsity volleyball Grade Level/s...c9_·1=2 __ 

School Departure Time _7 _ 

Pickup Time from Place of Activity _6 PM 

Name of Employee Accompanying Students _K..:..yl_e_M_o_u_nt_ai_n _ 
Number of Adults 2 Number of Students_1_s _ 

AM 

Description of Activity/Educational Objective 
Varsity volleyball tournament 

List All Stops Rancho San Juan High School 

Means of Transportation: Auto" 

* Board Regulation 3541.1 Requirements will be complied with when using private Autos .:.cm-"------- 
(Teacher initials) 

*Names of Auto Drivers (subject to change): Lauralea Gaona, Melissa Gibson, Christian Gibson, Petula Lee, Dana Marshall, Margaret Rice 

0If using District vans, driver names must be listed: _ 

Cost of Activity $._3_o_o._oo + Cost of Transportation$ o, = Total $_3_o_o._o_o _ 

Fund/s to be charged for all activity expenses ( ) Students ( ) Club ( ) PG Pride ( x) Other Team Account 

Account Code: Wells Fargo Bank Athletics Department Fund - 1965169244/405 Girls Volleyball account 

Requested by:_™_._s _M_()~~~---------_,/_C_h_ris_M_o_..rg'"'"a_n Date 0311912022 
Employee Signatu1·e ( accompanying student activity) Printed Name 

AdministrationApproval/Principal_li_·t_o_M_._~_ua_· Date 08/19/2022 

*** ************** **•**i(·*** * •·* * ** ** ****•*** **** **""'** **** * * * ** ** ** **~*****-k'* * * **** *** **** ** ************ 

Transportation Department/District Office Use 

( ) School Bus ( ) Charter 
Cost Estimate $ _ 

( ) Available ( ) Not available Date Received _ 

Approved by Transportation Supervisor: Date _ 

Approved by Assistant Superintendent: Date _ 

Date of Board Approval 

Does form need board approval 
PGUSD Regular Meeting of September 1, 2022 29

CONSENT F



PACIFIC GROVE UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
REQUEST FOR OFF CAMPUS ACTIVITY 

Board Approval is required for all out-of-county, out-of-state, or overnight activities. 
The request must be approved by the Board prior to the event, therefore the request must be submitted AT 
LEAST TWO (2) WEEKS PRIOR TO THE BOARD MEETING PRIOR TO THE EVENT. 
For ALL other activities, submit request two weeks in advance of activity. I understand. 

Date of Activity_1_0_12_1_12_0_22 Day of Activity Friday - Sunday (10/21-23/22) 

L . fA . . Bellarmine College Prep C' S J S I Cl ocation o ct1V1ty__________ ity an_o_s_e County an _a_a_ra _ 

School PG High School Class or Club_R_o_b_ot_ic_s Grade Level/s_9_-1_2 _ 

School Departure Time 6:00 (est.) 

Pickup Time from Place of Activity _9_:o_o PM 

AM 

Name of Employee Accompanying Students Roby Hyde (Friday) and Sally Richmond for Saturday and Sunday 

Number of Adults 5 Number of Students 20 ----------- 
Description of Activity/Educational Objective 
Compete in Chezy Champs robotics competition ("The Best in the West"). 

List All Stops No stops. We will drive back and forth each day. 

Means of Transportation: Auto" 
* Board Regulation 3541.1 Requirements will be complied with when using private Autos _sa_r _ 

(Teache» initials) 

*Names of Auto Drivers (subject to change): Sally Richmond, Roby Hyde, Tom Hall, Mike Schempf, Chris Hubbard 

**If using District vans, driver names must be listed: _ 

Cost of Activity $_0 _ + Cost of Transportation $_,o.__ = Total $_0_.o_o _ 

Fund/s to be charged for all activity expenses ( ) Students ( ) Club ( ) PG Pride ( x) Other n/a _ 

Account Code: No account needed because there is not cost for the event 

Requested by:Sd/,Y A -Ri,Ji.w,o~d /_S_a~lly_A_._R_ic_h_m_o_n_d Date 0511212022 
Employee Signature ( accompanying student activitl)) Printed Na me 

Administration Approval/Principal_u_·t.o_/1_._~_wt_· Date oe,1212022 

*************************************************-tHf*************************************************** 

Transportation Department/District Office Use 

( ) School Bus ( ) Charter 
Cost Estimate $ _ 

( ) Available ( ) Not available Date Received _ 

Approved by Transportation Supervisor: Date _ 

Approved by Assistant Superintendent: .Date _ 

Date of Board Approval _ 

Does form need board approval 
PGUSD Regular Meeting of September 1, 2022 30

CONSENT F



f-\cauerrnc rear; LVLL•L.:J 

PACIFIC GROVE UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
REQUEST FOR OFF CAMPUS ACTIVITY 

Board Approval is required for all out-of-county, out-of-state, or overnight activities. 
The request must be approved by the Board prior to the event, therefore the request must be submitted AT 
LEAST TWO (2) WEEKS PRIOR TO THE BOARD MEETING PRIOR TO THE EVENT. 
For ALL other activities, submit request two weeks in advance of activity. I understand. 

Date of Activity_1_1_11_0_12_0_22 Day of Activity_T_hu_r_sd_a_y _ 

Lo . f A . . NASA c· M t ' v· cation o ct1v1ty_________ ity oun a,n 1ew County Sant_a_C_la_ra _ 

School Robert Down Elementary Class or Club_R_o_om_1_o Grade Level/ s_4 _ 

School Departure Time _7:_o_o _ 

Pickup Time from Place of Activity _11_:o_o AM 

AM 

Name of Employee Accompanying Students _A_ng"-e_le_e_B_r_o_ck_m_e-'-y_er _ 

Number of Adults 6 Number of Students 21 ----------- 
Description of Activity/Educational Objective 
We will be learning about space, technology, and design. 

List All Stops NASA campus, Mountain View CA 

Means of Transportation: Auto* 
* Board Regulation 3541.1 Requirements will be complied with when using private Autos _A._B_. _ 

(Teacher initials) 

HI£ using District vans, driver names must be listed:-=-N=/A:...:._ _ 

Cost of Activity $_0 + Cost of Transportation $~o~----- = Total $_0_.o_o _ 

Fund/ s to be charged for all activity expenses ( ) Students ( ) Club ( ) PG Pride ( x) Other ...:..:N.:..:../ A-=------ 

Account Code: NIA ------------------------------------ 
Requested by: Awjdu Br()dmtytr / Angelee Brockmeyer 

Employee Signatu,.e (accompanying student actioitu) Printed Name 
Date oa11s12022 

Administration Approval/Principal_Seavt __ B_/(_di_lu Date oa11s12022 

****************************************************************************************************** 

Transportation Department/District Office Use 

( ) School Bus ( ) Charter 
Cost Estimate$ _ 

( ) Available ( ) Not available Date Received. _ 

Approved by Transportation Supervisor: Date _ 

Approved by Assistant Superintendent: Date _ 

Date of Board Approval _ 

Does form need board approval PGUSD Regular Meeting of September 1, 2022 31

CONSENT F

*Names of Auto Drivers (subject to change): Socorro Papadakis, Trevor Page, Douglass Phillips, Alex Jenner, Angelee Brockmeyer



1-\cauerrnc rear: LVLL•L.::, 

PACIFIC GROVE UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
REQUEST FOR OFF CAMPUS ACTIVITY 

Board Approval is required for all out-of-county, out-of-state, or overnight activities. 
The request must be approved by the Board prior to the event, therefore the request must be submitted AT 
LEAST TWO (2) WEEKS PRIOR TO THE BOARD MEETING PRIOR TO THE EVENT. 
For ALL other activities, submit request two weeks in advance of activity. I understand. 

Date of Activity_1_1_/2_9_/2_0_2_2 Day of Activity_T_ue_s_d_ay _ 

L . f A . ity NASA AMES Research c· M t . v· ocation o ctivi ..... ¾,...8>1+nl""e,-r rty oun am 1ew County Sant_a_C_la_ra _ 

School Robert Down Elementary Class or Club_M_r_s._P_e_c_ha_n Grade Level/s._4:..,._ _ 

School Departure Time _7:_oo _ 

Pickup Time from Place of Activity _11_:_oo AM 

Name of Employee Accompanying Students _s_te_fa_n_ie_Pe_c_h_a_n _ 
Number of Adults 8 Number of Students._1_9 _ 

AM 

Description of Activity/Educational Objective 
Science-based field trip to NASA AMES Research Center for their science program. 

List All Stops RHD to NASA AMES center and back 

Means of Transportation: Auto* 
·* Board Regulation 3541.1 Requirements will be complied with when using private Autos C-'sp"------ 

(Teacher initials) 

Hlf using District vans, driver names must be listed: _ 

Cost of Activity $_0 + Cost of Transportation$ o. = Total $_0_.o_o _ 

Fund/s to be charged for all activity expenses ( ) Students ( ) Club ( ) PG Pride ( ) Other 

Account Code: _n_la _ 

Requested by:_5_te/i_ll'1_ie.._~_t_rhm _,/_S_te_f_an_ie_P_ec_h_a_n Date 08/12/2022 
Employee Signature (accompanying student actioitu) Printed Name 

Administration Approval/Principa1_Swt __ B_K._di_te.r Date oa11s12022 

****************************************************************************************************** 

Transportation Department/District Office Use 

( ) School Bus ( ) Charter 
Cost Estimate$ _ 

( ) Available ( ) Not available Date Received _ 

Approved by Transportation Supervisor: Date _ 

Approved by Assistant Superintendent: Date. _ 

Date of Board Approval _ 

Does form need board approval PGUSD Regular Meeting of September 1, 2022 32

CONSENT F

*Names of Auto Drivers (subject to change): Sarah Fontecchio, Frank Rivera, Jessica Randall, Abbie Ferrera, Garrett Jones, Sylvia Lee, 
                                                                       Covell Meyskens



☐Student Learning and Achievement 
☐Health and Safety of Students and Schools 
☒Credibility and Communication 
☒Fiscal Solvency, Accountability and Integrity 
 

☒Consent  
☐Action/Discussion 
☐Information/Discussion 
☐Public Hearing 

 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
SUBJECT: Acceptance of Quarterly Treasurer’s Report 
 
DATE: September 1, 2022 
 
PERSON(S) RESPONSIBLE: Song Chin-Bendib, Assistant Superintendent for Business 

Services 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
The Administration recommends that the Board accept the Quarterly Treasurer’s Report for the 
quarter ending June 30, 2022. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
Government Code 53646 requires that a quarterly report be made to the Board to identify the 
investments within which the District’s funds are maintained until needed for expenditures. The 
District pools its revenues with other districts in the County and deposits them with the Monterey 
County Treasurer. The Treasurer in turn invests these funds in the various instruments identified 
in the attached report. 
 
INFORMATION: 
 
As indicated in the attached Treasurer’s Report, the current investment portfolio is “in 
compliance with all applicable provisions of state law and the adopted investment policy, and 
contains sufficient liquidity to meet all projected outflows over the next six months”. The 
portfolio is currently returning an annualized yield of 0.71%. This is compared to .40% last 
quarter. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
 
None. 
 
 
 
 

PGUSD Regular Meeting of September 1, 2022 33

CONSENT G



Monterey County stem No.
Board of Supervisors

Chambers
Board Report 168 W.AIisalSt., lstFloor

Salinas, CA 93901

Legistar File Number: 22-706 July 26, 2022

Introduced: 7/13/2022 Current Status: Agenda Ready

Version: 1 Matter Type: Generaf Agenda Item

a. Receive and Accept the Treasurer’s Report of Investments for the Quarter Ending June 30, 2022;
and
b. Receive and Approve the Treasurer’s Investment Policy for FY 2022-2023; and
c. Renew the Delegation of Investment Authority to the Treasurer-Tax Collector pursuant to California
Government Code 53607.

RECOMMENDATION:
a. Receive and Accept the Treasurer’s Report of Investments for the Quarter Ending June 30, 2022;
and
b. Receive and Approve the Treasurer’s Investment Policy for FY 2022-2023; and
c. Renew the Delegation of Investment Authority to the Treasurer-Tax Collector pursuant to California
Government Code 53607.

SUMMARY:
Government Code Section 53646 (b) (I) states the Treasurer may submit a quarterly report of
investments. The attached exhibits provide a narrative portfolio review of economic and market
conditions that support the investment activity during the April-June period, the investment portfolio
position by investment type, and the investment portfolio by maturity range.

The Treasurer also reviews the Monterey County Investment Policy annually and has recommended
updates for Board approval. Two updates this year consist of the addition of a new section defining
socially responsible investment considerations and a revision of the Gift section to align it with the State
Political Reform Act and the Treasurer’s Conflict of Interest Code. Finally, annual Board delegation
of investment authority to the Treasurer-Tax Collector is being requested as prescribed by
Government Code sections 53607 and 53646.

DISCUSSION:
The U.S. economy during this period was characterized by the following factors: high inflation, a strong
labor market, depressed consumer confidence, and growing potential for an economic recession.

The Federal Reserve continues to tighten monetary policy through aggressive interest rate increases to
battle persistent inflation. Short-term federal funds rates are projected to reach 3.25% to 3.75% by
year end. The Federal Reserve also began its balance sheet reduction this quarter and plans to double
the pace of this beginning in September.

Monterey County Page 1 Printed on 7/14/2022

101
PGUSD Regular Meeting of September 1, 2022 34

CONSENT G



Legistar File Number: 22-706

On June 30, 2022, the Monterey County investment portfolio contained an amortized book value of
$2,705,970,313 spread among 259 separate securities and funds. The par value of those funds was
$2,713,566,160 with a market value of $2,638,757,893 or 98% of amortized book value. The
portfolio’s net earned income yield for the period was 0.71%. The portfolio produced an estimated
quarterly income of $4,603,440 that will be distributed proportionally to all agencies participating in
the investment pool. The investment portfolio had a weighted average maturity of 482 days. The
County Treasury continues to utilize shorter term debt to provide portfolio liquidity and enhanced
investment opportunities.

The investment portfolio follows all applicable provisions of state law and the adopted Investment
Policy and contains sufficient liquidity to meet all projected outflows over the next six months. Market
value pricings were obtained through resources such as Bloomberg LLP, US Bank, and live-bid
pricing of corporate securities.

OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
A copy of this report will be distributed to all agencies participating in the investment pooi. The
Treasury Quarterly Reports are also posted on the County Treasurer’s website. A monthly report of
investment transactions is provided to the Board of Supervisors as required per Government Code
section 53607.

FINANCING:
The investment portfolio contains sufficient liquidity to meet all projected expenditures over the next six
months. Investment earnings in the General Fund are expected to fall below the CAO’s FY 2021-22
budget due to significantly lower yields on investments purchased during the COVID-19 Pandemic.

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS STRATEGIC INITIATIVES:
This recommendation supports the Administration initiative by providing transparency and
accountability in the management of County fimds in the Treasurer’s investment portfolio.

_Economic Development
X Administration

Health & Human Services
Infrastructure
Public Safety

Doc,~Signed by:

Pr I~3b5yE ~ Reyes Chief Deputy Treasurer Tax Collector x54 15
DocuSigned by

App )9~ke Stroud, Assistant Treasurer-Tax Collector, x5828
DocuSigr,ed by:

~A. Zeeb, Treasurer-Tax Collector, x50 15

Attachments:

Monterey County Page 2 Printed on 7/14/2022

1 02

PGUSD Regular Meeting of September 1, 2022 35

CONSENT G



Legistar File Number: 22-706

Board Report
Exhibit A - Investment Portfolio Review 06.30.22
Exhibit B - Portfolio Management Report 06.3 0.22
Exhibit C - Aging Summary 07.01.22
Exhibit D - Investment Policy 202 1-2022 Red Line
Exhibit E - Investment Policy 2022-2023 Proposed

cc:
Auditor-Controller - Internal Audit Section
All depositors
County Administrative Office
County Counsel

Monterey County Page 3 PrInted on 7/14/2022

103
PGUSD Regular Meeting of September 1, 2022 36

CONSENT G



104
PGUSD Regular Meeting of September 1, 2022 37

CONSENT G



Exhibt A
Investment Portfolio Review

Q arter Ending une 30, 2 22

OVERVIEW

April 1,2022—June 30, 2022
The U.S. economy during this period was characterized by the following factors: high inflation, a
strong labor market, depressed consumer confidence, and growing potential for an economic
recession.

The Federal Reserve continues to tighten monetary policy through aggressive interest rate increases to
battle persistent inflation. Short-term federal funds rates are projected to reach 3.25% to 3.75% by year
end. The Federal Reserve also began its balance sheet reduction this quarter and plans to double the
pace of this beginning in September.

U.S. TREASURY YIELD CURVE

o Yields moved higher acorss the yield curve, with the largest increases on the shorter end as
these maturities reacted to the Federal Reserve interest rate increases and forward guidance.

o The yield cuve was extremely flat beyond 2 years, with only a positive 6 basis point spread
bewteen the 2- and 10-year Treasury.

U.S. Treasury Yield Curve

06/30/22 03/31/22 Change

3-month

1-year

2-year

3-year

5-year

10-year

30-year

0.48% +1.15%

1.60% +1.14%

2.33% +062%

+0.50%

2.46% +0.58%

2.34% +0.67%

+0.73%

3.5%

3.0%

2.5%

2.0%

1.5%

1.00/

0.5°/

0.0%
312345 10
MYYYYY V

June 30, 2022
—March 31, 2022
— — December 312021

Maturity

30
V

105

PGUSD Regular Meeting of September 1, 2022 38

CONSENT G



o Overall, the 2-year Treasury yield increased 62 basis points during the quarter.

2-Year Treasury Yield
June 30, 2020 — June 30, 2022

3.50%

3.00%

2.50%

2.00%

1.50%

1.00%

0.50%

0.00%
Jun-20 Sep-20 Dec-20 Mar-21 Jun-21 Sep-21 Dec-21 Mar-22 Jun-22

PORTFOLIO STRATEGY

Monterey County Treasury investments continue to focus on capturing relative value while remaining
cautious. The following indicators reflect key aspects of the investment portfolio in light of the above
noted conditions:

1. Market Access — During the quarter, investment purchases for the portfolio included
Corporate Notes, U.S. Treasury Notes, Commercial Paper, and Negotiable CDs. The
Treasurer continues to maintain an adequate level of liquid assets to ensure the ability to
meet all cash flow needs.

2. Diversification - The Monterey County Treasurer’s portfolio consists of 259 separate fixed
income investments, all of which are authorized by the State of California Government
Code 53601 and the Investment Policy.

The portfolio asset spread is detailed in the table below:

Portfolio Asset Composition

Corporate Negotiable Overnight U S. Federal Commercial Supra- Municipal Asset Backed
Notes CDs I iquid Assets Treasuries Agen~ic Paper nationals Bonds Securities

11.7% 3.8% 20% 40.4% 1 13.5% 8.6% 2.1%
• Total may not equal 100% due to rounding

2

106

PGUSD Regular Meeting of September 1, 2022 39

CONSENT G



Credit Risk — Approximately 86.3% of the investment portfolio is comprised of U.S.
Treasuries, Federal Agency securities, Negotiable CDs, and other liquid funds. All assets
have a better than investment grade rating. U.S. Treasuries are not specifically rated,
but are considered the safest of all investments. All corporate debt (11.7%) is rated in the
higher levels of investment grade and all Federal Agency and Municipal holdings are rated
AA- or higher. The Supranationals (2.1%) are rated AAA. The credit quality of the
Treasurer’s portfolio continues to be high.

The portfolio credit composition is detailed in the table below:

Portfolio Credit Composition

(SIio A f~/S + IF No ted
AA Team (Cal R S ) (a a e o a ed) b S&

<1%
• Total may not equal 100% due to rounding

4. Liquidity Risk — Liquidity risk, as measured by the ability of the County Treasury to meet
withdrawal demands on invested assets, was actively managed during the April — June
quarter. The portfolio’s weighted average maturity was 482 days, and the Treasurer
maintained $527 million (19%) invested in overnight investments and $666 million (25%)
in securities with maturities of one day to one year to provide immediate liquidity to be
able to react quickly to unanticipated needs or opportunities in the current market
environment.

PORTFOLIO C C ERISTICS

March 3 1, 2022 June 30, 2022

Total Assets $2,419,914,130 $2,713,566,160

Market Value $2,371,225,548 $2,638,757,893

Days to Maturity 505 482

Yield 0.40% 0.7 1%

Estimated Earnings $2,375,763 $4,603,441

Given the evolving market environment, the Treasury continues to strategically invest matured assets
while accounting for potential liquidity needs. As market conditions continue to evolve, the portfolio
will be actively managed under the established tenets of safety and liquidity while seeking to
maximize the total rate of return.

107
PGUSD Regular Meeting of September 1, 2022 40

CONSENT G



108

PGUSD Regular Meeting of September 1, 2022 41

CONSENT G



Exhibit B
Monterey County

Portfolio Management Page 1

Portfolio Details - Investments
June 30, 2022

Average Purchase Stated YTM Maturity
CUSIP Investment # Issuer Balance Date Par Value Mariret Value Book Value Rate Moodys S&P Date

Money Market Accts - GC 53601 (k)(2)

SYS12159 12159 DREYFUS AMT FREE TAX EXEMPT MM 9,238,455.44 9,238,455.44 9,238,455.44 0590 0.590

Subtotal and Average 9,237,684.29 9,238,455.44 9,238,455.44 9,238,455.44 0.590

State Pool - GC 16429.1

SYS1 1361 11361 LAIF 75,000,00000 75,000,000.00 75,000,000.00 0.320 0.320

Subtotal end Average 75,000,000.00 75,000,000.00 75,000,000.00 75,000,000.00 0.320

CALTRUST/CAMP - GC 53601(p)

SYS12211 12211 CalTrust Liquidity 168,550,000.00 168,550,000.00 168,550,000.00 1.199 1.199
SYSI18O2 11802 CalTrustBlackrock 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.025 Aaa AAA 0.025
SYS1 2296 11803 CalTwst (LEAF) 20,000,000.00 20,000,000.00 20,000,000.00 1.004 1.004
SYS12219 12219 CaITrustMERMA 331,684.06 331,684.06 331,684.06 1.124 1.124
SYS118OI 11801 CalTrustShortTerm 50,000,000.00 50,000,000.00 50,000,000.00 1.019 Aaa AAA 1.019
SYS10379 10379 Calif. Asset Mgmt __________________ 203,800,000.00 203,800,000.00 203,800,000.00 1.148 AAA 1.148

Subtotal and Average 458,381,684.06 442,681,684.06 442,681,684.06 442,681,684.06 1.146

SWEEP ACCOUNT-MORG STNLY

SYS12O4I 12041 Morgan Stanley 1.00 1.00 1.00 0.250 0.250

Subtotal and Average i .00 1.00 1.00 1.00 0.250

SWEEP ACCOUNT - CUSTOM

SYS12138 12138 Morgan Stanley __________________ 143,01955 143,019.55 143,019.55 0.671 0.671

Subtotal and Average 116,724.86 143,019.55 143,019.55 143,019.55 0.671

Medium Term Notes - GC 53601(k)

88579YBH3 12359 MMM COMPANY 02/24/2020 130,000.00 125,195.20 130,567.75 2.000 Al A+ 1.825 02/14/2025
02079KA83 12397 Alphabet INC 08/17/2020 5,000,000.00 5,027,950.00 5,240,691.80 3.375 Aa2 AA+ 0.432 02125/2024

023135AW6 12317 Amazon 09/03/2019 200,000.00 199,680.00 200,769.01 2.400 Al AA 1.936 02/22/2023
023135BP0 12375 Amazon 06/03/2020 5,415,000.00 5.281,520.25 5,412,669.54 0.400 Al P.A 0.447 06/03/2023
023135BW5 12501 Amazon 05/12/2021 5.680,000.00 5,400,544.00 5,674,847.71 0.450 Al AA 0.499 05/12/2024
023135BW5 12502 Amazon 05/1212021 75,000.00 71,310.00 74,931.97 0.450 Al AA 0.499 05/12/2024
023135808 12609 Amazon 06/30/2022 5.000,000.00 4,655,100.00 4,639,542.64 0.800 Al AA 3.413 06/03/2025
02581 6CM9 12544 American Express Credit 11/23/2021 135,000.00 122,489.55 134,803.33 1.650 A2 BBB+ 1.685 11/04/2026
037833DV9 12383 Apple Inc Corp Notes 06/30/2020 5,000,000.00 4,912,200.00 5,014,928.71 0.750 Aal AA+ 0.401 05/11/2023
037833A59 12445 Apple Inc Corp Notes i2/1 1/2020 5,000.000.00 5,016,800.00 5,267,492.86 3.450 Aal A4+ 0.524 05/06/2024

037833DM9 12568 Apple Inc Corp Notes 02/24/2022 4,130,000.00 4,001,020.10 4,121,354.02 1.800 Aaa AA+ 1.898 09/11/2024

037833DT4 12594 Apple Inc Corp Notes 04/27/2022 5.000,000.00 4,693,250.00 4,750,973.49 1.125 Aaa AA+ 2.958 05/11/2025

037833DT4 12607 Apple Inc Corp Notes 06/30/2022 5,000.000.00 4,693,250.00 4,684,806.01 1.125 Aaa AA÷ 3.458 05/11/2025

Portfolio INVT

AP~un Date 07/0612022 13 10 PM (PRF_PM2) 7.3.11

CD PGUSD Regular Meeting of September 1, 2022 42

CONSENT G



-S

-S

Exhibit B
Monterey County

Portfolio Management Page 2

Portfolio Details - Investments
June 30, 2022

Average Purchase Stated YTM Maturity

CUSIP Investment # Issuer Balance Date Par Value Market Value Book Value Rate Moody’s S&P Date

Medium Term Notes - GC 53601(k)
04636NAA1 12526 Astrazeneca Finance LLC 07/23/2021 135,000.00 122,125.05 135,498.54 1.200 A3 A- 1101 05/28/2026
06051 GJY6 12591 Bank of America 04/27/2022 5,000,000.00 4,819,200.00 4,858,025.16 0.523 P.2 A- 3.338 06/14/2024
O6O5IGGZ6 12595 Bank of America 04/28/2022 5,000,000.00 4,842.450.00 4,928,417.70 3.366 A2 A- 3.949 01/23/2026
06406FAD5 12371 BankofNewYorkMellOfl Corp 05/21/2020 125,000.00 123,681.25 126,663.45 2.200 Al A 0.932 08)16)2023
06406HCX5 12417 Bank of New York Mellon Corp 09/30/2020 5,000,000.00 4.960,100.00 5,275,221.32 3.250 Al A 0.702 09/11/2024
06406RAN7 12478 Bank of New York Mellon Corp 03/31/2021 4,000,000.00 3,764.840.00 4,055,088.37 1.600 Al A 1.088 04/24/2025
06406RAS6 12493 Bank of New York Mellon Corp 04/26/2021 50,000.00 47,470.50 49,967.55 0.500 Al A 0.536 04/26/2024

06406RAN7 12554 Bank of New York Mellon Corp 01/07/2022 5,000,000.00 4,706,050.00 5,032,088.29 1.600 Al A 1.360 04/24/2025
06406RAN7 12589 Bank of New York Mellon Corp 04/2712022 5,000,000.00 4,706,050.00 4,782,021.59 1.600 Al A 3.238 04/24/2025

06406RAN7 12608 Bank of New York Mellon Corp 06/30/2022 5,000,000.00 4,706,050.00 4,698,147.98 1.600 Al A 3.885 04/24/2025
O6O51GJH3 12436 BankofAmencaCorp 11/20/2020 4,400,000.00 4,193,420.00 4,406,972.69 0.810 P.2 A- 0.740 10/24/2024
06051GHW2 12479 BankofAmencaCorp 03/31/2021 5,000,000.00 4,762,500.00 6,174,621.94 2.456 A2 A- 1.074 10/22/2025
06051GJH3 12490 BankofAmericaCorp 04/19/2021 5,000,000.00 4,765,250.00 5,002.535.22 0.810 P.2 A- 0.779 10/24/2024
06051GFX2 12562 Bank of America Corp 02/03/2022 90,000.00 87,682.50 94,433.46 3.500 P.2 A- 2.137 04/19/2026
O6O5IGKMO 12579 Bank of America Corp 03/2212022 100,000.00 96,930.00 100,000.00 3.384 A2 A- 3.384 04/02/2026
1101 22DT2 12432 BRISTOL-MYERS SQUIBB 11/13/2020 80,000.00 77,206.40 80,000.00 0.537 A2 A+ 0.537 11/13/2023
110122DT2 12439 BRISTOL-MYERS SQUIBB 11/20/2020 5,000,000.00 4.825,400.00 5,002.178.01 0.537 P.2 A+ 0.505 11/13/2023
1101 22CM8 124.44 BRISTOL-MYERS SQUIBB 12/11/2020 5,000,000.00 4,952,250.00 5,227.524.71 2.900 A2 A+ 0.621 07/26/2024
1491 3R2D8 12481 CATERPILLAR FINL SERVC 03/31/2021 5,000,000.00 4,876,450.00 5.013,657.72 0.650 P.2 A 0.380 07/07/2023
14913R2L0 12506 CATERPILLAR FINL SERVC 05/17/2021 10,000,000.00 9,473,100.00 9,991,612.59 0.460 A2 A 0.495 05/17/2024
1491 3R2P1 12530 CATERPILLAR FINL SERVC 09/14/2021 135,000.00 127,020.15 134,865.24 0.600 P.2 A 0.645 09/13/2024
1 67646V1 12368 Chevron Corp. Global 05/11/2020 75,000.00 75,000.00 75,000.00 1.141 1.141 05/11/2023
166764BT6 12404 Chevron Corp. Global 09/17/2020 5,000,000.00 4,987,300.00 5,188,571.91 2.895 Aa2 PA- 0.503 03/03/2024
808513BN4 12474 CHARLES SCHWAB CORP 03/18/2021 25,000.00 23,977.50 24,992.86 0.750 P.2 A 0.767 03/18/2024
172967GL9 12308 Citibank 07/12)2019 250,000.00 250,315.00 251,347.59 3.375 A3 BBB+ 2.523 03/01/2023

172967MR9 12406 Citibank 09/17/2020 5,000,000.00 4,899,400.00 5,065,047.65 1.678 A3 BBB+ 0.711 05/15/2024
172967MX6 12536 Citibank 10/07/2021 4,500,000.00 4,215,735.00 4,512,297.20 0.981 A3 BBB+ 0.845 05/01/2025
172967ND9 12539 Citibank 11/08)2021 3,840,000.00 3,565,363.20 3,859,781.49 1.281 A3 BBB+ 1.071 11/03)2025
191216CL2 12403 Coca- Cola Co 09/16/2020 5,000,000.00 4,884,750.00 5,139,433.57 1.750 Al A+ 0.458 09/06/2024
2003ONCRO 12414 COMCAST CORP 09/30/2020 5,000,000.00 5,011,950.00 5,264,267.29 3.700 A3 A- 0.703 04/15)2024
254687FK7 12319 The Walt Disney Company 09/06/2019 240,000.00 231,288.00 239,605.92 1.750 P.2 BBB+ 1.851 08/30)2024

291011BG8 12415 EMERSON ELECTRIC CO 09/30/2020 80,000.00 79,184.80 85,254.37 3.150 P2 A 0.848 06/01/2025
369550BG2 12588 General Dynamics Corp 04/27)2022 5,000,000.00 4,976,750.00 5.035,078.78 3.500 A3 A- 3.228 05/15/2025
38141GXS8 12462 Goldman Sachs 02/17)2021 60,000.00 54,585.60 60,102.20 0.855 P2 BBB+ 0.807 02)12)2026
38141GYE8 12515 Goldman Sachs 06/22)2021 10,000,000.00 9,567,600.00 9,986,713.73 0.657 P.2 BBB+ 0.746 09/10/2024
38141GXZ2 12555 Goldman Sachs 01/07/2022 5,000,000.00 4,884,850.00 4,987,681.24 0.673 P.2 BBB+ 0.946 03/08)2024
38141GZH0 12560 Goldman Sachs 01/24/2022 130,000.00 124,970.30 130,000.00 1.757 P2 BBB+ 1.757 01/24/2025
437076CM2 12581 Home Depot Inc 03/28/2022 20,000.00 19,623.20 19,967.97 2.700 P2 A 2.760 04)15/2025

Portfolio INVT

AP
PM (PRF_PM2I 7.3.11

Run Date: 0710612022-13.10

PGUSD Regular Meeting of September 1, 2022 43

CONSENT G



Exhibit B
Monterey County

Portfolio Management Page 3

Portfolio Details - Investments
June 30, 2022

Average Purchase Stated YTM Maturity
CUSIP Investment# Issuer Balance Date Par Value Market Value Book Value Rate Moodys S&P Date

Medium Term Notes - GC 53601(k)

438516BW5 12370 Honeywell International 05/20/2020 100,000.00 98,208.00 102,653.21 2.300 A2 A 0.995 08/15/2024
438516CB0 12571 Honeywell International 02/25/2022 5,000,000.00 4,706,050.00 4,879,062.50 1.350 A2 A 2.214 06/01/2025
438516CB0 12574 Honeywell International 03/01/2022 65,000.00 61,178.65 63,391.75 1.350 A2 A 2.234 06/01/2025
02665WCZ2 12318 American Honda Finance 09/03/2019 200,000.00 195,360.00 201,428.70 2.400 A3 A- 2.021 06/27/2024
459200JZ5 12527 IBM Corp Notes 07/23/2021 120,000.00 117,040.80 129,957.60 3.300 A3 A- 1.094 05/15/2026
459200JY8 12587 IBM Corp Notes 04127/2022 5,000,000.00 4,959,950.00 4,990,501.90 3.000 A3 A- 3.105 05/15/2024
458140BP4 12590 IBM Corp Notes 04/27/2022 5,000,000.00 4,991,850.00 5,025,304.20 3.400 Al A+ 3.199 03125/2025
459200KH3 12604 IBM Corp Notes 06/03/2022 70,000.00 62,959.40 64,118.00 1.700 A3 A- 3.598 05/15/2027
24422EVH9 12374 John Deere Capital Corp 06/04/2020 3,340,000.00 3,258,170.00 3,339,102.68 0.700 A2 A 0.726 07/05/2023
24422EVH9 12382 John Deere Capital Corp 06/30/2020 5.000,000.00 4,877,500.00 5,007,363.87 0.700 A2 A 0.553 07/05/2023
24422EUX5 12446 John Deere Capital Corp 12/11/2020 5,000,000.00 4.941,400.00 5,172,418.95 2.600 A2 A 0.531 03/07/2024
24.422EWA3 12573 John Daere Capital Corp 02/28/2022 65,000.00 59,320.30 63,313.14 1.700 A2 A 2.309 01/11/2027
46647PBZ8 12473 JP Morgan Chase 03/16/2021 65,000.00 63,579.10 65,000.00 0.697 A2 A- 0.697 03/16/2024

46647PBQ8 12482 JP Morgan Chase 04/05/2021 3,900,000.00 3,801,759.00 3,948,490.11 1.514 A2 A- 0.557 06/01/2024
46647PCH7 12510 JP Morgan Chase 06/01/2021 165,000.00 154,192.50 165,000.00 0.824 A2 A- 0.824 06/01/2025
46647PCH7 12517 JP Morgan Chase 06/22/2021 10.000,000.00 9,345,000.00 9,979,429.18 0.824 A2 A- 0.920 06/01/2025
46625HRV4 12545 JP Morgan Chase 11/23/2021 125,000.00 118,942.50 131,233.13 2.950 A2 A- 1.830 10/01/2026
46647PCH7 12561 JP Morgan Chase 01/24/2022 10,000,000.00 9,345,000.00 9,834,627.17 0.824 A2 A- 1.651 06/01/2025
46647PBZ8 12593 JP Morgan Chase 04/27/2022 10.000,000.00 9.781,400.00 9,816,315.17 0.697 A2 A- 3.033 03/16/2024
539830BH1 125288 Lockheed Martin Corp 07/23/2021 58,000.00 58,104.98 62,933.62 3.550 A3 A- 0.947 01/15/2026
57636QAB0 12282 MASTERCARD INC 04/04/2019 250,000.00 249880.00 252,749.46 3.375 Al A+ 2.699 04/01/2024
57636QAN4 12600 MASTERCARD INC 05/20/2022 5,000,000.00 4,811.400.00 4,875,026.32 2.000 Al A+ 2.981 03/03/2025
58933YAR6 12469 MERCK & CO INC 03/09/2021 125,000.00 123,506.25 130,551.81 2.750 Al A+ 0.897 02/10/2025
58933YAY1 12610 MERCK & CO INC 06/30/2022 5,000,000.00 4,530,400.00 4,519,366.06 0.750 Al A+ 3.585 02/24/2026
6174468W2 12458 Morgan Stanley 01/25/2021 100,000.00 98,026.00 100,000.00 0.529 Al A- 0.529 01/25/2024
61772BAA1 12491 Morgan Stanley 04/22/2021 15,000.00 14,623.05 15,000.00 0.731 Al A- 0.731 04/05/2024
617728AA1 12492 Morgan Stanley 04/22/2021 50,000.00 48,743.50 50,034.59 0.731 Al A- 0.671 04/05/2024

6174468R3 12516 Morgan Stanley 06/22/2021 5,000,000.00 4,612,100.00 4,999.007.70 0.864 Al A- 0.872 10/21/2025
61747YEA9 12519 Morgan Stanley 06/24/2021 10,000.000.00 9,309,200.00 9.969,181.92 0.790 Al A- 0.934 05/30/2025
66989HAP3 12412 Novartis Capital Corp 09/22/2020 125,000.00 120,563.75 128,660.68 1.750 Al AA- 0.594 02/14/2025
641062AU8 12529 Nestle Holdings Inc. 09/14/2021 195,000.00 184,048.80 195,000.00 0.606 NIA AA- 0.606 09/14/2024
665859AW4 12598 Northern Trust Corp 05/12/2022 75,000.00 75,451.50 75,490.26 4.000 A2 A+ 3.849 05/10/2027
63743HFC1 12564 National Rural Util Coop 02/07/2022 40,000.00 38,218.80 39,998.96 1.875 A2 A- 1.876 02/07/2025
717081 ES8 12280 PFIZER INC 04/04/2019 250,000.00 248,965.00 251,023.06 2.950 A2 A+ 2.692 03/15/2024
7l708lES8 12402 PFIZER INC 09/16/2020 5,000,000.00 4,979,300.00 5,203,195.47 2.950 A2 A+ 0.486 03/15/2024

857477BM4 12575 State Street Corp 03/14/2022 125,000.00 120,981.25 125,698.36 2.901 Al A 2.742 03/30/2026

857477BE2 12576 State Street Corp 03/17/2022 5.000,000.00 4,808,700.00 4,951,134.97 2.354 Al A 2.776 11/01/2025

857477BE2 12599 State Street Corp 05/1 8/2022 8,625,000.00 8,295,007.50 8,409923.17 2.354 Al A 3.461 11/01/2025

Portfolio INVT

AP~un Date- 07/06/2022 - 13:10 PM (PRF PM2) 7 3.11

-a
— PGUSD Regular Meeting of September 1, 2022 44

CONSENT G



r~3

Exhibit B
Monterey County

Portfolio Management Page 4

Portfolio Details - Investments
June 30, 2022

Average Purchase Stated YTM Maturity
CUSIP Investment # Issuer Balance Date Par Value Market Value Book Value Rate Moody’s S&P Date

Medium Term Notes - GC 5360 1(k)

89236TGT6 12358 Toyota Motor Corporation 0212112020 130000.00 123,936.10 129,854.44 1.800 Al A+ 1.845 02)13/2025
89236THF5 12401 Toyota Motor Corporation 09116/2020 5,000,000.00 4.848,350.00 5,002,268.80 0.500 Al A+ 0.459 08/14/2023
89236TGT6 12485 Toyota Motor Corporation 04(1312021 5,000000.00 4,766,850.00 5,115736.30 1.800 Al A+ 0.898 02113/2025
89236TJT3 12556 Toyota Motor Corporation 01/13/2022 5,000,000.00 4,738,350.00 4,998,015.56 1.450 Al A+ 1.466 01/13(2025
89236TJT3 12557 Toyota Motor Corporation 01/13/2022 65,000.00 61,598.55 64,926.45 1.450 Al A+ 1.495 01/13/2025
87612EBM7 12558 TARGETCORP 01/24/2022 35,000.00 32,467.05 34,945.72 1.950 A2 A 1.986 01/15/2027
87612EBM7 12559 TARGET CORP 01/24/2022 65,000.00 60,295.95 65,042.10 1.950 A2 A 1.935 01/15/2027

87612EBL9 12577 TARGET CORP 03/17/2022 5,000,000.00 4,826,500.00 4,963,029.60 2.250 A2 A 2.527 04/15/2025
904764BG1 12369 Unilever Capital Corp 05/20/2020 60,000.00 60,062.40 62,208.73 3.250 Al A+ 0.968 03/07/2024
91324PDM1 12398 United Health Group Inc 08/19/2020 2,125,000.00 2,134,073.75 2,224,754.27 3.500 A3 A+ 0.573 02/15/2024
91324PEB4 12508 United Health Group Inc 05/19/2021 5,000,000.00 4,759,150.00 5,000,093.96 0.550 A3 A+ 0.549 05/15/2024
91324PEB4 12509 United Health Group Inc 05/19/2021 4,455,000.00 4,240,402.65 4,452,097.79 0.550 A3 A+ 0.585 05/15/2024
91 159HHX1 12313 US BANCORP 08/06/2019 200,000.00 195,082.00 200,508.52 2.400 A2 A+ 2.270 07/30/2024
91 159HHX1 12405 US BANCORP 09/17/2020 5,000,000.00 4,877,050.00 5,188,432.91 2.400 A2 A+ 0.525 07/30/2024
931 142DP5 12447 Walmart Inc 12/11/2020 5,000,000.00 5,009,600.00 5,236,693.06 3.300 Aa2 AA 0.449 04/22/2024

931 142EM1 12572 Walmart Inc 02/25/2022 60,000.00 59,496.60 62,067.01 3.050 Aa2 AA 2.114 07/08/2026

Subtotal and Average 301,771,222.94 319,543,000.00 307,547,525.23 319,576,427.02 1.468

Negotiable CDs - GC 53601(i)

05586FR41 12601 BNP Paribas NY 05/31/2022 25,000,000.00 24,812.750.00 25,000,000.00 2.700 N/A A-i 2.700 05/31/2023
22552G6R6 12563 Credit Suisse 02/04/2022 25,000,000.00 24,679.750.00 25,000.000.00 1.100 N/A A-l 1.100 02/03/2023
86565FKG6 12596 Sumitomo Mitsui Bank NY 04/27/2022 26,000,000.00 25,835,420.00 26,000,000.00 2.700 N/A A-l 2.700 04/26/2023
891 14WTL9 12582 Toronto Dominion Bank 03/29/2022 25,000,000.00 24,385,000.00 25,000,000.00 2.150 N/A N/A 2.150 03/28/2023

Subtotal and Average 108,500,000.00 101,000,000.00 99,712,920.00 101,000,000.00 2.168

Commercial Paper Disc.- GC 53601(h)

00084CH21 12570 ABN Amro Funding USA 02/25/2022 25,000,000.00 24,955,500.00 24,985,333.33 0.660 P-i A-I 0.662 08/02/2022
17327BM93 12578 CitiGroup Global Market 03/17/2022 15,000,000.00 14,803,500.00 14,889,312.50 1.650 P-i A-I 1.670 12)09/2022
22533UL43 12566 Credit Agricole Securities USA 02/14/2022 30,500.000.00 30,207,505.00 30,388.980.00 1.040 P-i A-i 1.058 11/04/2022
4497W1J23 12553 ING 01/06/2022 30,000,000.00 29,880,300.00 29,979,525.00 0.390 P-i A-l 0.395 09/02/2022
62479MHS5 12546 MUFG Bank LTD/NY 11/30/2021 25,000,000.00 24,922,250.00 24,987,166.67 0.330 P-i A-i 0.335 08/26/2022

62479MJD6 12551 MUFG Bank LTD/NY 12/22/2021 25,000,000.00 24,882,750.00 24,980,472.22 0.380 P-i A-i 0.386 09/13/2022
63873KL47 12565 NATIXIS_NA 02)10/2022 10,000,000.00 9,904,100.00 9,969,550.00 0.870 P-i A-i 0.875 11/04/2022
63873KL47 12567 NATIXIS_NA 02/15/2022 10,000,000.00 9,904,100.00 9,962,200.00 1.080 P-i A-i 1.088 11/04/2022
63873KJ99 12548 Natixis NY Branch 121i5/2021 26,750,000.00 26,631,497.50 26,728,674.31 0.410 P-i A-i 0.411 09/09/2022
78015DNL0 12592 Royal Bank of Canada 04/27/2022 30,000,000.00 29,477,400.00 29,626,i41 .66 2.210 P-i A-1+ 2.247 01/20/2023

Subtotal and Average 226,417,127.39 227,250,000.00 225,568,902.50 226,497,355.69 0.885

Portfolio INVT
AP

Run Data: 07/06/2022 - 13:10 PM (PRF PM2) 7.3.11

PGUSD Regular Meeting of September 1, 2022 45

CONSENT G



US Treasury Note-CC 53601(b)

91 2828T91
912828VB3
912828V23
912828U57
9128286G0

912828WJ5

912828S35

01/11/2019
01/11/2019
0113 1/2019
02108/2019

03/07/2019

06/06/2019

07/12/2019

VTM Maturity

Date

-a
-a

tun Date 07/0612022 - 13:10
Portfolio INVT

AP
PM (PRF_PM2) 7.3.11

CUSIP Investment #

Fed Agcy Coupon Sec - CC 53601(f)

Issuer

Exhibit B
Monterey County

Portfolio Management
Portfolio Details - Investments

June 30, 2022

Average Purchase
Balance Date Par Value Market Value

Page 5

Stated
Book Value Rate Moody’s s&P

3130AFW94 12264 Federal Home Loan Bank 02/15/2019 370,000.00 367,280.50 369,576.03 2.500 AA÷ 2.576 02)13/2024

3130AJM22 12407 Federal Home Loan Bank 09/18/2020 12,535,000.00 11,867,135.20 12,574,781.85 0.440 Aaa AA+ 0.292 08/28/2024
313OAKJW7 12451 Federal Home Loan Bank 12/16/2020 25,000,000.00 22,905,000.00 25,017,287.38 0.600 Aaa AA+ 0.580 12/15!2025
3137EAES4 12384 Federal Home Loan Mtg Corp 06/30/2020 25,000,000.00 24,332,000.00 24,987,545.31 0.250 Aaa AA÷ 0.301 06/26/2023
3137EAEU9 12391 Federal Home Loan Mtg Corp 07/23/2020 155,000.00 142,979.75 154,527.76 0.375 AA+ 0.476 07/21/2025
3137EAES4 12395 Federal Home Loan Mtg Corp 08/17/2020 22,635,000.00 22.030.192.80 22,629,221.37 0.250 Aaa AA+ 0.276 06/26/2023
3137EAEW5 12399 Federal Home Loan Mtg Corp 09/04/2020 15,000,000.oo 14,534,550.00 15,002,930.70 0.250 Aaa AA+ 0.233 09/08/2023
3137EAEW5 12400 Federal Home Loan Mtg Corp 09/04/2020 290,000.00 281,001.30 290,056.66 0.250 Aaa AA+ 0.233 09/08/2023
3137EAEW5 12409 Federal Home Loan Mtg Corp 09/18/2020 25.000,000.00 24,224,250.00 25,003,392.06 0.250 Aaa AA+ 0.239 09/08/2023
31 37EAEV7 12411 Federal Home Loan Mtg Corp 09/18/2020 25,000,000.00 24,242,750.00 25,001,857.72 0.250 Aaa AA+ 0.243 08/24/2023
3137EAEV7 12413 Federal Home Loan Mtg Corp 09/30/2020 25,000,000.00 24.242.750.00 25.006,032.81 0.250 Aaa AA+ 0.229 08/24/2023
3134GWV89 12420 Federal Home Loan Mtg Corp 10/15/2020 10,650,000.00 9,787,350.00 10,644,770.52 0.550 Aaa N/A 0.565 09/29/2025
3137EAEY1 12421 Federal Home Loan Mtg Corp 10/16/2020 250,000.00 241,142.50 249,642.64 0.125 N/A AA+ 0.236 10/16/2023
31 37EAEZ8 12429 Federal Home Loan Mtg Corp 11/05/2020 29,545,000.00 28,500,584.25 29,533,069.94 0.250 N/A AA+ 0.280 11/06/2023
31 34GXB05 12448 Federal Home Loan Mtg Corp 12/11/2020 25.000,000.00 23,821,500.00 24.995.220.83 0.360 Ma N/A 0.370 05/15/2024

3135G0V34 12263 Federal National Mtg Assn 02/08/2019 335,000.00 332,624.85 334,601.94 2.500 AA÷ 2.580 02/05/2024
3135GO3L15 12366 Federal National Mtg Assn 04/24/2020 470,000.00 439,497.00 469,455.59 0.625 Aaa AA+ 0.667 04/22/2025
3135G04Q3 12372 Federal National Mtg Assn 05/22/2020 240,000.00 234,535.20 239,785.29 0.250 Ma AA+ 0.351 05/22)2023
3135G03U5 12373 Federal National Mtg Assn 06/03/2020 450,000.00 420,795.00 451,598.40 0.625 Aaa AA+ 0.497 04122/2025
3135C304Z3 12380 Federal National Mtg Assn 06/19/2020 545,000.00 505,547.45 544,331.14 0.500 Ma AA+ 0.542 06/17/2025
3135G04Q3 12381 Federal National Mtg Asan 06/30/2020 31,000,000.00 30,294,130.00 30,994,843.05 0.250 Aaa AA+ 0.269 05/2212023
3135G05G4 12385 Federal National Mtg Assn 07/10/2020 515,000.00 501,347.35 514,621.69 0.250 Aaa AM 0.322 07/10/2023
31 35G04Z3 12386 Federal National Mtg Assn 07/10/2020 950,000.00 881,229.50 951,230.97 0.500 Aaa AM 0.456 06/17/2025
3135G05R0 12394 Federal National Mtg Assn 08/12/2020 15,000,000.00 14.600,100.00 14.990.006.49 0.300 Aaa AA+ 0.360 08/10/2023
3135G05G4 12396 Federal National Mtg Assn 08/17/2020 15,000,000.00 14,602,350.00 14,997,346.60 0.250 Ma A~+ 0.267 07/10/2023
3135G05G4 12408 Federal National Mtg Assn 09/18/2020 25,000,000.00 24,337,250.00 25000,820.41 0250 Aaa AM 0.247 07/10/2023
3135G0V75 12416 Federal National Mtg Assn 09/30/2020 13,800,000.00 13,488,258.00 14.221,983.38 1.750 Aaa AA+ 0.216 07/02)2024
31 35G06H1 12440 Federal National Mtg Assn 11/25/2020 25,000,000.00 24,088,750.00 24,993,920.52 0.250 N/A AA÷ 0.267 11/27/2023

Subtotal and Average 370,172,231.76 369,735,000,00 356,246,880.65 370,164,459.05 0.308

12245
12246
12260C
12261
12274

12305

12309

U.S. Treasury
U.S. Treasury
U.S. Treasury
U.S. Treasury
U.S. Treasury

U.S. Treasury

U.S. Treasury

500,000.00 491,350.00 494,186.68 1.625 Aaa N/A 2.557 10/31/2023
785,000.00 777,330.55 779,819.88 1.750 Aaa N/A 2.555 05/15/2023
500,000.00 494,650.00 497,829.56 2.250 Aaa N/A 2.560 12/31/2023
500,000.00 494,260.00 497,527.34 2.125 Ass N/A 2.498 11/30/2023
400,000.00 396,220.00 398,867.31 2.375 Aaa N/A 0.000 02)29/2024

500,000.00 495,510.00 505,121.71 2.500 Ass N/A 1.924 05/15/2024
750,000.00 738,517.50 746,842.73 1.375 Aaa N/A 1.815 06/30/2023

PGUSD Regular Meeting of September 1, 2022 46

CONSENT G



-~

Exhibit B
Monterey County

Portfolio Management Page 6

Portfolio Details - Investment
June 30, 2022

Average Purchase Stated YTM Maturity
CUSIP Investment # Issuer Balance Date Par Value Market Value Book Value Rate Moody’s S&P Date

US Treasury Note-GC 53601(b)

912828Q29 12320 U.S. Treasury 09/06/2019 950,000.00 940,984.50 951,097.12 1.500 Aaa N/A 1.341 03/31/2023

912828YM6 12331 u.s. Treasury 11/19/2019 170,000.00 164,242.10 169,364.00 1.500 Aaa N/A 1.668 10/31/2024
912828Z52 12352 U.S. Treasury 02/05/2020 500,000.00 479,550.00 500,020.26 1.375 Aaa N/A 1.373 01/31/2025

912828YM6 12353 U.S. Treasury 02/05/2020 500,000.00 483,065.00 501,367.48 1.500 Aaa N/A 1.378 10/31/2024
912828YY0 12354A U.S. Treasury 02/05/2020 370,000.00 358,581.80 373,356.01 1.750 N/A N/A 1.374 12/31/2024
912828ZC7 12362 U.S. Treasury 03/0412020 400,000.00 380,720.00 403,062.32 1.125 Aaa N/A 0.831 02)28/2025
91282CAP6 12419 u.s. Treasury 10/15/2020 20,300,000.00 19,570,418.00 20,287,379.85 0.125 Aaa N/A 0.173 10/15/2023
91282CAG6 12424 U.S. Treasury 11/0312020 25,000,000.00 24,940.250.00 24,998.568.88 0.125 Aaa N/A 0.159 08/31/2022
912828M80 12425 U.S. Treasury 11/04/2020 25,000,000.00 24,961,000.00 25,190,062.83 2.000 Aaa N/A 0.170 11/30/2022
91282CAR2 12426 U.S. Treasury 11/04/2020 25,000,000.00 24,835,250.00 24,996,225.57 0.125 Aaa N/A 0.170 10/31/2022
912828TY6 12427 U.S. Treasury 11/04/2020 25,000,000.00 24,935,500.00 25,136,136.24 1.625 Aaa N/A 0.171 11/15/2022
91282CAN1 12428 U.S. Treasury 11/04/2020 25,000,000.00 24,896,000.00 24,997,059.07 0.125 Ass N/A 0.172 09/30/2022
91282CAR2 12434 U.S. Treasury 11/18/2020 500,000.00 496,705.00 499,916.33 0.125 Aaa N/A 0.175 10/31/2022
91282CAP6 12441 U.S. Treasury 12/01/2020 20,900,000.00 20,148,854.00 20,883,855.72 0.125 Aaa N/A 0.185 10/15/2023
91282CAZ4 12443 U.S Treasury 12/08/2020 325,000.00 296,842.00 324,808.27 0.375 Aaa N/A 0.392 11/30/2025
91282CAX9 12450 U.S Treasury 12/11/2020 28,210,000.00 27,951,032.20 28,206,505.63 0.125 Aaa N/A 0.155 11/30/2022
91282CBA8 12452 U.S. Treasury 12/16/2020 25,000,000.00 23,988,250.00 24,981,479.23 0.125 Aaa N/A 0.175 12/15/2023

91282CAW1 12454 U.S. Treasury 12/22)2020 25,000,000.00 24,091,750.00 25,032,898.53 0.250 Aaa N/A 0.154 11/15/2023
91282CBA8 12455 U.S. Treasury 12/22)2020 25,000,000.00 23,988,250.00 24,985,197.18 0.125 Aaa N/A 0.166 12/15/2023
91 2828YE4 12456 U.S Treasury 12/22)2020 25,000,000.00 24,085,000.00 25,553,111.09 1.250 Ass N/A 0.224 08/31/2024
91 2828YM6 12457 U.S. Treasury 12)22/2020 22,500,000.00 21,737,925.00 23,159,252.67 1.500 Ass N/A 0.238 10/31/2024
91282C8E0 12459 U.S. Treasury 02/01/2021 20,000,000.00 19,144,600.00 19,983,271.25 0.125 Aaa N/A 0.179 01/15/2024
91282CBM2 12461 U.S. Treasury 02/16/2021 14,400,000.00 13,758,192.00 14,385,034.62 0.125 Aaa N/A 0.189 02115/2024
91282CBM2 12463 U.S. Treasury 02/26/2021 10,000,000.00 9,554,300.00 9,967.464.25 0.125 Aaa N/A 0.326 02/15/2024
912828ZF0 12464 U.S. Treasury 03/01/2021 25,000,000.00 23,332,000.00 24,950,023.05 0.500 Aaa N/A 0.574 03/31/2025
91282CAB7 12465 U.S. Treasury 03/01/2021 30,000,000.00 27,544,800.00 29,629,418.69 0.250 Aaa N/A 0.657 07/31/2025
91282CBQ3 12466 U.S. Treasury 03/04/2021 250,000.00 227,862.50 247,941.79 0.500 Aaa N/A 0.729 02/28/2026
91282CBH3 12467 U.S. Treasury 03/04/2021 250,000.00 227,325.00 246,955.08 0.375 Ass N/A 0.721 01/31/2026
912828P46 12470 U.S. Treasury 03/09/2021 500,000.00 475,215.00 514,259.22 1.625 Aaa N/A 0.821 02)15/2026
91282CBN0 12471 U.S. Treasury 03/09/2021 500,000.00 491,505.00 499,921.33 0.125 N/A N/A 0.148 02/28/2023
91282CBM2 12472 U.S. Treasury 03/09/2021 500,000.00 477,715.00 498,399.79 0.125 Aaa N/A 0.322 02/15/2024
91282C8R1 12475 U.S. Treasury 03/23/2021 200,000.00 190,962.00 199,762.90 0.250 Aaa N/A 0.320 03/15/2024
912828ZF0 12476 U.S. Treasury 03/26/2021 250,000.00 233,320.00 249,491.71 0.500 Aaa N/A 0.575 03/31/2025
91 2828YH7 12477 U.S. Treasury 03/31/2021 25,000,000.00 24,183,500.00 25,569,257.29 1.500 Aaa N/A 0.478 09/30/2024
9128286Z8 12480 U.S. Treasury 03/31/2021 19,000,000.00 18,54.4,380.00 19,505,281.50 1.750 Aaa N/A 0.409 06/30/2024

91282CBR1 12484 U.S. Treasury 04/06/2021 250,000.00 238,702.50 249,529.82 0.250 Aaa N/A 0.361 03/15/2024
91282CBC4 12486 U.S. Treasury 04/12/2021 250,000.00 227,842.50 246,283.36 0.375 Aaa N/A 0.809 12)31/2025

91 282C8V2 12487 U.S. Treasury 04/15/2021 22000,000.00 21,001,420.00 22,004,615.22 0.375 Aaa N/A 0.363 04/15/2024

Portfoho INVT

AP

Run Date: 07/06/2022 - 13:10 PM (PRF_PM2> 7.3.11

PGUSD Regular Meeting of September 1, 2022 47

CONSENT G



Exhibit B
Monterey County

Portfolio Management Page 7

Portfolio Details - Investments
June 30, 2022

Average Purchase Stated YTM Maturity
CUSIP InvestmentS Issuer Balance Date Par Value Market Value Book Value Rate Moody’s S&P Date

US Treasury Note-GC 53601(b)

91282CBV2 12494 U.S. Treasury 04/30/2021 20,000,000.00 19,092,200.00 20,013,234.27 0.375 Aaa N/A 0.338 04/15/2024

912828XX3 12495 u.s. Treasury 04/30/2021 500,000.00 490,565.00 516,032.34 2.000 Aaa N/A 0.385 06/30/2024
91282CBR1 12496 u.s. Treasury 05/05/2021 250,000.00 238,702.50 249,825.34 0.250 Aaa N/A 0.291 03/15/2024
91282CBE0 12499 u.s. Treasury 05111/2021 25,000,000.00 23,930,750.00 24,954,510.54 0.125 Aaa N/A 0.243 01/15/2024
91282CAK7 12500 u.s. Treasury 05/11/2021 25,000,000.00 24,161,250.00 24,978,391.42 0.125 Aaa N/A 0.196 09/15/2023
91282CBR1 12505 U.S. Treasury 05/13/2021 13.200.000.00 12,603,492.00 13,193,185.00 0.250 Aaa N/A 0.280 03/15/2024
91 2828YE4 12511 u.s. Treasury 06/02/2021 15,000,000.00 14,451.000.00 15,283,680.70 1.250 Aaa N/A 0.371 08/31/2024
91282CCF6 12513 u.s. Treasury 06/07/2021 200,000.00 182,992.00 199,735.90 0.750 N/A 0.784 05/31/2026
91282CBW0 12518 u.s. Treasury 06/25/2021 250,000.00 229,180.00 248,873.07 0.750 Aaa N/A 0.870 04/30/2026
9128282N9 12520 u.s. Treasury 06/30/2021 25,000.000.00 24.562,500.00 25,847,352.10 2.125 Ma N/A 0.484 07/31/2024
91282CCG4 12521 u.s. Treasury 06/30/2021 30,000,000.00 28,448,400.00 29.870,557.14 0.250 Aaa N/A 0472 06/15/2024
9128282Y5 12522 u.s. Treasury 06/30/2021 22,000.000.00 21,590,140.00 22,790.247.40 2.125 Aaa N/A 0.513 09/30/2024
91282CBX8 12532 u.s. Treasury 09/30/2021 20.750,000.00 20.283,125.00 20,735,528.16 0.125 Aaa N/A 0.209 04/30/2023
912828YV6 12533 u.s. Treasury 09/30/2021 20,000,000.00 19,293,000.00 20,442.406.28 1.500 Aaa N/A 0.575 11/30/2024
912828YM6 12534 u.s. Treasury 09/30/2021 20,000,000.00 19,322,600.00 20,438,751.94 1.500 Aaa N/A 0.551 10/31/2024
91282CBC4 12535 U.s. Treasury 10/06/2021 135,000.00 123,034.95 132,929.06 0.375 Aaa N/A 0.822 12/31/2025
912828ZL7 12537 U.S. Treasury 11/0212021 20,000,000.00 18,561,800.00 19,692,714.46 0.375 Aaa N/A 0.927 04/30/2025
91282CAB7 12538 U.S. Treasury 11/02/2021 20,000,000.00 18.363.200.00 19,557,260.42 0.250 Aaa N/A 0.982 07/31/2025

91282CCJ8 12540 U.S. Treasury 11/09/2021 400,000.00 367,204.00 396,727.61 0.875 Aaa N/A 1.085 06/30/2026
91282CCW9 12541 U.S. Treasury 11/09/2021 380,000.00 345,887.40 374,609.27 0.750 Aaa N/A 1.100 08/31/2026
91282CAJ0 12543 U.s. Treasury i 1/16/2021 26,000.000.00 23.806.380.00 25.337,744.99 0.250 Aaa N/A 1.073 08/31/2025
91282C0H1 12549 u.s. Treasury 12/22/2021 24,000,000.00 22.756,800.00 23,928,537.54 0.750 Aaa N/A 0.877 11/15/2024
91282CBR1 12550 U.s. Treasury 12/22/2021 25,000,000.00 23,870,250.00 24,801,934.17 0.250 Aaa N/A 0.719 03/15/2024
9128283P3 12552 U.S. Treasury 12/22/2021 25,000,000.00 24,533,250.00 25.831,188.13 2.250 Aaa N/A 0.899 12/31/2024
91282CCL3 12569 U.S. Treasury 02/25/2022 15,600,000.00 14,796,912.00 15,222,114.04 0.375 Aaa N/A 1.588 07/16/2024

91282CCK5 12580 U.s. Treasury 03/22/2022 25,000,000.00 24,317,500.00 24,592,548.73 0.125 Aaa N/A 1.782 06/30/2023
912828R28 12583 U.S. Treasury 03/31/2022 25.000,000.00 24,747,000.00 24,973,781.15 1.625 Aaa N/A 1.753 04/30/2023
91282CBM2 12584 u.s. Treasury 03/31/2022 25,000,000.00 23,885,750.00 24,159,478.64 0.125 Ma N/A 2.248 02/15/2024
912828Z78 12585 U.S. Treasury 04/08/2022 350,000.00 326,784.50 331,591.16 1.500 Aaa N/A 2.731 01/31/2027
91282CEF4 12586 U.S. Treasury 04/08/2022 350,000.00 341,481.00 346,857.32 2.500 Aaa N/A 2.703 03/31/2027
9128284R8 12597 U.S. Treasury 05/02/2022 30,000,000.00 29,871,000.00 29,987,796.88 2.875 Aaa N/A 2.889 05/31/2025
91282CET4 12602 U.S. Treasury 06/06/2022 450,000.00 441,490.50 443,862.82 2.625 Aaa N/A 2.925 05/31/2027
912828V98 12603 U.S. Treasury 06/06/2022 450,000.00 433,881.00 436,436.97 2250 Ass N/A 2.952 02115/2027
91282CEN7 12605 U.s. Treasury 06/06/2022 450,000.00 443,916.00 446,204.19 2.750 Aaa N/A 2.938 04/30/2027
91282CAT8 12606 U.S. Treasury 06/10/2022 27,000,000.00 24,603,750.00 24,628,812.24 0.250 Aaa N/A 3.045 10/31/2025

91282CAM3 12611 U.S. Treasury 06/30/2022 44,000,000.00 40.199,720.00 40,079,396.70 0.250 Aaa N/A 3.158 09/30/2025
912828ZW3 12612 U.s. Treasury 06/30/2022 45,000,000.00 41,431,500.00 41,306,693.19 0.250 Aaa N/A 3.141 06/30/2025

Subtotal and Average 1.015,666,351.76 1,109,625,000.00 1,064,920,037.00 1,101,769,361.64 0.864

Portfolio INVT

APRun Date: 07/0612022 - 13:10 PM (PRF_PM2) 7.3.11

-.

(‘1 PGUSD Regular Meeting of September 1, 2022 48

CONSENT G



Exhibit B
Monterey County

Portfolio Management
Portfolio Details - Investments

June 30, 2022

Page 8

CUSIP

Supranationals

459058JV6
459058JV6
4581X0DM7

4581X0DZ8
459058JM6
459058JM6
459058GX5
459056HV2

13017HAK2
54438CYK2
544647FC9
646140DN0

650036DT0
798306WP7
798306WN2
5741 93TQ1
91412HFM0
9771 23X78
9771 23X60

12488
12489
12365

12531
12437
12438
12503
12504

12435
12431
12542
12460

12453
12422
12423
12392
12388
12389
12390

Average Purchase
Balance - Date

YTM Maturity

Date

AAA 0.230 04/20/2023
AAA 0.210 04/20/2023
AAA 0.511 05/24/2023

Aaa AAA 0.525 09/23/2024
N/A AAA 0.322 1112412023
N/A AAA 0.322 11/24/2023

AAA 0.214 06/19/2023
Aaa AAA 0.455 08/28/2024

0.321

N/A N/A 1.477 07/01/2023
Aaa ~+ 0.773 08/01/2025
Aa3 N/A 1.455 07/01/2026
Al AA- 0.897 01/01/2025

N/A AA+ 0.870 03/15/2025
Aa2 N/A 0.899 08/01/2025
Aa2 N/A 0.702 08/01/2024
Aaa AAA 0.517 08/01/2024
Aa2 AA 0.933 05/15/2025
N/A AAA 0.774 07/01/2025
N/A A&A 0.624 07/01/2024

0.852

0.928

-~

0,

Run Date: 07/06/2022 - 13:10

Portfolio INVT
AP

PM (PRF_PM2) 7.3.11

Investment # Issuer Par Value Market Value
Stated

Book Value Rate Moodys S&P

Asset Backed Security(GNMAICMO)

Subtotal and Average

Inter-America Devel BK 04/20/2021 190000.00 185,935.90 189,842.13 0.126
Inter-America Devel BK 04/20/2021 5,000,000.00 4,893,050.00 4,996,588.19 0.126
INTER AMERICAN DEVEL BK 04/24/2020 270,000.00 264,197.70 269,973.29 0.500

INTER AMERICAN DEVEL BK 09/23/2021 265,000.00 250,430.30 264854.38 0.500
INTL BK RECON & DEVELP 11/24/2020 355,000.00 342,159.65 354,644.52 0.250
INTL BK RECON & DEVELP 11/24/2020 21,955,000.00 21,160,887.65 21,933,015.52 0250
INTL BK RECON & DEVELP 05/13/2021 15,000,000.00 14,849,400.00 15,240,285.71 1.876
INTL BK RECON & DEVELP 05/13/2021 15,000.000.00 14,520,300.00 15,335.388.61 1.500

58,600,036.20 58,035,000.00 56,466,361 .20 58,584,592.35

1254714041 NFY2

Municipal Bonds

Capital One Multi-Asset

Subtotal and Average 194,973.13

11/30/2021 195,000.00 184,150.20 194,973.13 1.040 N/A AAA 1.047 11/16/2026

195,000.00 184,150.20 194,973.13 1.047

California Earthquake Authorit 11/24/2020 55,000 00 53,968.20 55,000.00 1.477
Los Angeles CCD 11/10/2020 100,000.00 92,191.00 100,000.00 0.773
Los Angeles Unified SD 11/10/2021 80,000.00 73,298.40 80,000.00 1.455
NJ TPK AUTH-B-TXBL 02/04/2021 55,000.00 51,519.05 55,000.00 0.897
NY ST Urban 12/23/2020 270,000.00 251,356.50 270,000.00 0.870
SAN JUAN CA UNIF SCH 10/29/2020 55,000.00 50,663.80 55,000.00 0.852
SAN JUAN CA UNIF SCH 10/29/2020 60,000.00 56,686.80 60,000.00 0.702
State of Maryland 08/05/2020 110,000.00 104,160.10 109,983.91 0.510
University of California 07/16/2020 55,000.00 51,140.10 55,000.00 0.933
Wisconsin St Transport 07/30/2020 140,000.00 130,060.00 140,000.00 0.774
Wisconsin St Transport 07/30/2020 140,000.00 132,911.80 140,000.00 0.624

1,119,983.60 1,120,000.00 1,047,955.75 1,119,983.91Subtotal and Average

Total and Average 2,625,178,021.00 2,713,566,160.05 2,638,757,892.58 2,705,970,312.84

PGUSD Regular Meeting of September 1, 2022 49

CONSENT G



Exhibit C
Monterey County
Aging Summary
By Maturity Date

As of July 1, 2022

-a

$800,000,000

$700,000,000

$600,000,000

$500,000,000

$400,000,. I.

$300,000,...

$200,000,...

$100,000,000

Investments within the Aging Period

$738,407,247

366-730 days
Maturity Par Value

$555,013,777

$223,852,258

$3,158,050

731- 1095 days 1096- 1460 days 1461 days and after

MaturIty Percent Current Current
Par Value of Portfolio Book Value Market Value

Aging Interval: 0 days ( 0710112022 - 0710112022) 10 Maturities 527,063,160.05 19.48% 527,063,160.05 527,063,160.05

Aging Interval: 1 -90 days ( 07i02/2022 - 09129I2022) 6 Maturities 156,761,431.23 5.79% 156,659,740.41 156,212,547.50

Aging Interval: 91 - 365 days ( 0913012022-0710112023) 36 Maturities 509,310,237.15 18.80% 508,699,428.12 502,237,099.80

Aging Interval: 366 - 730 days ( 07/02/2023 -0613012024) 80 Maturities 738,407,247.45 27.31% 738,966,978.73 712,349,305.15

Aging Interval: 731 -1095 days ( 07/02/2024. 0613012025) 77 Maturities 555,013,776.62 20.54% 555,841,849.11 531,655,904.85

Aging Interval: 1096- 1460 days ( 07/01/2025 -06130/2026) 34 Maturities 223,852,257.76 7.96% 215,453,608.87 206,057,563.38

Aging Interval: 1461 days and after (07/01/2026. 16 Maturities 3,158,049.78 0.12% 3,285,547.55 3,182,311.85

Total for 259 Investments 2,713,566,160.04 100.00 2,705,970,312.84 2,638,757,892.58

Odays 1-OOdays 91-365days

-a

—1 PGUSD Regular Meeting of September 1, 2022 50

CONSENT G



☐Student Learning and Achievement 
☐Health and Safety of Students and Schools 
☐Credibility and Communication 
☒Fiscal Solvency, Accountability and Integrity 
 

☒Consent  
☐Action/Discussion 
☐Information/Discussion 
☐Public Hearing 

 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
SUBJECT: Cash Receipts Report No. #2 
 
DATE:  September 1, 2022 
 
PERSON(S) RESPONSIBLE: Song Chin-Bendib, Assistant Superintendent for Business Services 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
As Assistant Superintendent for Business Services, I have reviewed the receipt and deposit of the 
identified Cash Receipts for consistency with District policies and procedures and certify that the actions 
have been appropriately conducted. I recommend Board approval of the Cash Receipts. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
The attached listing identifies Cash Receipts received by the District during the period of  
from August 10, 2022 to August 22, 2022. 
 
INFORMATION: 
 
The receipt and deposit of the identified funds were conducted consistent with District policies and 
procedures within the appropriate revenue accounts. 
 
 
 
 

PGUSD Regular Meeting of September 1, 2022 51

CONSENT H



Date Num Name Account Amount

Aug 10 - 22, 22
08/11/2022 21236 STATE OF CALIFORNIA SP ED 3,126.87
08/11/2022 21237 Intercare Holding Insurance WORKERSCOMP 1,656.16
08/11/2022 21238 RETIREE INSURANCE RETIREE INSURANCE 1,783.00
08/12/2022 21239 Monterey County Clerk MISC 50.00
08/12/2022 21240 PGHS DONATION TO HS 635.00
08/15/2022 21241 ADULT EDUCATION ADULT EDUCATION 1,400.00
08/15/2022 21242 Robert Down Elementary DONATION/FEES 620.00
08/15/2022 21243 MBCS/Monterey Bay Charter School UTILITIES 3,233.19
08/15/2022 21244 STATE OF CALIFORNIA CAFETERIA 149.22
08/15/2022 21245 RETIREE INSURANCE RETIREE INSURANCE 411.00
08/17/2022 21246 STATE OF CALIFORNIA CAFETERIA 2,737.50
08/17/2022 21247 PGHS-TEXTBOOKS TEXT BOOK FEES 725.00

Aug 10 - 22, 22 16,526.94

PGUSD
2022-23 BOARD REPORT # 2 Cash Receipts

August 10, 2022 - August 22, 2022

PGUSD Regular Meeting of September 1, 2022 52

CONSENT H



☐Student Learning and Achievement 
☒Health and Safety of Students and Schools 
☐Credibility and Communication 
☒Fiscal Solvency, Accountability, and Integrity 
 

☒Consent  
☐Action/Discussion 
☐Information/Discussion 
☐Public Hearing 

 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
SUBJECT:   Otto Construction Wood Rot Repair at Monterey Bay Charter School 
 
DATE:   September 1, 2022 
 
PERSON(S) RESPONSIBLE: Jon Anderson, Director of Facilities and Transportation 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
The District Administration recommends the Board review and approve the Otto Construction change 
order for wood rot repair at Monterey Bay Charter School.  
  
BACKGROUND:  
 
During the tenure of the Interim Director of Facilities & Transportation verbal authorization was made to 
Otto Construction to repair wood rot at the Monterey Bay Charter School. 
 
INFORMATION: 
 
The wood rot at Monterey Bay Charter School was discovered during the Measure D roofing project. The 
verbal authorization to repair this was made under the Otto Construction Time and Material contract that 
was Board approved at the March 17,2022 regular meeting. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
 
Additional $15,895.00 to the Monterey Bay Charter School Measure D roofing project.  
 
 
 
 

 

PGUSD Regular Meeting of September 1, 2022 53

CONSENT I



Change Order 
 

Pacific Grove Unified School District 
435 Hillcrest Avenue 
Pacific Grove, CA  93950 
(831) 646-6510 

Date: August 25, 2022 
Contractor:  Otto Construction 
Project Name:  Monterey Bay Charter School  
Change Order Number: 001 

 
Original Contract Date: April 18, 2022 
 

You are directed to make the following changes in this contract: 
Perform roof dry rot repairs. To include removal and replacement of rotted wood in like kind and 
materials.  Wood rot repairs are items of discovery and are immediately required to maintain critical 
path and schedule of roof work.       
 
The original contract sum was:       $21,000.00 

Net amount of previous change orders:      $0.00 

Total original contract amount plus or minus change orders:    $21,000.00 

Total amount of this change order:       $15,895.00 

The contract time will be changed by the following number of construction days: Not Applicable 

The date of completion as of the date of this change order:      

 

Contractor:      Owner: 

Otto Construction  Allison Otto 
Company Name      Name 

2150 Garden Rd, Suite A1  2150 Garden Rd, Suite A1 
Address       Address 

Monterey, CA 93940  Monterey, CA 93940 
City, State, Zip      City, State, Zip 

   
Date       Date 

 

   
Signature       Signature 

PGUSD Regular Meeting of September 1, 2022 54

CONSENT I



PGUSD Regular Meeting of September 1, 2022 55

CONSENT I



PGUSD Regular Meeting of September 1, 2022 56

CONSENT I



PGUSD Regular Meeting of September 1, 2022 57

CONSENT I



PGUSD Regular Meeting of September 1, 2022 58

CONSENT I



PGUSD Regular Meeting of September 1, 2022 59

CONSENT I



PGUSD Regular Meeting of September 1, 2022 60

CONSENT I



PGUSD Regular Meeting of September 1, 2022 61

CONSENT I



PGUSD Regular Meeting of September 1, 2022 62

CONSENT I



PGUSD Regular Meeting of September 1, 2022 63

CONSENT I



☐Student Learning and Achievement 
☒Health and Safety of Students and Schools 
☐Credibility and Communication 
☐Fiscal Solvency, Accountability and Integrity 
 

☒Consent  
☐Action/Discussion 
☐Information/Discussion 
☐Public Hearing 

 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
SUBJECT: Contract for Services with Pacific West Water Purification, Inc. 
 
DATE:   September 1, 2022 
 
PERSON(S) RESPONSIBLE: Sean Keller, Robert H. Down Elementary Principal 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
The District Administration recommends the Board review and approve the contract for services with 
Pacific West Water Purification, Inc. for Robert H. Down (RHD) Elementary School. 
  
BACKGROUND:  
 
Robert H. Down Elementary School encourages students to bring water bottles to school and offers 
filtered water to students and staff in the cafeteria and health clerk’s office (formerly the RHD teacher’s 
breakroom). Due to COVID-19 protocols, water fountains at RHD have been shut off and there are no 
other drinking water sources available on campus.  
 
INFORMATION: 
 
Pacific West Water Purification Inc. has been servicing the RHD’s water filters for several years. The 
contract for services is for the maintenance and service for three (3) years until June 2023. The contract 
includes retroactive service from 2020 as the invoice was not presented to RHD until August 1, 2022. 
The next contract term will begin July 2023 and commence June 2026.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
 
Paid from RHD site funds. 
$1,275.00 total cost for three years (July 2020-July 2023)  
$1,275.00 total cost for three years (July 2023-July 2026)  
 
 
 
 

PGUSD Regular Meeting of September 1, 2022 64

CONSENT J



PACIFIC GROVE UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
INDEPENDENT CONSULTANT AGREEMENT 

 

CONSULTANT  Pacific West Water Purification, Inc. 

SITE/DEPARTMENT  Robert H. Down Elementary School  

SUBMITTED BY  Sean Keller 

FUNDING SOURCE   Site Funds 

AGREEMENT TOTAL AMOUNT   $1,275.00 (2020-2023 contract) and $1,275.00 (2023-2026 contract) 

 
 
The District employee providing the attached Independent Consultant Agreement to the person or entity 
who will be providing special services to the District should first do the following:  
 

1. Provide only the Pacific Grove Unified School District’s approved Independent Consultant 
Agreement. The Independent Consultant Agreement should be completed in lieu of signing any 
vendor contract for services.  

2. Review the insurance requirements for the person or entity and revise the insurance provisions of 
the agreement accordingly.  

3. Review the forms under Section 20 and determine which of those documents should be attached 
to the agreement.  

 
This Independent Consultant Agreement for Special Services (“Agreement”) is made between the Pacific 
Grove Unified School District (“District”) and Pacific West Water Purification, Inc. (“Consultant”) 
(together, “Parties”).  
 
WHEREAS, the District is authorized by Section 53060 of the California Government Code to contract 
with and employ any persons for the furnishing of special services and advice in financial, economic, 
accounting, engineering, legal, transportation, administrative matters or other specialized services, if 
those persons are specially trained and experienced and competent to perform the special services 
required; and  
 
WHEREAS, the District is in need of those services and/or advice; and  
 
WHEREAS, the Consultant is specially trained and experienced and competent to perform the services 
required by the District, and those services are needed on a limited basis;  
NOW, THEREFORE, the Parties agree as follows:  
 
1. Services and/Scope of work. The Consultant shall furnish to the District the following services 

herein by this reference (“Services” or “Work”): Consultant shall serve as a water purification service. 
Consultant shall use their specialized experience and skills to organize, maintain to serve in this 
capacity.  Services shall include but not be limited to: Maintain and service the water filtration system 
at Robert H. Down Elementary School. 

 
2. Term. Consultant shall commence providing services under this Agreement on 7/1/2020, and will 

diligently perform as required and complete performance by 6/30/2023. The term for the renewal of 
this contract is 7/1/2023 thru 6/30/2026. 

 
3. Compensation. District agrees to pay $1,275.00 (2020-2023 contract) and $1,275.00 (2023-2026 

contract) to Consultant for Services satisfactorily rendered pursuant to this Agreement. This is not to 
exceed $1,275.00 (2020-2023 contract) and $1,275.00 (2023-2026 contract) during the term of this 
Agreement. District shall pay Consultant according to the following terms and conditions: 

PGUSD Regular Meeting of September 1, 2022 65

CONSENT J



3.1. Payment for the Services shall be made for all undisputed amounts in installment payments 
within thirty (30) days after the Consultant submits an invoice to the District for Services actually 
completed. 
 

4. Expenses. District shall not be liable to Consultant for any costs or expenses paid or incurred by 
Consultant in performing Services for District.  

 
5. Independent Consultant. Consultant, in the performance of this Agreement, shall be and act as an 

Independent Consultant. Consultant understands and agrees that he/she shall not be considered an 
officer, employee, agent, partner, or joint venture of the District, and is not entitled to benefits of any 
kind or nature normally provided employees of the District and/or to which District's employees are 
normally entitled, including, but not limited to, State Unemployment Compensation or Worker's 
Compensation. Consultant shall assume full responsibility for payment of all federal, state and local 
taxes or contributions, including unemployment insurance, Social Security and income taxes with 
respect to Consultant. In the performance of the Services herein contemplated, Consultant is an 
independent Consultant or business entity, with the sole authority for controlling and directing the 
performance of the details of the Services, District being interested only in the results obtained.  

 
6. Performance of Services.  

6.1. Standard of Care. Consultant represents that Consultant has the qualifications and ability to 
perform the Services in a professional manner, without the advice, control or supervision of the 
District. Consultant's Services will be performed, findings obtained, reports and 
recommendations prepared in accordance with generally and currently accepted principles and 
practices of his/her profession for services to California school districts.  
 

6.2. District Approval. The Services completed herein must meet the approval of the District and 
shall be subject to the District’s general right of inspection and supervision to secure the 
satisfactory completion thereof. 

 
6.3. Licenses. Consultant’s represents that s/he possesses all required licenses to perform the 

Services provided in this Agreement.  
 
7. Termination.  

7.1. Without Cause by District. District may, at any time, with or without reason, terminate this 
Agreement and compensate Consultant only for services satisfactorily rendered to the date of 
termination. Written notice by District shall be sufficient to stop further performance of services 
by Consultant. Notice shall be deemed given when received by the Consultant or no later than 
three days after the day of mailing, whichever is sooner.  

 
7.2. Without Cause by Consultant. Consultant may, upon thirty (30) days’ notice, with or without 

reason, terminate this Agreement. Upon this termination, District shall only be obligated to 
compensate Consultant for services satisfactorily rendered to the date of termination. Written 
notice by Consultant shall be sufficient to stop further performance of services to District. 
Consultant acknowledges that this thirty (30) day notice period is acceptable so that the District 
can attempt to procure the Services from another source.  

 
7.3. With Cause by District. District may terminate this Agreement upon giving of written notice of 

intention to terminate for cause. Cause shall include:  
7.3.1. Material violation of this Agreement by the Consultant; or  
7.3.2. Any act by Consultant exposing the District to liability to others for personal injury or 

property damage.  
Written notice by District shall contain the reasons for such intention to terminate and unless within 
three (3) calendar days after that notice the condition or violation shall cease, or satisfactory 
arrangements for the correction thereof be made, this Agreement shall upon the expiration of the 
three (3) calendar days cease and terminate. In the event of this termination, the District may secure 
the required services from another Consultant. If the expense, fees, and/or costs to the District 

PGUSD Regular Meeting of September 1, 2022 66

CONSENT J



exceeds the cost of providing the services pursuant to this Agreement, the Consultant shall 
immediately pay the excess expense, fees, and/or costs to the District upon the receipt of the 
District’s notice of these expense, fees, and/or costs. The foregoing provisions are in addition to and 
not a limitation of any other rights or remedies available to District.  

 
8. Compliance. Consultant shall, at all times while providing the Services, comply with all federal, state, 

local and District laws, statutes, codes, ordinances, rules, regulations, policies, and requirements, as 
well as all state executive orders and all public health orders regarding student health and safety, 
including but not limited to, policies and procedures related to social distancing, the use of personal 
protective equipment (“PPE”) such as face coverings and gloves, and the sanitization of facilities to 
help prevent the spread of COVID-19 and other contagious diseases. 
 

9. District’s Evaluation of Consultant. The District may evaluate the Consultant’s performance. In no 
event shall an evaluation of Consultant be considered a prerequisite to the District exercising its rights 
under paragraph 7 above.  

 
10. Limitation of District Liability. Other than as provided in this Agreement, District’s financial 

obligations under this Agreement shall be limited to the payment of the compensation provided in this 
Agreement. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, in no event shall District be liable 
to Consultant, regardless of whether any claim is based on contract or tort, for any special, 
consequential, indirect or incidental damages, including, but not limited to, lost profits or revenue, 
arising out of or in connection with this Agreement for the services performed in connection with this 
Agreement.  

 
11. Indemnity.  Consultant shall defend, indemnify, and hold harmless District and its agents, 

representatives, officers, consultants, employees, Board of Trustees, members of the Board of 
Trustees (collectively, the “District Parties”), from and against any and all claims, demands, liabilities, 
damages, losses, suits and actions, and expenses (including, but not limited to attorney fees and 
costs including fees of consultants) of any kind, nature and description (collectively, the “Claims”) 
directly or indirectly arising out of, connected with, or resulting from any act, error, omission, 
negligence, or willful misconduct of Consultant, its agents, subcontractors, employees, material or 
equipment suppliers, invitees, or licensees (collectively, the “Consultant Parties”) in the performance 
of or failure to perform Consultant’s or Consultant Parties’ obligations under this Agreement, 
including, but not limited to Consultant’s or Consultant Parties’ use of District sites, performance of 
the Services, breach of any of the representations or warranties contained in this Agreement, or for 
injury to or death of persons or damage to property or delay or damage to the District or the District 
Parties.  Such obligation shall not be construed to negate, abridge, or reduce other rights or 
obligations of indemnity, which would otherwise exist as to a party, person, or entity described in this 
paragraph. The indemnification provided for in this Section includes, without limitation to the 
foregoing, claims that may be made against District by any taxing authority asserting that an 
employer-employee relationship exists by reason of this Agreement, and any claims made against 
District alleging civil rights violations by Consultant or Consultant Parties under the California Fair 
Employment and Housing Act (“FEHA”). 

 
12. Confidentiality. The Consultant and all Consultant’s agents, personnel, employee(s), and/or Sub-

consultant(s) shall maintain the confidentiality of all information received in the course of performing 
the Services. This requirement to maintain confidentiality shall extend beyond the termination of this 
Agreement. 

  
13. Notice. Any notice required or permitted to be given under this Agreement shall be deemed to have 

been given, served, and received if given in writing and either personally delivered or deposited in the 
United States mail, registered or certified mail, postage prepaid, return receipt required, or sent by 
overnight delivery service, or facsimile transmission, addressed as follows:  

 
 
 

PGUSD Regular Meeting of September 1, 2022 67

CONSENT J



District         Consultant  
 

Pacific Grove Unified School District   Name: Pacific West Water Purification, Inc.   

435 Hillcrest Avenue     Address: P.O. Box GH 

Pacific Grove, CA 93950     City/State/Zip: Pacific Grove, CA 93950 

ATTENTION: Song Chin-Bendib,    Business Phone: (831) 375-5888   

Assistant Superintendent/CBO    Email (Optional): [Company E-mail] 
 

Any notice personally given or sent by facsimile transmission shall be effective upon receipt. Any 
notice sent by overnight delivery service shall be effective the business day next following delivery 
thereof to the overnight delivery service. Any notice given by mail shall be effective three (3) days 
after deposit in the United States mail.  
 

14. Integration/Entire Agreement of Parties. This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between 
the Parties and supersedes all prior discussions, negotiations, and agreements, whether oral or 
written. This Agreement may be amended or modified only by a written instrument executed by both 
Parties.  
 

15. California Law. This Agreement shall be governed by and the rights, duties and obligations of the 
Parties shall be determined and enforced in accordance with the laws of the State of California. The 
Parties further agree that any action or proceeding brought to enforce the terms and conditions of this 
Agreement shall be maintained in Monterey County, California.  

 
16. Waiver. The waiver by either party of any breach of any term, covenant, or condition herein contained 

shall not be deemed to be a waiver of such term, covenant, condition, or any subsequent breach of 
the same or any other term, covenant, or condition herein contained. 

  
17. Severability. If any term, condition or provision of this Agreement is held by a court of competent 

jurisdiction to be invalid, void or unenforceable, the remaining provisions will nevertheless continue in 
full force and effect, and shall not be affected, impaired or invalidated in any way.  

 
18. Attorney Fees/Costs. Should litigation be necessary to enforce any terms or provisions of this 

Agreement, then each party shall bear its own litigation and collection expenses, witness fees, court 
costs and attorney’s fees. 

  
19. Counterparts. This Agreement and all amendments and supplements to it may be executed in 

counterparts, and all counterparts together shall be construed as one document. 
  
20. Incorporation of Recitals and Exhibits. The Recitals and each exhibit attached hereto are hereby 

incorporated herein by reference. 
  
21. Non-Assignability. Consultant may not, without the written permission of the District, use other 

consultants within Consultant’s own firm, or outside experts to perform the services for the District.  
 
22. Fingerprinting. When the Consultant is working directly with students, the Consultant shall not 

commence Services under this Agreement until the Consultant has submitted and the District has 
approved the following document:  

 
☐DOJ Clearance Previously Received  
☐Fingerprinting/Criminal Background Check-Consultant himself/herself 
☒Fingerprinting done by the organization independently (declare under perjury)-   
Consultant’s Employee(s) 
 

PGUSD Regular Meeting of September 1, 2022 68

CONSENT J



 
23. W-9. Consultant has provided a completed:  

☒W-9 Form  
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have executed this Agreement on the date indicated 
below.  
 
Pacific Grove Unified School District     Consultant  
Site representative or Assistant Superintendent   (Can sign BEFORE Board’s approval) 
(Signed AFTER Board approval) 
 

Signature: ____________________________   Signature: _______________________  

Name: Sean Keller   Name: __________________________ 

Title: Robert H. Down Elementary Principal        Date: ___________________________ 

Date: ________________________________ 

 
Human Resources 
(Signed AFTER Board approval) 
 
☐Contracted work was not assigned using District’s normal employment recruitment process.   
Signature          Date     
 Director of Human Resources 
 
Type of Business Entity:  

 ☒Corporation, State  
 ☐Individual  
 ☐Partnership  
 ☐Limited Liability Company  
 ☐Sole Proprietorship  
 ☐Limited Partnership  
 ☐Other: ______________________________  

 
*Federal Code of Regulations sections 6041 and 6209 require non-corporate recipients of $600.00 or 
more to furnish their taxpayer identification number to the payer. The regulations also provide that a 
penalty may be imposed for failure to furnish the taxpayer identification number. In order to comply with 
these regulations, the District requires your federal tax identification number or Social Security number, 
whichever is applicable. 

PGUSD Regular Meeting of September 1, 2022 69

CONSENT J



☒Student Learning and Achievement 
☐Health and Safety of Students and Schools 
☐Credibility and Communication 
☐Fiscal Solvency, Accountability and Integrity 
 

☒Consent  
☐Action/Discussion 
☐Information/Discussion 
☐Public Hearing 

______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
SUBJECT:  Contract for Services with MaryLee Sunseri at Pacific Grove Adult School 
 
DATE:  September 1, 2022 
 
PERSON(S) RESPONSIBLE: Barbara Martinez, Pacific Grove Adult School Principal 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
The District Administration recommends the Board ratify the contract for services with MaryLee Sunseri 
to provide Parent Enrichment classes at Pacific Grove Adult School during the 2022 Summer Session. 
  
BACKGROUND:  
 
Pacific Grove Adult Education provides parent education music enrichment workshops for parents 
enrolled in age related classes.  MaryLee Sunseri’s music workshops have supported the parent education 
classes for many years and have provided parents skills to increase social emotional engagement with 
their children. 
 
INFORMATION: 
 
Adult students will learn songs and rhythmic movement patterns to engage with their babies and toddlers 
which are developmentally specific and lead to the development of speech, language and literacy skills. 
Services are to be provided on the following date(s)  
            1,2,3—Sing with Me: June 27, July 11, 18, 25, Aug 8, 15, 22, 29, Sept 12 
 Wee Chant: June 24, July 1, 8, 15, 22, 29, Aug 12, 19, 26, Sept 2, 9 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 

The contract for services is not to exceed $1,900.00 for the 2022-2023 summer session and is paid for by 
Adult Education (Fund 11) Parents’ Place Donations. 
 
 
 
 

PGUSD Regular Meeting of September 1, 2022 70

CONSENT K



Mary Lee Sunseri 1  
 

Form Effective 8/25/2022 

PACIFIC GROVE UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
INDEPENDENT CONSULTANT AGREEMENT 

 

CONSULTANT  Mary Lee Sunseri 

SITE/DEPARTMENT  Pacific Grove Adult Education  

SUBMITTED BY  Barbara Martinez 

FUNDING SOURCE   Parents’ Place Donation Account 

AGREEMENT TOTAL AMOUNT   $1,900.00 

 
The District employee providing the attached Independent Consultant Agreement to the person or entity 
who will be providing special services to the District should first do the following:  
 

1. Provide only the Pacific Grove Unified School District’s approved Independent Consultant 
Agreement. The Independent Consultant Agreement should be completed in lieu of signing any 
vendor contract for services.  

2. Review the insurance requirements for the person or entity and revise the insurance provisions of 
the agreement accordingly.  

3. Review the forms under Section 20 and determine which of those documents should be attached 
to the agreement.  

 
This Independent Consultant Agreement for Special Services (“Agreement”) is made between the Pacific 
Grove Unified School District (“District”) and Mary Lee Sunseri (“Consultant”) (together, “Parties”).  
 
WHEREAS, the District is authorized by Section 53060 of the California Government Code to contract 
with and employ any persons for the furnishing of special services and advice in financial, economic, 
accounting, engineering, legal, transportation, administrative matters or other specialized services, if 
those persons are specially trained and experienced and competent to perform the special services 
required; and  
 
WHEREAS, the District is in need of those services and/or advice; and  
 
WHEREAS, the Consultant is specially trained and experienced and competent to perform the services 
required by the District, and those services are needed on a limited basis;  
NOW, THEREFORE, the Parties agree as follows:  
 
1. Services and/Scope of work. The Consultant shall furnish to the District the following services 

herein by this reference (“Services” or “Work”): Consultant shall serve as a Parent Enrichment 
Music Instructor. Consultant shall use their specialized experience and skills to organize, maintain 
to serve in this capacity.  Services shall include but not be limited to: Parent Enrichment classes. 

 
2. Term. Consultant shall commence providing services under this Agreement on 6/27/2022, and will 

diligently perform as required and complete performance by 9/12/2022. 
 
3. Compensation. District agrees to pay $1,900.00 to Consultant for Services satisfactorily rendered 

pursuant to this Agreement. This is not to exceed $1,900.00 during the term of this Agreement. 
District shall pay Consultant according to the following terms and conditions:  

 
3.1. Payment for the Services shall be made for all undisputed amounts in installment payments 

within thirty (30) days after the Consultant submits an invoice to the District for Services actually 
completed. 
 

PGUSD Regular Meeting of September 1, 2022 71

CONSENT K



Mary Lee Sunseri 2  
 

Form Effective 8/25/2022 

4. Expenses. District shall not be liable to Consultant for any costs or expenses paid or incurred by 
Consultant in performing Services for District.  

 
5. Independent Consultant. Consultant, in the performance of this Agreement, shall be and act as an 

Independent Consultant. Consultant understands and agrees that he/she shall not be considered an 
officer, employee, agent, partner, or joint venture of the District, and is not entitled to benefits of any 
kind or nature normally provided employees of the District and/or to which District's employees are 
normally entitled, including, but not limited to, State Unemployment Compensation or Worker's 
Compensation. Consultant shall assume full responsibility for payment of all federal, state and local 
taxes or contributions, including unemployment insurance, Social Security and income taxes with 
respect to Consultant. In the performance of the Services herein contemplated, Consultant is an 
independent Consultant or business entity, with the sole authority for controlling and directing the 
performance of the details of the Services, District being interested only in the results obtained.  

 
6. Performance of Services.  

6.1. Standard of Care. Consultant represents that Consultant has the qualifications and ability to 
perform the Services in a professional manner, without the advice, control or supervision of the 
District. Consultant's Services will be performed, findings obtained, reports and 
recommendations prepared in accordance with generally and currently accepted principles and 
practices of his/her profession for services to California school districts.  
 

6.2. District Approval. The Services completed herein must meet the approval of the District and 
shall be subject to the District’s general right of inspection and supervision to secure the 
satisfactory completion thereof. 

 
6.3. Licenses. Consultant’s represents that s/he possesses all required licenses to perform the 

Services provided in this Agreement.  
 
7. Termination.  

7.1. Without Cause by District. District may, at any time, with or without reason, terminate this 
Agreement and compensate Consultant only for services satisfactorily rendered to the date of 
termination. Written notice by District shall be sufficient to stop further performance of services 
by Consultant. Notice shall be deemed given when received by the Consultant or no later than 
three days after the day of mailing, whichever is sooner.  

 
7.2. Without Cause by Consultant. Consultant may, upon thirty (30) days’ notice, with or without 

reason, terminate this Agreement. Upon this termination, District shall only be obligated to 
compensate Consultant for services satisfactorily rendered to the date of termination. Written 
notice by Consultant shall be sufficient to stop further performance of services to District. 
Consultant acknowledges that this thirty (30) day notice period is acceptable so that the District 
can attempt to procure the Services from another source.  

 
7.3. With Cause by District. District may terminate this Agreement upon giving of written notice of 

intention to terminate for cause. Cause shall include:  
7.3.1. Material violation of this Agreement by the Consultant; or  
7.3.2. Any act by Consultant exposing the District to liability to others for personal injury or 

property damage.  
Written notice by District shall contain the reasons for such intention to terminate and unless within 
three (3) calendar days after that notice the condition or violation shall cease, or satisfactory 
arrangements for the correction thereof be made, this Agreement shall upon the expiration of the 
three (3) calendar days cease and terminate. In the event of this termination, the District may secure 
the required services from another Consultant. If the expense, fees, and/or costs to the District 
exceeds the cost of providing the services pursuant to this Agreement, the Consultant shall 
immediately pay the excess expense, fees, and/or costs to the District upon the receipt of the 
District’s notice of these expense, fees, and/or costs. The foregoing provisions are in addition to and 
not a limitation of any other rights or remedies available to District.  

PGUSD Regular Meeting of September 1, 2022 72

CONSENT K



Mary Lee Sunseri 3  
 

Form Effective 8/25/2022 

 
8. Compliance. Consultant shall, at all times while providing the Services, comply with all federal, state, 

local and District laws, statutes, codes, ordinances, rules, regulations, policies, and requirements, as 
well as all state executive orders and all public health orders regarding student health and safety, 
including but not limited to, policies and procedures related to social distancing, the use of personal 
protective equipment (“PPE”) such as face coverings and gloves, and the sanitization of facilities to 
help prevent the spread of COVID-19 and other contagious diseases. 
 

9. District’s Evaluation of Consultant. The District may evaluate the Consultant’s performance. In no 
event shall an evaluation of Consultant be considered a prerequisite to the District exercising its rights 
under paragraph 7 above.  

 
10. Limitation of District Liability. Other than as provided in this Agreement, District’s financial 

obligations under this Agreement shall be limited to the payment of the compensation provided in this 
Agreement. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, in no event shall District be liable 
to Consultant, regardless of whether any claim is based on contract or tort, for any special, 
consequential, indirect or incidental damages, including, but not limited to, lost profits or revenue, 
arising out of or in connection with this Agreement for the services performed in connection with this 
Agreement.  

 
11. Indemnity.  Consultant shall defend, indemnify, and hold harmless District and its agents, 

representatives, officers, consultants, employees, Board of Trustees, members of the Board of 
Trustees (collectively, the “District Parties”), from and against any and all claims, demands, liabilities, 
damages, losses, suits and actions, and expenses (including, but not limited to attorney fees and 
costs including fees of consultants) of any kind, nature and description (collectively, the “Claims”) 
directly or indirectly arising out of, connected with, or resulting from any act, error, omission, 
negligence, or willful misconduct of Consultant, its agents, subcontractors, employees, material or 
equipment suppliers, invitees, or licensees (collectively, the “Consultant Parties”) in the performance 
of or failure to perform Consultant’s or Consultant Parties’ obligations under this Agreement, 
including, but not limited to Consultant’s or Consultant Parties’ use of District sites, performance of 
the Services, breach of any of the representations or warranties contained in this Agreement, or for 
injury to or death of persons or damage to property or delay or damage to the District or the District 
Parties.  Such obligation shall not be construed to negate, abridge, or reduce other rights or 
obligations of indemnity, which would otherwise exist as to a party, person, or entity described in this 
paragraph. The indemnification provided for in this Section includes, without limitation to the 
foregoing, claims that may be made against District by any taxing authority asserting that an 
employer-employee relationship exists by reason of this Agreement, and any claims made against 
District alleging civil rights violations by Consultant or Consultant Parties under the California Fair 
Employment and Housing Act (“FEHA”). 

 
12. Confidentiality. The Consultant and all Consultant’s agents, personnel, employee(s), and/or Sub-

consultant(s) shall maintain the confidentiality of all information received in the course of performing 
the Services. This requirement to maintain confidentiality shall extend beyond the termination of this 
Agreement. 

  
13. Notice. Any notice required or permitted to be given under this Agreement shall be deemed to have 

been given, served, and received if given in writing and either personally delivered or deposited in the 
United States mail, registered or certified mail, postage prepaid, return receipt required, or sent by 
overnight delivery service, or facsimile transmission, addressed as follows:  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

PGUSD Regular Meeting of September 1, 2022 73

CONSENT K



Mary Lee Sunseri 4  
 

Form Effective 8/25/2022 

District         Consultant  
 

Pacific Grove Unified School District   Name: Mary Lee Sunseri   

435 Hillcrest Avenue     Address: 380 Martin Street 

Pacific Grove, CA 93950     City/State/Zip: Monterey, CA 93940 

ATTENTION: Song Chin-Bendib,    Business Phone: (831) 649-1790   

Assistant Superintendent/CBO    Email (Optional): marylee.music@gmail.com 
 

Any notice personally given or sent by facsimile transmission shall be effective upon receipt. Any 
notice sent by overnight delivery service shall be effective the business day next following delivery 
thereof to the overnight delivery service. Any notice given by mail shall be effective three (3) days 
after deposit in the United States mail.  
 

14. Integration/Entire Agreement of Parties. This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between 
the Parties and supersedes all prior discussions, negotiations, and agreements, whether oral or 
written. This Agreement may be amended or modified only by a written instrument executed by both 
Parties.  
 

15. California Law. This Agreement shall be governed by and the rights, duties and obligations of the 
Parties shall be determined and enforced in accordance with the laws of the State of California. The 
Parties further agree that any action or proceeding brought to enforce the terms and conditions of this 
Agreement shall be maintained in Monterey County, California.  

 
16. Waiver. The waiver by either party of any breach of any term, covenant, or condition herein contained 

shall not be deemed to be a waiver of such term, covenant, condition, or any subsequent breach of 
the same or any other term, covenant, or condition herein contained. 

  
17. Severability. If any term, condition or provision of this Agreement is held by a court of competent 

jurisdiction to be invalid, void or unenforceable, the remaining provisions will nevertheless continue in 
full force and effect, and shall not be affected, impaired or invalidated in any way.  

 
18. Attorney Fees/Costs. Should litigation be necessary to enforce any terms or provisions of this 

Agreement, then each party shall bear its own litigation and collection expenses, witness fees, court 
costs and attorney’s fees. 

  
19. Counterparts. This Agreement and all amendments and supplements to it may be executed in 

counterparts, and all counterparts together shall be construed as one document. 
  
20. Incorporation of Recitals and Exhibits. The Recitals and each exhibit attached hereto are hereby 

incorporated herein by reference. 
  
21. Non-Assignability. Consultant may not, without the written permission of the District, use other 

consultants within Consultant’s own firm, or outside experts to perform the services for the District.  
 
22. Fingerprinting. When the Consultant is working directly with students, the Consultant shall not 

commence Services under this Agreement until the Consultant has submitted and the District has 
approved the following document:  

 
☒DOJ Clearance Previously Received  
☐Fingerprinting/Criminal Background Check-Consultant himself/herself 
☐Fingerprinting done by the organization independently (declare under perjury)-   
Consultant’s Employee(s) 
 

PGUSD Regular Meeting of September 1, 2022 74

CONSENT K



Mary Lee Sunseri 5  
 

Form Effective 8/25/2022 

23. W-9. Consultant has provided a completed:  
☒W-9 Form  

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have executed this Agreement on the date indicated 
below.  
 
Pacific Grove Unified School District     Consultant  
Site representative or Assistant Superintendent   (Can sign BEFORE Board’s approval) 
(Signed AFTER Board approval) 
 

Signature: ____________________________   Signature: _______________________  

Name: Barbara Martinez                                     Name: _____________________ 

Title: PG Adult School Principal____________   Date: ___________________________ 

Date: ________________________________ 

 
Human Resources 
(Signed AFTER Board approval) 
 
☐Contracted work was not assigned using District’s normal employment recruitment process.   
Signature          Date     
 Director of Human Resources 
 
Type of Business Entity:  

 ☐Corporation, State  
 ☒Individual  
 ☐Partnership  
 ☐Limited Liability Company  
 ☐Sole Proprietorship  
 ☐Limited Partnership  
 ☐Other: ______________________________  

 
*Federal Code of Regulations sections 6041 and 6209 require non-corporate recipients of $600.00 or 
more to furnish their taxpayer identification number to the payer. The regulations also provide that a 
penalty may be imposed for failure to furnish the taxpayer identification number. In order to comply with 
these regulations, the District requires your federal tax identification number or Social Security number, 
whichever is applicable. 

PGUSD Regular Meeting of September 1, 2022 75

CONSENT K



☐Student Learning and Achievement 
☐Health and Safety of Students and Schools 
☐Credibility and Communication 
☒Fiscal Solvency, Accountability and Integrity 
 

☒Consent  
☐Action/Discussion 
☐Information/Discussion 
☐Public Hearing 

 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
SUBJECT: Pacific Grove High School Equipment and Furniture Disposal  
 
DATE:  September 1, 2022 
 
PERSON(S) RESPONSIBLE: Lito M. Garcia, Pacific Grove High School Principal 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
The District Administration recommends the Board review and approve the disposal of inoperable and 
broken furniture from Pacific Grove High School (PGHS).  
  
BACKGROUND:  
 
The attached list includes various furniture from Pacific Grove High School including broken cabinets 
and student desks that are outdated and/or broken to be disposed of (pictures attached). 
 
INFORMATION: 
 
In an effort to maintain an accurate inventory PGHS is seeking Board approval to dispose the furniture 
which is being stored under the PGHS library. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
 
None 
 
 

PGUSD Regular Meeting of September 1, 2022 76

CONSENT L



 

Pacific Grove Unified School District Surplus Discard Form  School/Site: Pacific Grove High School ___________________       Page:  1 of 1 
 
Check all that apply:   ____ELECTRONIC EQUIPMENT   __x__ FURNITURE ____ SUPPLIES  ____ FIXTURES 
NOT TO BE USED FOR TEXTBOOKS 

 
 

_________Jill Houston_______________    __________________________________________  _____9/1/2022_____ 
PRINT NAME OF PERSON COMPLETING FORM    ADMINISTRATOR’S SIGNATURE     DATE 
 
*** Do not write below this line*** 

Site Library Approval  District Tech Approval Maintenance & Ops Approval Business Office Approval Board Approval 

8/12/2021 

Description/Make 
(brand name & type of equipment) 

Reason for Discard Quantity Working 
 Yes or No 

Month/Year 
Purchased 

Last Function Bar Code or ID Tag  
If over $500 

Model/Serial 
Number 

(sample) 
Dell TX240 Server 

Outdated  yes 1/2000 Office computer 000078943 VX-2652H 

Student Desks Outdated 20 no na Student Desks na na 

Broken cabinets  Broken 5 no na na na na 

Computer desks from music lab Outdated 5 no na Computer 
Desks 

na na 

        

        

        

        

        

        

        

        

        

        

        

        

        

PGUSD Regular Meeting of September 1, 2022 77

CONSENT L



PGHS Discard Items 

         

 

PGUSD Regular Meeting of September 1, 2022 78

CONSENT L



  

☒Student Learning and Achievement 
☐Health and Safety of Students and Schools 
☐Credibility and Communication 
☐Fiscal Solvency, Accountability and Integrity 
 

☒Consent  
☐Action/Discussion 
☐Information/Discussion 
☐Public Hearing 

______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
SUBJECT: Consolidated Application for Federal Funding, Part 1 
 
DATE:   September 1, 2022 
 
PERSON(S) RESPONSIBLE: Buck Roggeman, Director of Curriculum and Special Projects 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
The District Administration recommends the Board approve the 2022-23 Consolidated Application for 
Funding, Part 1 as presented. 
  
BACKGROUND:  
 
The Consolidated application is used by the California Department of Education to distribute categorical 
funds and collect fiscal information. The filing of Part 1 declares the district’s intention to participate in 

the specified categorical programs listed below and to follow the guidelines and requirements of each 
program. Additionally, the California Department of Education uses Part 1 to collect data and determine 
fiscal allocations for programs such as Title I Part A, Title II Teacher quality and Title III Limited English 
Proficient, and Title IV part A Student Support and Academic Enrichment . Information such as the 
percentage of low income and limited English proficient students listed in the School Student Counts 
provides eligibility and ranking information for each site within the district. 
 
INFORMATION: 
 
The Consolidated application must be reviewed by the District English Learner Advisory Committee 
(DELAC). Per Title 5 of the California Code of Regulations Section 11308, if the district has more than 
50 language learners the district must establish a DELAC and involve them in the application for funding 
for programs that serve English Learners. The DELAC met and approved the application. A copy of the 
application is attached. 
To receive ESSA (Every Student Succeeds Act) funding for 2022-2023, the local education agency must 
certify the 2022-2023 application for funding in the consolidated application webpage and provide the 
date when the application was approved by the Board of Trustees. 
This year, we can apply for Title III money because our expected allocation of funds is greater than 
$10,000. 
 

1. Title I Part A (Basic Grant)     $167,452 
2. Title II Part A (Teacher Quality)    $  34,671 
3. Title III English Learner Student Program   $  11,269 
4. Title IV (Student Support and Academic Grant)  $  10,000 

 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: The total Federal entitlement for 2022-2023 is projected to be $223,392. 

PGUSD Regular Meeting of September 1, 2022 79

CONSENT M



California Department of Education 
Pacific Grove Unified (27 66134 0000000) 

Consolidated Application 
Status: Certified 

Saved by: Buck Roggeman 
Date: 8/11/2022 11 :30 AM 

2022-23 Certification of Assurances 
Submission of Certification of Assurances is required every fiscal year. A complete list of legal and program 
assurances for the fiscal year can be found at https://www.cde.ca.gov/fg/aa/co/ca21 assurancestoc.asp. 

CDE Program Contact: 
Consolidated Application Support Desk, Education Data Office, ConAppSupport@cde.ca.gov, 916-319-0297 

Consolidated Application Certification Statement 
I hereby certify that all of the applicable state and federal rules and regulations will be observed by this applicant; 
that to the best of my knowledge the information contained in this application is correct and complete; and I 
agree to participate in the monitoring process regarding the use of these funds according to the standards and 
criteria set forth by the California Department of Education Federal Program Monitoring (FPM) Office. Legal 
assurances for all programs are accepted as the basic legal condition for the operation of selected projects and 
programs and copies of assurances are retained on site. I certify that we accept all assurances except for those 
for which a waiver has been obtained or requested. A copy of all waivers or requests is on file. I certify that actual 
ink signatures for this form are on file. 

Authorized Representative's Full Name 

Authorized Representative's Signature 

Authorized Representative's Title 

Buck Roggeman 

m and Special 
Projects 

Authorized Representative's Signature Date 08/11/2022 

Report Date:8/25/2022 

***Warning*** 
The data in this report may be protected by the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA) and 

other applicable data privacy laws. Unauthorized access or sharing of this data may constitute a 
violation of both state and federal law. 

R02 
Page 1 of 6 

PGUSD Regular Meeting of September 1, 2022 80

CONSENT M



California Department of Education 
Pacific Grove Unified (27 66134 0000000) 

Consolidated Application 
Status: Certified 

Saved by: Buck Roggeman 
Date: 8/15/2022 10:00 AM 

2022-23 Protected Prayer Certification 
Every Student Succeeds Act (ESSA) Section 8524 specifies federal requirements regarding constitutionally 
protected prayer in public elementary and secondary schools. This form meets the annual requirement and 
provides written certification. 

COE Program Contact: 
Miguel Cordova, Title I Policy, Program, and Support Office, MCordova@cde.ca.gov, 916-319-0381 

Protected Prayer Certification Statement 

The local educational agency (LEA) hereby assures and certifies to the California State Board of Education that 
the LEA has no policy that prevents, or otherwise denies participation in, constitutionally protected prayer in 
public schools as set forth in the "Guidance on Constitutionally Protected Prayer in Public Elementary and 
Secondary Schools." 

The LEA hereby assures that this page has been printed and contains an ink signature. The ink signature copy 
shall be made available to the California Department of Education upon request or as part of an audit, a 
compliance review, or a complaint investigation. 

The authorized representative agrees to the above statement Yes 

Authorized Representative's Full Name Buck Roggeman 

Authorized Representative's Title Director of Curriculum and Special 
Projects 

Authorized Representative's Signature Date /_SA 1 ,}j (-{ /Yu ar ~~/ ~ 1 /2022 
Comment l I 

If the LEA is not able to certify at this time, then an explanation must be 
provided in the comment field. (Maximum 500 characters) 

***Warning*** 
The data in this report may be protected by the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA) and 

other applicable data privacy laws. Unauthorized access or sharing of this data may constitute a 
violation of both state and federal law. Report Date:8/25/2022 

R02 Page 2 of 6 
PGUSD Regular Meeting of September 1, 2022 81

CONSENT M



California Department of Education 
Pacific Grove Unified (27 66134 0000000) 

Consolidated Application 
Status: Certified 

Saved by: Buck Roggeman 
Date: 8/11/2022 11 :32 AM 

2022-23 LCAP Federal Addendum Certification 

CDE Program Contact: 
Local Agency Systems Support Office, LCAPAddendum@cde.ca.gov, 916-323-5233 

Initial Application 
To receive initial funding under the Every Student Succeeds Act (ESSA), a local educational agency (LEA) must 
have a plan approved by the State Educational Agency on file with the State. Within California, LEAs that apply 
for ESSA funds for the first time are required to complete the Local Control and Accountability Plan (LCAP), the 
LCAP Federal Addendum Template (Addendum), and the Consolidated Application (ConApp). The LCAP, in 
conjunction with the Addendum and the ConApp, serve to meet the requirements of the ESSA LEA Plan. 

In order to initially apply for funds, the LEA must certify that the current LCAP has been approved by the local 
governing board or governing body of the LEA. As part of this certification, the LEA agrees to submit the LCAP 
Federal Addendum, that has been approved by the local governing board or governing body of the LEA, to the 
California Department of Education (COE) and acknowledges that the LEA agrees to work with the COE to 
ensure that the Addendum addresses all required provisions of the ESSA programs for which they are applying 
for federal education funds. 

Returning Application 
If the LEA certified a prior year LCAP Federal Addendum Certification data collection form in the Consolidated 
Application and Reporting System, then the LEA may use in this form the same original approval or adoption 
date used in the prior year form. 

County Office of Education (COE) or District 08/16/2019 

For a COE, enter the original approval date as the day the COE approved 
the current LCAP. For a district, enter the original approval date as the day 
the COE approved the current LCAP 
Direct Funded Charter 

Enter the adoption date of the current LCAP 

Authorized Representative's Full Name Buck Roggeman 

Authorized Representative's Title Director of Curriculum and Special 
Projects 

Report Date:8/25/2022 

***Warning*** 
The data in this report may be protected by the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA) and 

other applicable data privacy laws. Unauthorized access or sharing of this data may constitute a 
violation of both state and federal law. 

R02 Page 3 of 6 
PGUSD Regular Meeting of September 1, 2022 82

CONSENT M



California Department of Education 
Pacific Grove Unified (27 66134 0000000) 

Consolidated Application 
Status: Certified 

Saved by: Buck Roggeman 
Date: 8/15/2022 10:00 AM 

2022-23 Application for Funding 

CDE Program Contact: 
Consolidated Application Support Desk, Education Data Office, ConAppSupport@cde.ca.gov, 916-319-0297 

Local Governing Board Approval 
The local educational agency (LEA) is required to review and receive approval of their Application for Funding 
selections with their local governing board. 

By checking this box the LEA certifies that the Local Board has approved 
the Application for Funding for the listed fiscal year 

Yes 

District English Learner Advisory Committee Review 
Per Title 5 of the California Code of Regulations Section 11308, if your LEA has more than 50 English learners, 
then the LEA must establish a District English Learner Advisory Committee (DELAC) which shall review and 
advise on the development of the application for funding programs that serve English learners. 

By checking this box the LEA certifies that parent input has been received 
from the District English Learner Committee (if applicable) regarding the 
spending of Title Ill funds for the listed fiscal year 

Yes 

Application for Categorical Programs 
To receive specific categorical funds for a school year, the LEA must apply for the funds by selecting Yes below. 
Only the categorical funds that the LEA is eligible to receive are displayed. 

Title I, Part A (Basic Grant) Yes 

ESSA Sec. 1111 et seq. 
SACS 3010 
Title II, Part A (Supporting Effective Instruction) Yes 

ESEA Sec. 2104 
SACS 4035 
Title Ill English Learner Yes 

ESEA Sec. 3102 
SACS 4203 
Title Ill Immigrant No 

ESEA Sec. 3102 
SACS 4201 
Title IV, Part A (Student and School Support) Yes 

ESSA Sec. 4101 
SACS 4127 

Report Date:8/25/2022 

***Warning*** 
The data in this report may be protected by the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA) and 

other applicable data privacy laws. Unauthorized access or sharing of this data may constitute a 
violation of both state and federal law. 

R02 
Page 4 of 6 

PGUSD Regular Meeting of September 1, 2022 83

CONSENT M



California Department of Education 
Pacific Grove Unified (27 66134 0000000) 

Consolidated Application 
Status: Certified 

Saved by: Buck Roggeman 
Date: 8/25/2022 4:29 PM 

2022-23 Title Ill English Learner Student Program Subgrant Budget 
The purpose of this data collection form is to provide a proposed budget for English learner (EL) Student 
Program Subgrant funds only per the Title Ill English Learner Students Program requirements (ESSA, Sections 
3114, 3115, & 3116). 

CDE Program Contact: 
Geoffrey Ndirangu, Language Policy and Leadership Office, GNdirang@cde.ca.gov, 916-323-5831 

Estimated Allocation Calculation 
Estimated English learner per student allocation $125.10 

Estimated English learner student count 90 

Estimated English learner student program allocation $11,259 

Note: $10,000 minimum program eligibility criteria 
If the local educational agency's estimated English learner student program allocation is less than $10,000, then 
it does not meet the minimum program eligibility criteria for direct funding status and requires further action. To 
receive instructions regarding the consortium application process, please go to the California Department of 
Education Title Ill EL Consortium Details web page at https://www.cde.ca.gov/sp/el/t3/elconsortium.asp. 

Budget 
Professional development activities $2,000 

Program and other authorized activities $7,500 

English Proficiency and Academic Achievement $1,000 

Parent, family, and community engagement $534 

Direct administrative costs $225 

(Amount cannot exceed 2% of the estimated English learner student 
program allocation) 
Indirect costs $0 

(LEA can apply its approved indirect rate to the portion of the subgrant that 
is not reserved for direct administrative costs) 
Total budget $11,259 

Report Date:8/25/2022 

***Warning*** 
The data in this report may be protected by the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA) and 

other applicable data privacy laws. Unauthorized access or sharing of this data may constitute a 
violation of both state and federal law. 

R02 
Page 5 of 6 

PGUSD Regular Meeting of September 1, 2022 84

CONSENT M



California Department of Education 
Pacific Grove Unified (27 66134 0000000) 

Consolidated Application 
Status: Certified 

Saved by: Buck Roggeman 
Date: 8/11/2022 11 :32 AM 

2022-23 Substitute System for Time Accounting 
This certification may be used by auditors and by California Department of Education oversight personnel when 
conducting audits and sub-recipient monitoring of the substitute time-and-effort system. Approval is automatically 
granted when the local educational agency {LEA) submits and certifies this data collection. 

CDE Program Contact: 
Hilary Thomson, Fiscal Oversight and Support Office, HThomson@cde.ca.gov, 916-323-0765 

The LEA certifies that only eligible employees will participate in the substitute system and that the system used to 
document employee work schedules includes sufficient controls to ensure that the schedules are accurate. 

Detailed information on documenting salaries and wages, including both substitute systems of time accounting, 
are described in Procedure 905 of the California School Accounting Manual posted on the web at 
https://www.cde.ca.gov/fg/ac/sa/. 

2022-23 Request for authorization Yes 

LEA certifies that the following is a full disclosure of any known No deficiencies. 
deficiencies with the substitute system or known challenges with 
implementing the system 
(Maximum 500 characters) 

***Warning*** 
The data in this report may be protected by the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA) and 

other applicable data privacy laws. Unauthorized access or sharing of this data may constitute a 
violation of both state and federal law. Report Date:8/25/2022 R02 Page 6 of 6 

PGUSD Regular Meeting of September 1, 2022 85

CONSENT M



:alifornia Department of Education 
acific Grove Unified (27 66134 0000000) 

Consolidated Application 
Status: Certified 

Saved by: Buck Roggeman 
Date: 8/15/2022 10:01 AM 

2022-23 Nonprofit Private School Consultation 

'he local educational agency shall provide, on an equitable basis, special education services or other benefits to address the needs of eligible children and staff 
mrolled in nonprofit private elementary and secondary schools under the programs listed below. 

:DE Program Contact: 
ylvia Hanna, Title I Policy, Program, and Support Office,SHanna@cde.ca.gov, 916-319-0948 
'ina DeRose, Title I Policy, Program, and Support Office, RDeRose@cde.ca.gov, 916-323-0472 

1 accordance with the Every Student Succeeds Act (ESSA) sections 1117 and 8501, 
local educational agency shall consult annually with appropriate private school 
fficials and both shall have the goal of reaching agreement on how to provide 
quitable and effective programs for eligible private school children, teachers, and 
smilies. This applies to programs under Title I, Part A; Title I, Part C; Title II, Part A; 
ltle 111, Part A; Title IV, Part A; Title IV, Part B; and section 4631, with regard to the 
'roject School Emergency Response to Violence Program (Project SERV). 

he enrollment numbers are reported under penalty of perjury by each private school 
n its annual Private School Affidavit. The information in the Private School Affidavit 
; not verified, and the California Department of Education takes no position as to its 
ccuracy. It is expected that districts engaged in private school consultation verify the 
ccuracy of student enrollment data and the tax exempt status if it is being used for 
1e purpose of providing equitable services. 
'rivate School's Believed Results of Consultation Allowable Codes 

·1: meaningful consultation occurred 
'2: timely and meaningful consultation did not occur 
·3: the program design is not equitable with respect to eligible private school children 

·4: timely and meaningful consultation did not occur and the program design is not 
quitable with respect to eligible private school children 
.dd non-attendance area school(s) 

he local educational agency is electing to add nonprofit private schools outside of 
1e district's attendance area. 

No 

1P.nnrt n;:itP.·8/?!'>/?0?? 

***Warning*** 
The data in this report may be protected by the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA) and 

other applicable data privacy laws. Unauthorized access or sharing of this data may constitute a 
violation of both state and federal law. 

RO? P;:inP. 1 nf ~ 
PGUSD Regular Meeting of September 1, 2022 86

CONSENT M



:alifornia Department of Education 
acific Grove Unified (27 66134 0000000) 

Consolidated Application 
Status: Certified 

Saved by: Buck Roggeman 
Date: 8/15/2022 10:01 AM 

2022-23 Nonprofit Private School Consultation 

'he local educational agency shall provide, on an equitable basis, special education services or other benefits to address the needs of eligible children and staff 
lled in nonprofit private elementary and secondarv schools under the oroqrarns listed bel 

School Name School Code Enrollment Consultation Was Signed Consultation Code School Added 
Occurred Consultation Written 

Agreement Met Mfirmation on 
File 

'Annrt n::itp·R/?~/?n?? 

***Warning*** 
The data in this report may be protected by the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA) and 

other applicable data privacy laws. Unauthorized access or sharing of this data may constitute a 
violation of both state and federal law. 

RO~ P::inA? nf ~ 

PGUSD Regular Meeting of September 1, 2022 87

CONSENT M



☐Student Learning and Achievement 
☒Health and Safety of Students and Schools 
☐Credibility and Communication 
☐Fiscal Solvency, Accountability and Integrity 
 

☒Consent  
☐Action/Discussion 
☐Information/Discussion 
☐Public Hearing 

 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
SUBJECT:  Contract Services with Open Parachute Social Emotional Curriculum 
 
DATE:   September 1, 2022 
 
PERSON(S) RESPONSIBLE: Sean Roach, Pacific Grove Middle School Principal 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
The District Administration recommends the Board review and approve the contract for services with 
Open Parachute Social Emotional Curriculum and Pacific Grove Middle School (PGMS). 
  
BACKGROUND:  
In 2021, PGMS was awarded the CalHope Grant to pilot and report methods of meeting the social 
emotional needs of students through a variety of programs, events, curriculum and the like. PGMS was 
awarded the sum of $55,000 to be used over a three (3) year period, with the results to be shared with the 
state board of education. 
 
INFORMATION: 
As a result of stakeholder input regarding the SEL Smartie goals, Open Parachute was identified as a 
strong social emotional curriculum that would be delivered during weekly advisory classes. This program 
strengthens and expands the Character Strong curriculum in teaching ways for students to deal with 
anxiety, stress, peer pressure and depression. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
The contract is to be paid by the CalHope one-time funds of $55,000. This program is in support of the 
PGMS SMARTIE goals in support of student social emotional health. 
 

PGUSD Regular Meeting of September 1, 2022 88

CONSENT N



 

Open Parachute 1  
 

Form Effective 8/25/2022 

PACIFIC GROVE UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
INDEPENDENT CONSULTANT AGREEMENT 

 

CONSULTANT  Open Parachute 

SITE/DEPARTMENT  Carly Adams  

SUBMITTED BY  Sean Roach 

FUNDING SOURCE   Pacific Grove Middle School Chapman & CalHope Grants 

AGREEMENT TOTAL AMOUNT   $16,150.00 

 
 
The District employee providing the attached Independent Consultant Agreement to the person or entity 
who will be providing special services to the District should first do the following:  
 

1. Provide only the Pacific Grove Unified School District’s approved Independent Consultant 
Agreement. The Independent Consultant Agreement should be completed in lieu of signing any 
vendor contract for services.  

2. Review the insurance requirements for the person or entity and revise the insurance provisions of 
the agreement accordingly.  

3. Review the forms under Section 20 and determine which of those documents should be attached 
to the agreement.  

 
This Independent Consultant Agreement for Special Services (“Agreement”) is made between the Pacific 
Grove Unified School District (“District”) and Open Parachute (“Consultant”) (together, “Parties”).  
 
WHEREAS, the District is authorized by Section 53060 of the California Government Code to contract 
with and employ any persons for the furnishing of special services and advice in financial, economic, 
accounting, engineering, legal, transportation, administrative matters or other specialized services, if 
those persons are specially trained and experienced and competent to perform the special services 
required; and  
 
WHEREAS, the District is in need of those services and/or advice; and  
 
WHEREAS, the Consultant is specially trained and experienced and competent to perform the services 
required by the District, and those services are needed on a limited basis;  
NOW, THEREFORE, the Parties agree as follows:  
 
1. Services and/Scope of work. The Consultant shall furnish to the District the following services 

herein by this reference (“Services” or “Work”): Consultant shall serve as a online educational 
curriculum service. Consultant shall use their specialized experience and skills to organize, 
maintain to serve in this capacity.  Services shall include but not be limited to: providing online web-
based application with video-based educational curriculum services. 

 
2. Term. Consultant shall commence providing services under this Agreement on 8/25/2022, and will 

diligently perform as required and complete performance by 7/31/2025. 
 
3. Compensation. District agrees to pay $16,150.00 to Consultant for Services satisfactorily rendered 

pursuant to this Agreement. This is not to exceed $16,150.00 during the term of this Agreement. 
District shall pay Consultant according to the following terms and conditions:  

 

PGUSD Regular Meeting of September 1, 2022 89

CONSENT N



 

Open Parachute 2  
 

Form Effective 8/25/2022 

3.1. Payment for the Services shall be made for all undisputed amounts in installment payments 
within thirty (30) days after the Consultant submits an invoice to the District for Services actually 
completed. 
 

4. Expenses. District shall not be liable to Consultant for any costs or expenses paid or incurred by 
Consultant in performing Services for District.  

 
5. Independent Consultant. Consultant, in the performance of this Agreement, shall be and act as an 

Independent Consultant. Consultant understands and agrees that he/she shall not be considered an 
officer, employee, agent, partner, or joint venture of the District, and is not entitled to benefits of any 
kind or nature normally provided employees of the District and/or to which District's employees are 
normally entitled, including, but not limited to, State Unemployment Compensation or Worker's 
Compensation. Consultant shall assume full responsibility for payment of all federal, state and local 
taxes or contributions, including unemployment insurance, Social Security and income taxes with 
respect to Consultant. In the performance of the Services herein contemplated, Consultant is an 
independent Consultant or business entity, with the sole authority for controlling and directing the 
performance of the details of the Services, District being interested only in the results obtained.  

 
6. Performance of Services.  

6.1. Standard of Care. Consultant represents that Consultant has the qualifications and ability to 
perform the Services in a professional manner, without the advice, control or supervision of the 
District. Consultant's Services will be performed, findings obtained, reports and 
recommendations prepared in accordance with generally and currently accepted principles and 
practices of his/her profession for services to California school districts.  
 

6.2. District Approval. The Services completed herein must meet the approval of the District and 
shall be subject to the District’s general right of inspection and supervision to secure the 
satisfactory completion thereof. 

 
6.3. Licenses. Consultant’s represents that s/he possesses all required licenses to perform the 

Services provided in this Agreement.  
 
7. Termination.  

7.1. Without Cause by District. District may, at any time, with or without reason, terminate this 
Agreement and compensate Consultant only for services satisfactorily rendered to the date of 
termination. Written notice by District shall be sufficient to stop further performance of services 
by Consultant. Notice shall be deemed given when received by the Consultant or no later than 
three days after the day of mailing, whichever is sooner.  

 
7.2. Without Cause by Consultant. Consultant may, upon thirty (30) days’ notice, with or without 

reason, terminate this Agreement. Upon this termination, District shall only be obligated to 
compensate Consultant for services satisfactorily rendered to the date of termination. Written 
notice by Consultant shall be sufficient to stop further performance of services to District. 
Consultant acknowledges that this thirty (30) day notice period is acceptable so that the District 
can attempt to procure the Services from another source.  

 
7.3. With Cause by District. District may terminate this Agreement upon giving of written notice of 

intention to terminate for cause. Cause shall include:  
7.3.1. Material violation of this Agreement by the Consultant; or  
7.3.2. Any act by Consultant exposing the District to liability to others for personal injury or 

property damage.  
Written notice by District shall contain the reasons for such intention to terminate and unless within 
three (3) calendar days after that notice the condition or violation shall cease, or satisfactory 
arrangements for the correction thereof be made, this Agreement shall upon the expiration of the 
three (3) calendar days cease and terminate. In the event of this termination, the District may secure 
the required services from another Consultant. If the expense, fees, and/or costs to the District 

PGUSD Regular Meeting of September 1, 2022 90

CONSENT N



 

Open Parachute 3  
 

Form Effective 8/25/2022 

exceeds the cost of providing the services pursuant to this Agreement, the Consultant shall 
immediately pay the excess expense, fees, and/or costs to the District upon the receipt of the 
District’s notice of these expense, fees, and/or costs. The foregoing provisions are in addition to and 
not a limitation of any other rights or remedies available to District.  

 
8. Compliance. Consultant shall, at all times while providing the Services, comply with all federal, state, 

local and District laws, statutes, codes, ordinances, rules, regulations, policies, and requirements, as 
well as all state executive orders and all public health orders regarding student health and safety, 
including but not limited to, policies and procedures related to social distancing, the use of personal 
protective equipment (“PPE”) such as face coverings and gloves, and the sanitization of facilities to 
help prevent the spread of COVID-19 and other contagious diseases. 
 

9. District’s Evaluation of Consultant. The District may evaluate the Consultant’s performance. In no 
event shall an evaluation of Consultant be considered a prerequisite to the District exercising its rights 
under paragraph 7 above.  

 
10. Limitation of District Liability. Other than as provided in this Agreement, District’s financial 

obligations under this Agreement shall be limited to the payment of the compensation provided in this 
Agreement. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, in no event shall District be liable 
to Consultant, regardless of whether any claim is based on contract or tort, for any special, 
consequential, indirect or incidental damages, including, but not limited to, lost profits or revenue, 
arising out of or in connection with this Agreement for the services performed in connection with this 
Agreement.  

 
11. Indemnity.  Consultant shall defend, indemnify, and hold harmless District and its agents, 

representatives, officers, consultants, employees, Board of Trustees, members of the Board of 
Trustees (collectively, the “District Parties”), from and against any and all claims, demands, liabilities, 
damages, losses, suits and actions, and expenses (including, but not limited to attorney fees and 
costs including fees of consultants) of any kind, nature and description (collectively, the “Claims”) 
directly or indirectly arising out of, connected with, or resulting from any act, error, omission, 
negligence, or willful misconduct of Consultant, its agents, subcontractors, employees, material or 
equipment suppliers, invitees, or licensees (collectively, the “Consultant Parties”) in the performance 
of or failure to perform Consultant’s or Consultant Parties’ obligations under this Agreement, 
including, but not limited to Consultant’s or Consultant Parties’ use of District sites, performance of 
the Services, breach of any of the representations or warranties contained in this Agreement, or for 
injury to or death of persons or damage to property or delay or damage to the District or the District 
Parties.  Such obligation shall not be construed to negate, abridge, or reduce other rights or 
obligations of indemnity, which would otherwise exist as to a party, person, or entity described in this 
paragraph. The indemnification provided for in this Section includes, without limitation to the 
foregoing, claims that may be made against District by any taxing authority asserting that an 
employer-employee relationship exists by reason of this Agreement, and any claims made against 
District alleging civil rights violations by Consultant or Consultant Parties under the California Fair 
Employment and Housing Act (“FEHA”). 

 
12. Confidentiality. The Consultant and all Consultant’s agents, personnel, employee(s), and/or Sub-

consultant(s) shall maintain the confidentiality of all information received in the course of performing 
the Services. This requirement to maintain confidentiality shall extend beyond the termination of this 
Agreement. 

  
13. Notice. Any notice required or permitted to be given under this Agreement shall be deemed to have 

been given, served, and received if given in writing and either personally delivered or deposited in the 
United States mail, registered or certified mail, postage prepaid, return receipt required, or sent by 
overnight delivery service, or facsimile transmission, addressed as follows:  

 
 
 

PGUSD Regular Meeting of September 1, 2022 91

CONSENT N



 

Open Parachute 4  
 

Form Effective 8/25/2022 

District         Consultant  
 

Pacific Grove Unified School District   Name: Open Parachute   

435 Hillcrest Avenue     Address: 145 Fairfax Suite 200 

Pacific Grove, CA 93950     City/State/Zip: Los Angeles, CA 90036  

ATTENTION: Song Chin-Bendib,    Business Phone: (310) 905-6338   

Assistant Superintendent/CBO    Email (Optional): [Company E-mail] 
 

Any notice personally given or sent by facsimile transmission shall be effective upon receipt. Any 
notice sent by overnight delivery service shall be effective the business day next following delivery 
thereof to the overnight delivery service. Any notice given by mail shall be effective three (3) days 
after deposit in the United States mail.  
 

14. Integration/Entire Agreement of Parties. This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between 
the Parties and supersedes all prior discussions, negotiations, and agreements, whether oral or 
written. This Agreement may be amended or modified only by a written instrument executed by both 
Parties.  
 

15. California Law. This Agreement shall be governed by and the rights, duties and obligations of the 
Parties shall be determined and enforced in accordance with the laws of the State of California. The 
Parties further agree that any action or proceeding brought to enforce the terms and conditions of this 
Agreement shall be maintained in Monterey County, California.  

 
16. Waiver. The waiver by either party of any breach of any term, covenant, or condition herein contained 

shall not be deemed to be a waiver of such term, covenant, condition, or any subsequent breach of 
the same or any other term, covenant, or condition herein contained. 

  
17. Severability. If any term, condition or provision of this Agreement is held by a court of competent 

jurisdiction to be invalid, void or unenforceable, the remaining provisions will nevertheless continue in 
full force and effect, and shall not be affected, impaired or invalidated in any way.  

 
18. Attorney Fees/Costs. Should litigation be necessary to enforce any terms or provisions of this 

Agreement, then each party shall bear its own litigation and collection expenses, witness fees, court 
costs and attorney’s fees. 

  
19. Counterparts. This Agreement and all amendments and supplements to it may be executed in 

counterparts, and all counterparts together shall be construed as one document. 
  
20. Incorporation of Recitals and Exhibits. The Recitals and each exhibit attached hereto are hereby 

incorporated herein by reference. 
  
21. Non-Assignability. Consultant may not, without the written permission of the District, use other 

consultants within Consultant’s own firm, or outside experts to perform the services for the District.  
 
22. Fingerprinting. When the Consultant is working directly with students, the Consultant shall not 

commence Services under this Agreement until the Consultant has submitted and the District has 
approved the following document:  

 
☐DOJ Clearance Previously Received  
☐Fingerprinting/Criminal Background Check-Consultant himself/herself 
☒Fingerprinting done by the organization independently (declare under perjury)-   
Consultant’s Employee(s) 
 

PGUSD Regular Meeting of September 1, 2022 92

CONSENT N



 

Open Parachute 5  
 

Form Effective 8/25/2022 

 
23. W-9. Consultant has provided a completed:  

☒W-9 Form  
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have executed this Agreement on the date indicated 
below.  
 
Pacific Grove Unified School District     Consultant  
Site representative or Assistant Superintendent   (Can sign BEFORE Board’s approval) 
(Signed AFTER Board approval) 
 

Signature: ____________________________   Signature: _______________________  

Name: Sean Roach      Name: __________________________ 

Title: Pacific Grove Middle School Principal   Date: ___________________________ 

Date: ________________________________ 

 
Human Resources 
(Signed AFTER Board approval) 
 
☐Contracted work was not assigned using District’s normal employment recruitment process.   
Signature          Date     
 Director of Human Resources 
 
Type of Business Entity:  

 ☒Corporation, State  
 ☐Individual  
 ☐Partnership  
 ☐Limited Liability Company  
 ☐Sole Proprietorship  
 ☐Limited Partnership  
 ☐Other: ______________________________  

 
*Federal Code of Regulations sections 6041 and 6209 require non-corporate recipients of $600.00 or 
more to furnish their taxpayer identification number to the payer. The regulations also provide that a 
penalty may be imposed for failure to furnish the taxpayer identification number. In order to comply with 
these regulations, the District requires your federal tax identification number or Social Security number, 
whichever is applicable. 

PGUSD Regular Meeting of September 1, 2022 93

CONSENT N



1

Pacific Grove 
Middle School
Proposal

July 21, 2022

PGUSD Regular Meeting of September 1, 2022 94

CONSENT N



2

Welcome to 
Open Parachute!

We’re thrilled that you are 
considering joining our 
growing community of 
teachers, students, 
parents/caregivers and 
educational leaders all over 
the globe who have made 
the decision to prioritize 
health and wellness 
education in their school 
communities.

Research tells us that the 
lifelong foundation for 
mental health and well-being 
is laid in our early years. The 
ability to understand our 
emotional needs is an 
essential aspect of our overall 
health that develops in 
childhood and adolescence 

and in adulthood, contributes 
to our well-being, happiness 
and positive functioning. 
Open Parachute is designed 
to promote this social and 
emotional learning in 
students and teachers by 
providing schools with access 
to our video-based lessons 
and professional 
development resources.

This packet will provide you 
with an overview of the Open 
Parachute program and 
detail the resources available 
in our multi-layered support 
package.

PGUSD Regular Meeting of September 1, 2022 95

CONSENT N



3

About Us
The Being Well Model

3

Open Parachute is a multi-resource school well-being 
program. In addition to our comprehensive video-
based student wellness curriculum, we also provide 
your schools with parent/caregiver educational 
content, as well as professional development resources 
for teachers and access to our clinical support team for 
questions and concerns specific to the well-being of 
each participating school.

REFLECTIVE
LEARNING

RELATABLE
RESOURCES

THERAPEUTIC
RESPONSES

From LEARNT
↓

To LIVED

From OVERWHELMING
↓

To EASY

From REACTIVE
↓

To NURTURING

Resilient 
Students

Skilled 
Role-

Models

Confident 
TeachersMental

Health
Resources

• Resilient Students

• Confident Teachers

• Skilled Role-Models

We BELIEVE Inspired Educational 
Leaders CREATE

COURAGEOUS INDEPENDENCE

Coping

PGUSD Regular Meeting of September 1, 2022 96

CONSENT N



4

4

What’s Included

Social Emotional Learning Curriculum

Educator Well-being Pro-D Series

Online Parent Portal

The following breakdown describes the resources & services that are available from K-12:

• Online student Social Emotional Learning programs for Kindergarten to Grade 12
• 30+ weeks of Lesson content
• Over 127 Preprepared lessons, slides, activities, notes, and exercises of classroom content, created by Clinical Psychologists and Educators 
• 1000+ minutes of documentary videos featuring 200+ students
• Online video-based training for teachers on managing risk in their classrooms, working with disengaged students, and improving well-being 

and resilience in all their students 

• Online video-based Professional Development Well-being Course created by Clinical Psychologists and Educators
• Available to all educators
• Including over 10+ hours of prepared videos and exercises to support educator well-being

• Online platform providing Parents with access to their own video-based well-being courses 
• 13 individual Topic areas, featuring 100+ videos and pre-prepared exercises created by Clinical Psychologists
• Short audio recordings to accompany each topic taught in class, to assist parents in reinforcing skills at home
• Available to all parents in your school community 
• Can also be facilitated in group parent-training settings

*Continued on the next pagePGUSD Regular Meeting of September 1, 2022 97

CONSENT N



5

5

Student Well-being Survey Reports

Implementation & Support

Educator Community

• Access for all teachers to our private community of educators running Open Parachute in their classrooms

What’s Included
*Continued

• Individual implementation support for each school
• Dedicated account manager for each school for the contract duration
• Regular check-in’s throughout the year
• Live Chat support for all Teachers available on the Platform
• Additional support via Email or Phone
• Weekly online “office hours” with a Clinical Psychologist available for teachers needing additional support with delivering lessons
• Dedicated Help Center featuring Video-based articles and support for delivering Open Parachute lessons

• Online Surveys are available through our platform to collect anonymous surveys at the beginning and end of the program
• Post-Program Outcomes Report and Wellbeing Analysis can be provided to the school based on these findings
• Exit Ticket surveys can be completed by students after each lesson, providing teachers with learning outcomes for each student

PGUSD Regular Meeting of September 1, 2022 98

CONSENT N



6

6

School-Wide Discount: 5%
Cost: $6,990

Summary of what’s included:

• Social Emotional Learning curriculum featuring 127+ Lessons K-12
• Online video-based training for Educators
• Educator Well-being Course featuring 10+ hours of content
• Video-based resources for parents & caregivers
• Access to all resources via our Online Platform 24/7 On-demand
• Access to support for all teachers via our Live Chat, Email or Phone
• Access for teachers to our private community of educators
• Student well-being survey and outcomes report

Grades: 6,7,8
Students: 445 approximately

Fear/Ignorance

Good Enough

BYSTANDING

TRIAGING

SOOTHING

TRANS-
FORMING

Av
oi

da
nc

e
Re

ac
tio

na
ry

Po
wer

fu
l

In
sig

ht
fu

l

Pricing
Term: Aug 1, 2022 – July 31, 2023

#1. One Year Subscription

Notes

Professional Development Add-on

Online: Zoom 1 hour Training: $1,000
In Person: Full Day Training: $5,500

*Up to 5 sessions per year, focused on any area of student/teacher/parent well-being



7

Student Well-being
SEL Curriculum

Open Parachute will provide your school community with 
comprehensive mental health and wellness lessons for each 
grade that can be easily accessed by teachers via a web 
browser. Our lessons are comprised of video-based 
documentary stories of real youth sharing their own 
experiences as well as group and partner exercises, journal 
reflections and class discussions. The lessons for each grade 
are flexible and can be divided into shorter mini-lessons, 
making the content easy to integrate into diverse classroom 
settings and any existing lesson plans. Teachers are 
encouraged to facilitate student engagement with the 
videos, exercises and discussions which are displayed 
onscreen for their class throughout the lesson. 

“It was really well received by our students. It really 
removed the stigma of talking about mental health 

and wellness and the students really loved it.”



8

Overview of 
Program Topics

Open Parachute lessons are designed to be easily adapted allowing teachers to choose to cover more or less of the lessons in each program 
based on the needs of their classroom and the time they have available. 

Each program contains a series of lessons which can be facilitated in any order consecutively, or as stand alone lessons based on the topics 
most relevant in each classroom throughout the school year.

Please ask us for our Scope & Sequence document which provides a detailed overview of every topic, across all grades.

Grade 12
• Reducing Mental Health Stigma

• Life After High School
• Grief & Addiction

• Overcoming Systemic Racism

• Trauma, Sex & Relationships

Grade 9
• Reducing Mental Health Stigma

• Honesty in Peer Groups
• Boundaries & Consent

• Mental Health & Prejudice

• Living by Your Own Values

• Eating & Body Image Challenges

• Acceptance and Support: LGBTQIA+

Grade 10
• Reducing Mental Health Stigma

• Supporting Each Other
• Respect for Self and Others

• Mental Health & Trauma

• Differing Ability Levels: Inclusion

• Addiction & Consent

• Overcoming Family Violence

Grade 11
• Reducing Mental Health Stigma

• Peer Pressure & Gang Culture
• Empathy & Self-Reflection

• Depression & Prejudice

• Mental Health Empowerment

• Coping with Loss & Grief

• Violations of Consent

Grade 8
• Reducing Mental Health Stigma

• Peer inclusion & Exclusion
• Self-image & Stereotypes

• Healthy Decision-Making

• Understanding Mental Health

• Objectification & Respect 

• New Hurdles: Starting High School

Grade 4-5
• Reducing Mental Health Stigma

• Being a good friend
• Bullying & Addictive Patterns

• Perspective-Taking

• Challenges & Boundaries

Grade 2-3
• Reducing Mental Health Stigma

• Struggle & Joy
• Friendship Challenges

• Bullying & Speaking Out

• Safety & Consent

K-1
• What are Feelings?

• Friendship Challenges
• Anger & Physical Boundaries

• Safety & Consent

Grade 6
• Reducing Mental Health Stigma

• Finding Friends
• Bullying & Prejudice

• Anxiety

• Overcoming Challenges 

• Safety & Support

Grade 7
• Reducing Mental Health Stigma

• Self Esteem
• Understanding & Supporting Others

• Mental Health in Action

• Bullying & Creating Change

• Becoming my Best Self

• Body Safety & Recognizing Abuse 



9

Qualitative & Quantitative 
Data Reports

Every lesson in the Open Parachute program contains an Exit 
Ticket for students. This provides teachers with ongoing data 
on the learning engagement and wellbeing of their students. 
There are also in-built research measures that schools can 
elect to use, that capture information on wellbeing outcomes 
across the school/district.

Your leadership team will be provided with data from Open 
Parachute about the utilization of the program by your 
schools, and the impacts for students and teachers. 

Open Parachute is shaped and informed by the student and 
teacher feedback that we receive. This helps us continue to 
make new content and resources that are relatable to 
students and accessible for teachers. 



10

Research 
Backed

These psychological traditions 
are thoroughly backed by 
research and have 
demonstrated effectiveness as 
interventions that assist youth 
with the development of 
important cognitive skills such 
as emotional awareness, 
resilience and mental health 
literacy (James et al. 2015, 
Bjørnsen et al. 2017, Martinez et 
al. 2021). 

These skills can help youth to 
process adverse experiences 
and lead to improvements in 
the quality of their mental 
health (Feldman et al. 2009).  
In alignment with research on 
youth interventions, the Open 
Parachute lessons are directly 

informed by the 
developmental abilities and 
socio-emotional challenges 
faced at the different ages and 
stages of K-12  students (Nation 
et al. 2003). 

Open Parachute also 
continually engages in 
program development 
research, and schools can elect 
to participate in our in-depth 
analyses of the student, 
teacher, and school culture 
impacts of using our resources 
in your setting. 

Open Parachute is evidence-based and research-informed. 
Our lessons integrate exercises taken from best practices in:

Narrative 
Therapy

Dialectical 
Behavioral Therapy

Cognitive 
Behavioral Therapy

Acceptance & 
Commitment Therapy



11

Professional 
Development & 
Wellness for Teachers

Open Parachute provides participating schools with easily 
accessible and time effective wellness and professional 
development training for teachers. These resources focus on 
the development of skills aimed to help teachers overcome 
common professional challenges such as stress or student 
resistance in the classroom.

We know time is a precious resource for teachers. Our skills-
focused learning is provided in 10-minute video-based teacher 
well-being lessons and training activities that can be accessed 
from anywhere and completed either individually or in a group 
setting.



12

Teacher Training 
Content

• Stress Management

• Setting Boundaries

• Increasing Motivation

• Conflict with Colleagues

• Bullying Intervention

• Personal Struggles 

• Addictive Patterns 

• Student Mental Health

• Resistant Students

• Managing Parents

“I did the first 3 modules of the teacher wellbeing 
program in the staff room and then I noticed that 

teachers were finishing it up on their own and I 
think that was a really great way to start…if you as 

a teacher can connect to it then it’s much easier to 
talk about it in your classroom.” 



Parent Education &
Resources

Open Parachute also 
provides participating 
schools with access to a 
library of caregiver 
education resources and 
content. 

To facilitate parent and 
caregiver involvement, 
families are provided with 
information that offers an 
overview of the Open 
Parachute lessons and what 
students are learning within 
the program.  

The online resources provide 
caregivers with access to 
their own health and 
wellness content that aligns 
with the tools their children 

are learning in class.
These video-based caregiver 
resources are organized by 
age group and cover diverse 
topics such as bullying, 
addiction, and social media. 
They are taught skills for 
building resilience and 
mental health skills in their 
child, so that students are 
also receiving reinforcement 
on this learning from home. 
Caregivers are provided 
access to the full library of 
content regardless of the 
age of their child. 

13

“As a parent, I have been able to take what I have 
learned from the Open Parachute lessons to interact 
with my own children. I feel like I can competently 

and confidently respond to the challenges my 
children are facing in their lives right now.”



14

"Our classrooms are buzzing about Open Parachute. Students 
eagerly participate in the Open Parachute lessons and ask to 
continue with lessons even when the class is over. Students 

recognize themselves in the youths featured in the videos, which 
makes the content more relatable.”

“We were looking for a resource that really works for all of our schools 
and hits on a multitude of issues rather than a different resource for 
every issue…We want to have a resource that covers the breadth of 
everything but also the depth as well, which is why we chose Open 

Parachute…This sort of response and the research behind it is the best 
resource that we can give to students and families.“

"The online format makes it easy for educators to access quickly and 
easily. The video-based content is appealing to both teachers and 

students. The personal stories shared by students are engaging and 
credible. Having the kid’s ages in the videos similar to the students who 

are viewing them allows for students to see themselves and connect 
with the content in a real and meaningful way."



15

Contact 
Information

”Open Parachute was the tool we were looking for to help us 
engage with our students about their thoughts and feelings. 

This peer-based learning approach has improved student 
engagement in discourse focused on the critical 

understanding of issues related to mental health.”

(310) 905-6338

hello@openparachuteschools.com

openparachuteschools.com



  

☒Student Learning and Achievement 
☐Health and Safety of Students and Schools 
☐Credibility and Communication 
☐Fiscal Solvency, Accountability and Integrity 
 

☐Consent  
☒Action/Discussion 
☐Information/Discussion 
☐Public Hearing

______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
SUBJECT: Public Hearing of Resolution No. #1092 Regarding Sufficiency of Instructional Materials  

for Fiscal Year 2022-2023 
 
DATE:  September 1, 2022 
 
PERSON(S) RESPONSIBLE: Buck Roggeman, Director Curriculum and Special Projects  
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
RECOMMENDATION: The District Administration recommends that the Board hold a public hearing 
of the Resolution No. #1092 Regarding Sufficiency of Instructional Materials for fiscal year 2022-2023. 
  
BACKGROUND: State Education Code Section 60119 and Assembly Bill 831, Chapter 118, Statutes of 
2005, which took effect July 26, 2005, requires that the Governing Board hold a public hearing and make 
a determination, through the adoption of a resolution, as to whether each pupil in each school in the 
District has sufficient textbooks or instructional materials, or both, in each subject, that are consistent with 
the content and cycles of the State curriculum frameworks and adoption cycles.  
 
If the Governing Board determines that there are insufficient textbooks or instructional materials, or both, 
the Governing Board shall provide information to classroom teachers and to the public setting forth, for 
each school in which there is insufficiency, the percentage of pupils who lack sufficient standards-aligned 
textbooks or instructional materials in each subject area and the reasons that each pupil does not have 
sufficient textbooks or instructional materials.   
 
The Board is required to comply with this requirement, the Instructional Materials Funding Realignment 
Program (IMFRP) even though it is not directly funded by the State of California.  
 
INFORMATION: 
The District is continually in the process of updating its textbooks and providing instructional materials to 
meet the requirements of the State curriculum frameworks, content standards, and adoption cycles.  At 
any time, there may be a need for additional revenues to update aging or damaged textbooks and provide 
additional or replacement instructional materials.   
 
In January 2014, the State Board of Education approved programs for adoption in grades TK-8, Algebra 1 
and Integrated Math 1. In November 2015, the state Board of Education approved English Language Arts 
and English Language Development programs for adoption in grades TK-8.  
 
For the 2014-2015 school years, Superkids by Zaner-Blozer for grades TK-2 aligned to the English 
Language Arts California Content Standards. Glencoe Biology, a program aligned to the Next Generation 
Science Standards and the Literacy Standards of the California Content Standards was adopted and 
implemented for 2014-2015. In 2015-2016 The California Edition of Big Ideas Math by Houghton 
Mifflin Harcourt was adopted for grades 6-8 as the core math curriculum. In 2016-2017 the High school 
math department adopted The California Edition of Big Ideas Math as their core math program for 
Integrated Math 1, Integrated Math 2, and Integrated Math 3. Benchmark Advance, an English Language 

PUBLIC HEARING I/ACTION/DISCUSSION A

PGUSD Regular Meeting of September 1, 2022 109



  

Arts and English Language Development program, was adopted for grades 3-5. In 2017-2018 the middle 
school English department adopted StudySync from McGraw Hill, an English Language Arts/English 
Language Development program. My Math by McGraw Hill was adopted for grades TK-5 aligned to the 
Common Core State Standards for Math in 2014-2015. However for the 2019-2020 school years, the 
board adopted a new math program SWUN for grades TK-5th grades replacing My Math. 
 
In September of 2013, the State Board of Education adopted the Next Generation Science Standards. 
State approved NGSS aligned curriculum did not become available until the spring of 2019. In grades 
TK-5, a committee of teachers piloted Stemscopes and chose this curriculum. However the decision to 
adopt and implement this new science program was put on hold due to the COVID pandemic. The district 
purchased Mystery Science, an online curriculum that teachers will continue to use this school year.  The 
middle school adopted Elevate Science by Savvas Publishing for the 2021-2022 school year. Most 
recently, the Board approved the adoption of Studies Weekly Social Studies curriculum in Spring 2022 
for students in grades TK-5.  
 
It is appropriate to find at this time that the District has provided sufficient textbooks and instructional 
materials for all students consistent with the State Curriculum Frameworks and adoption cycles. The total 
cost for textbooks expenditures was $179,170.82. The district does not receive any additional money for 
the purchase of instructional materials.  
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
 
$179,170.82 Instructional Materials General Fund  
 
 
 

PUBLIC HEARING I/ACTION/DISCUSSION A

PGUSD Regular Meeting of September 1, 2022 110



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

PUBLIC HEARING NOTICE 
 
 
The Pacific Grove Unified School District Governing Board will hold a public 
hearing on Thursday, September 1, 2022, pursuant to Education Code Section 
60119 and 60422, which states in part: 
 

1. The Governing Board shall hold a public hearing or hearings at 
which the Governing Board shall encourage participation by 
parents, teachers, members of the community interested in the 
affairs of the school district, and bargaining unit leaders, and 
shall make a determination, through a resolution, as to whether 
each pupil in each school in the district has sufficient textbooks 
or instructional materials, or both, in each subject that are 
consistent with the content and cycles of the curriculum 
framework adopted by the state board. [EC60119(a)(1)] 

 
The hearing will be held during the regular Governing Board meeting, which 
begins at 6:30 p.m. This meeting is being held in person at the District Office, 
435 Hillcrest Avenue, Pacific Grove, or virtually. To join the virtual meeting, 
please visit our website for Zoom link at www.pgusd.org  
 
This notice posted at all school sites in accordance with EC 60119(b) on 
August 16, 2022. 
 
 

 

PACIFIC GROVE UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
435 Hillcrest Avenue     Pacific Grove, CA  93950 

Ralph Gomez Porras 
Superintendent 
(831) 646-6520 
Fax (831) 646-6500 
rporras@pgusd.org 

Song Chin-Bendib 
Assistant Superintendent 
Business Services 
(831) 646-6509 
schinbendib@pgusd.org www.pgusd.org 

PUBLIC HEARING I/ACTION/DISCUSSION A

PGUSD Regular Meeting of September 1, 2022 111

http://www.pgusd.org/


 

 

PACIFIC GROVE UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 

Resolution No. 1092 
REGARDING SUFFICIENCY OF INSTRUCTIONAL MATERIALS FOR  

FISCAL YEAR 2022-23 
 

WHEREAS, on    September 1, 2022    the Board of Pacific Grove Unified School District in order 
to comply with the requirements of Education Code Section 60119 held a public hearing at 
   6:30   p.m. which did not take place during or immediately following school hours, and: 
 
WHEREAS, the Governing Board provided at least 10 days notice of the public hearing posted in 
at least three public places within the district that stated the time, place, and purpose of the hearing, 
and: 
 
WHEREAS, the Governing Board encouraged participation by parents, teachers, members of the 
community, and bargaining unit leaders in the public hearing, and: 
 
WHEREAS, information provided at the public hearing and to the Governing Board at the public 
meeting detailed the extent to which textbooks and instructional materials were provided to all 
students, including English learners, in the district, and: 
 
WHEREAS, the definition of “sufficient textbooks or instructional materials” means that each pupil 
has a textbook or instructional material, or both, to use in class and to take home to complete 
required homework assignments, and: 
 
WHEREAS, sufficient textbooks and instructional materials were provided to each student 
including English Learners, in mathematics, history-social science, and English/language arts, and 
includes the English language development component of an adopted program consistent with the 
cycles and content of the curriculum frameworks, grades TK-2 adopted SuperKids English 
Language Arts program aligned to California Content Standards for implementation in 2014-2015, 
grades 3-5 adopted Benchmark Advance a Language Arts and English Language Development 
program aligned to California Content Standards for implementation in 2016-2017, grades 6-8 
adopted StudySync a Language Arts and English Language Development program aligned to 
California Content Standards for implementation 2016-2017, grades TK-5 adopted Studies Weekly 
a social studies program aligned to California Content Standards for implementation in 2022-2023, 
and:  
 
WHEREAS, the list of State Approved science textbooks (K-8) was released in January 2019, Next 
Generation Science Standards were approved by the State Board of Education on September 4, 
2013, the district began the selection process during the 2019-2020 and 2020-2021 school years, 
students have sufficient instructional materials for instruction in the content area of science, science 
textbooks for an honors Chemistry was adopted in 2012 and implemented in 2012-2013, science 
textbooks for biology aligned to California Content Standards and Next Generation Science 
Standards was adopted for implementation in 2014-2015, Elevate Science was adopted for grades 
6-8 in 2021-2022, Mystery Science, an online curriculum for grades TK-5, and: 
 
WHEREAS, the list of State Approved math textbooks (K-8) was released in Fall 2013.  At that 
time, the District began the selection process and adopted My Math during the 2014-2015 school 
year in grades TK-5; Big Ideas Math was adopted for grades 6-8 and Carnegie Learning was 
adopted for high school Integrated Math 1, Integrated Math 2, and Integrated Math 3;  grades TK-5 
adopted Swun Math for implementation in 2019-2020, and:  
 

PUBLIC HEARING I/ACTION/DISCUSSION A

PGUSD Regular Meeting of September 1, 2022 112



 

 

WHEREAS, sufficient textbooks or instructional materials were provided to each pupil enrolled in 
foreign language or health classes,  
 
WHEREAS, sufficient laboratory science equipment was provided for science laboratory classes 
offered in grades 9-12.  
 
NOW THEREFORE, the Governing Board declares that for the 2022-2023 school year, the Pacific 
Grove Unified School District provided each pupil with sufficient textbooks and instructional 
materials consistent with the adoption cycles and content of the State curriculum frameworks. 
 
AYES:     NOES:     ABSENT: 
 
 
     _____________________________________________ 
      Ralph Gomez Porras, Superintendent 

PUBLIC HEARING I/ACTION/DISCUSSION A

PGUSD Regular Meeting of September 1, 2022 113



  

☐Student Learning and Achievement 
☒Health and Safety of Students and Schools 
☐Credibility and Communication 
☐Fiscal Solvency, Accountability and Integrity 
 

☐Consent  
☒Action/Discussion 
☐Information/Discussion 
☐Public Hearing 

 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
SUBJECT: District Update on Response to COVID-19 
 
DATE: September 1, 2022 
 
PERSON(S) RESPONSIBLE:  Ralph Gómez Porras, Superintendent 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
The District Administration recommends the Board receive information regarding District response to 
COVID-19, and provide direction to Administration. 
 
INFORMATION: 
 
The District Administration will update the Board, staff and community on current District response and 
protocols to COVID-19.  

 
 
 
 

 

ACTION/DISCUSSION B

PGUSD Regular Meeting of September 1, 2022 114



  

☒Student Learning and Achievement 
☒Health and Safety of Students and Schools 
☒Credibility and Communication 
☐Fiscal Solvency, Accountability and Integrity 
 

☐Consent  
☒Action/Discussion 
☐Information/Discussion 
☐Public Hearing 

 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
SUBJECT: Resolution No. 1093 Commemorating the 75th Anniversary of Monterey Peninsula 

Community College District  
 
DATE:   September 1, 2022 
 
PERSON(S) RESPONSIBLE: Dr. Ralph Gomez Porras, Superintendent 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
The Administration recommends the Board adopt Resolution No. 1093 commemorating the 75th anniversary 
of Monterey Peninsula Community College District.  
 

BACKGROUND AND INFORMATION:  
 
MPC will celebrate its 75th anniversary throughout the 2022-23 Academic Year. The following resolution  
commemorates this important milestone and to increase awareness of MPC’s positive impact on its 
surrounding communities and the wealth of educational, professional, and personal enrichment 
opportunities it has to offer. 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
 
None 

 

ACTION/DISCUSSION C

PGUSD Regular Meeting of September 1, 2022 115



  

Pacific Grove Unified School District 
Board of Education 

 
Resolution Number 1093 Proclaiming 

 

COMMEMORATING THE 75TH 
ANNIVERSARY OF 

MONTEREY PENINSULA COMMUNITY 
COLLEGE DISTRICT 

 
WHEREAS, 75 years ago, in September of 1947, Monterey Peninsula College (MPC) commenced its 
operation on the campus of Monterey High School; and 
 
WHEREAS, by September of 1948, MPC enrolled 280 students and employed 20 faculty members, 
and began holding classes on the Monterey campus at 980 Fremont Street; and 
 
WHEREAS, MPC’s need to accommodate its growing student population became evident by 1957 
when its enrollment approached 1,000 students, which led to the construction of its engineering building 
in 1958, the library in 1960, and the Art and Music Center and swimming pool in 1962; and 
 
WHEREAS, MPC continued its expansion in 1965, when new buildings for business, humanities, life 
sciences, physical education, physical sciences, and social sciences were constructed, as were the Lecture 
Forum, the College Theater, and the Student Center; and 
 
WHEREAS, from 1971 to 1993, in cooperation with the U.S. Army, MPC operated an education center 
at Fort Ord, the former U.S. military base located in Northern Monterey County until its closure in 1994, 
benefiting the communities in the north side of MPC’s service area, including armed forces personnel and 

their families; and 
 
WHEREAS, in 1982-83, MPC and Community Hospital of the Monterey Peninsula entered into a 
partnership from which the Maurine Church Coburn School of Nursing was born, resulting in a 
generation of nurses who have cared for and taken care of countless members of MPC’s surrounding 

communities; and 
 
WHEREAS, MPC continued to strive to meet the educational needs of its surrounding communities 
with the construction of its Library and Technology Center in 2003 and the Child Development Center in 
2007, the development of the Public Safety Training Center in 2009; and the construction of the 
Education Center at Marina in 2010; and 
 
WHEREAS, MPC has hosted notable figures throughout its history, including James Baldwin, Joan 
Baez, William F. Buckley, Supreme Court Justice William O. Douglas, Aldous Huxley, Dr. Martin 
Luther King, Jr., Dr. Margaret Mead, Joyce Carol Oates, Dr. J. Robert Oppenheimer, Rosa Parks, Ronald 
Reagan, Eleanor Roosevelt, Pierre Salinger, Carl Sandburg, and Carlos Santana; and 
 
WHEREAS, since its humble beginnings in 1947, MPC has established itself as essential to the 
educational and cultural development of the Monterey Peninsula and has improved the lives of 
innumerable students, and by extension their families and its communities; and 

ACTION/DISCUSSION C

PGUSD Regular Meeting of September 1, 2022 116



  

WHEREAS, as MPC approaches its 75th year, it now offers exceptional educational opportunities at its 
campus in Monterey, its Education Center at Marina, its Public Safety Training Center in Seaside, its 
partner high schools, and online, as well as comprehensive supportive resources and specialized programs 
dedicated to ensuring its students have the tools they need to succeed; and 
 
WHEREAS, MPC will celebrate its 75th anniversary throughout the 2022-23 Academic Year to 
commemorate this important milestone and to increase awareness of MPC’s positive impact on its 

surrounding communities and the wealth of educational, professional, and personal enrichment 
opportunities it has to offer; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Governing Board of Trustees for Pacific Grove 
Unified School District recognizes and commends Monterey Peninsula College for its steadfast, 75 year-
long commitment to transforming lives through education. 
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Governing Board of Trustees of Pacific Grove Unified School District 
this 1st day of September 2022, by the following vote: 

 
 
    
Cristy Dawson, President  Frank Rivera, Vice President 
 
 
    
John Paff, Board Member  Carolyn Swanson, Board Member 
   
 
_____________________________   
Brian Swanson, Board Member  Ralph Gomez Porras, Superintendent 

ACTION/DISCUSSION C

PGUSD Regular Meeting of September 1, 2022 117



  

☐Student Learning and Achievement 
☐Health and Safety of Students and Schools 
☒Credibility and Communication 
☒Fiscal Solvency, Accountability and Integrity 
 

☐Consent  
☒Action/Discussion 
☐Information/Discussion 
☐Public Hearing 

 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
SUBJECT:  Plan for Arts, Music, and Instructional Materials Discretionary Block Grant 
 
DATE: September 1, 2022 
 
PERSON RESPONSIBLE:  Song Chin-Bendib, Assistant Superintendent for Business Services                                            

 
RECOMMENDATION:  
The Administration recommends that the Board review and approve the attached plan for 
expenditure of funds for the Arts, Music, and Instructional Materials Discretionary Block Grant. 
 
BACKGROUND:  
On June 30, 2022, Governor Newsom signed the 2022-23 State Budget into law. The final 
Budget is comprised of a $242.2 billion in General Fund resources with a $7.8 billion projected 
surplus. Included in the final state Budget are one-time funds such as the Arts, Music, and 
Instructional Materials Discretionary Block Grant. 
 
INFORMATION: 
The state budget allocated $3.6 billion for all local educational agencies (LEAs) based on 2021-
22 P-2 ADA, available for encumbrance through 2025-26 fiscal year. The Department of 
Finance has not released a per ADA number yet, but School Services of California (SSC) 
estimated it to be about $675 per ADA. 
 
The estimated amount for Pacific Grove USD is $1,038,935. The funds are one-time and not 
ongoing. 
 
Allowable uses for this one-time block grant: 

• Any “operational costs”  
• Standards-aligned instructional materials and professional development related to arts, 

music and other subject areas 
• Instructional materials and professional development aligned to best practices for 

improving school climate, digital literacy, physical education, and learning through play 
• Diverse book collections and culturally relevant texts in English, pupils’ home languages, 

or combination of languages 
• Covid-19 pandemic related supplies 

 
Management Team has met to review the attached spending plan and each site administrator has 
met with their teaching staff to come up with requests based on priority. 
 

ACTION/DISCUSSION D

PGUSD Regular Meeting of September 1, 2022 118



  

Governing Board must approve an expenditure plan at a public meeting. If the expenditure plan 
needs to be amended, a revised spending plan can be presented to the Board in the future. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
The estimated revenue of $1,038,935 which CDE has granted a Resource code of 6762 but has 
not released a validation table for processing. 
 
 

ACTION/DISCUSSION D

PGUSD Regular Meeting of September 1, 2022 119



1,038,935$   

District wide and District Office:
1 Scanning/archiving services 60,000$            

2 Emergency supplies/PPE/Food/Water/Radios 120,000$          

3 Time & Attendance module 8,300$              

4 District wide - furniture replacements 40,000$            for 2 years

High School & Community High School:
5 14,000$            

10,000$            

6 a) PG MS - outdoor science camp, annually ~ 155 students 10,000$            

4,513$              
5,000$              

7 RDH:
- storage containers for Cafeterial/Hallway/science 20,000$            
-Light speed Red Cat audio speaker 20,000$            

8 FG:
10,000$            

b) instruments 3,000$              
c) novels and books for classrooms and library 5,000$              
e) books collection focused on cultural diversity and equity 3,000$              

Music:
9 a) Storage containers for music, choir and theater 5,000$              

b) Choir Uniforms- Either 100 blue PGMS polos 5,000$              

25 SEL x $390 = $9,750
b) Soccer goal replacement - PG MS
c) Storage unit 

a) Storage unit - PE & classroom supplies

a) Furniture needed: desks, chairs etc
b) white boards

Middle School:

- social economic disandvantaged students

ONE TIME FUNDS - ARTS, MUSIC, AND INTRUCTIONAL MATERIALS
DISCRETIONARY BLOCK GRANT - BY 2025-26

$5,000 ongoing
$3,000 one time

ACTION/DISCUSSION D

PGUSD Regular Meeting of September 1, 2022 120



c) Macbook with SIbelius (music notation software) 3,500$              
d) PAC updates including a new bluetooth operated 50,000$            
      sound system, lights, and updated stage (curtains and resurfacing.) 
e) Two extra sets of choral risers 4,500$              
f)  Choral performance shell 30,000$            
g) Music library system - 7 shelf 15 units - Wenger Corp 42,423$            
h) one new piano keyboard  Kurzweil K2700 88-key Synthesizer Workstation 3,500$              
i) one Macbook - Digital Compositions and Curriculum Assessment- Instrumental M 5,200$              
j) Scholastic's Rising Voices collections for K-5 7,131$              
k) storage containers for music, choir and theater 10,000$            
l) musical theater - shure MX153C/O microphone 260$                 
m) musical theater - shure PGXD14/85 wireless microphone system 500$                 
n) choir - Audix microboom MB 5055 50" boom microphone system 3,780$              

10 Arts
a) Skutt legend potters wheels - 8 units 16,800$            
b) stainless workbench 1,200$              
c) 9-drawer mobile workbench chest 1,200$              
d) Super series slab roller 1,300$              
e) NS wedgit table 1,500$              

11 PE
Gopher sports PE equipment 4,600$              
New basketball hoops - HS 25,000$            

12 175,000$          3 years

13 costs/ operational costs 175,000$          

Total 905,207$          

STRS and PERS 

Textbooks/Instructional Materials

ACTION/DISCUSSION D

PGUSD Regular Meeting of September 1, 2022 121



  

☐Student Learning and Achievement 
☐Health and Safety of Students and Schools 
☒Credibility and Communication 
☒Fiscal Solvency, Accountability and Integrity 
 

☐Consent  
☒Action/Discussion 
☐Information/Discussion 
☐Public Hearing 

 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
SUBJECT: Contract with Frontline Education for The Implementation of Time & Attendance 

Module 
 
DATE:  September 1, 2022 
 
PERSON(S) RESPONSIBLE: Song Chin-Bendib, Assistant Superintendent for Business 

Services 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
The District Administration recommends the Board review and approve the contract with 
Frontline Education for the implementation of Time & Attendance module. 
 
BACKGROUND:  
Frontline Education “Frontline” is a leading provider of school administrative software for the 
K-12 education community and offers various modules. Three years ago, Frontline acquired 
ESCAPE, a financial system used by the Pacific Grove USD and all the districts within 
Monterey County. The District is currently utilizing Frontline for employee evaluations and 
absences/substitute management. The Time & Attendance module will add another feature for 
employees to use which interfaces with ESCAPE. 
 
INFORMATION: 
Time & Attendance will enable a more efficient way to manage employee time tracking for 
payroll. The integration will improve payroll process and save time with the ability to capture 
employee extra (substitute, extra duty, over time, etc) hours electronically to eliminate error-
prone processes like paper time sheets and duplicate data entry. 
The initial contract for 2022-23 is $6,962.61: 

• $3,972.61 Time & Attendance, unlimited usage for internal employees 
• $2,990 one-time implementation cost 

The contract will commence on September 14, 2022 and ends June 30, 2023. The recurring 
annual cost thereafter will be $5,000, an amount which has been negotiated down. 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
2022-2023 from One-Time Funds: Arts, Music, Instructional Materials Block Grant.  
2023-2024 from General Fund 
 

ACTION/DISCUSSION E

PGUSD Regular Meeting of September 1, 2022 122



 

Frontline Education 1  
 

Form Effective 8/25/2022 

PACIFIC GROVE UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
INDEPENDENT CONSULTANT AGREEMENT 

 

CONSULTANT  Frontline Education 

SITE/DEPARTMENT  District Office  

SUBMITTED BY  Song Chin-Bendib 

FUNDING SOURCE   Arts, Music, Instructional Materials Block Grant One-Time Funds 

AGREEMENT TOTAL AMOUNT   $6,962.61 

 
The District employee providing the attached Independent Consultant Agreement to the person or entity 
who will be providing special services to the District should first do the following:  
 

1. Provide only the Pacific Grove Unified School District’s approved Independent Consultant 
Agreement. The Independent Consultant Agreement should be completed in lieu of signing any 
vendor contract for services.  

2. Review the insurance requirements for the person or entity and revise the insurance provisions of 
the agreement accordingly.  

3. Review the forms under Section 20 and determine which of those documents should be attached 
to the agreement.  

 
This Independent Consultant Agreement for Special Services (“Agreement”) is made between the Pacific 
Grove Unified School District (“District”) and Frontline Education (“Consultant”) (together, “Parties”).  
 
WHEREAS, the District is authorized by Section 53060 of the California Government Code to contract 
with and employ any persons for the furnishing of special services and advice in financial, economic, 
accounting, engineering, legal, transportation, administrative matters or other specialized services, if 
those persons are specially trained and experienced and competent to perform the special services 
required; and  
 
WHEREAS, the District is in need of those services and/or advice; and  
 
WHEREAS, the Consultant is specially trained and experienced and competent to perform the services 
required by the District, and those services are needed on a limited basis;  
NOW, THEREFORE, the Parties agree as follows:  
 
1. Services and/Scope of work. The Consultant shall furnish to the District the following services 

herein by this reference (“Services” or “Work”): Consultant shall serve as a Time & Attendance 
System. Consultant shall use their specialized experience and skills to organize, maintain to serve in 
this capacity.  Services shall include but not be limited to: unlimited time & attendance tracking for 
PGUSD employees. 

 
2. Term. Consultant shall commence providing services under this Agreement on 9/14/2022, and will 

diligently perform as required and complete performance by 6/30/2023. 
 
3. Compensation. District agrees to pay $6,962.61 to Consultant for Services satisfactorily rendered 

pursuant to this Agreement. This is not to exceed $6,962.61 during the term of this Agreement. 
District shall pay Consultant according to the following terms and conditions:  

 
3.1. Payment for the Services shall be made for all undisputed amounts in installment payments 

within thirty (30) days after the Consultant submits an invoice to the District for Services actually 
completed. 

ACTION/DISCUSSION E

PGUSD Regular Meeting of September 1, 2022 123



 

Frontline Education 2  
 

Form Effective 8/25/2022 

4. Expenses. District shall not be liable to Consultant for any costs or expenses paid or incurred by 
Consultant in performing Services for District.  

 
5. Independent Consultant. Consultant, in the performance of this Agreement, shall be and act as an 

Independent Consultant. Consultant understands and agrees that he/she shall not be considered an 
officer, employee, agent, partner, or joint venture of the District, and is not entitled to benefits of any 
kind or nature normally provided employees of the District and/or to which District's employees are 
normally entitled, including, but not limited to, State Unemployment Compensation or Worker's 
Compensation. Consultant shall assume full responsibility for payment of all federal, state and local 
taxes or contributions, including unemployment insurance, Social Security and income taxes with 
respect to Consultant. In the performance of the Services herein contemplated, Consultant is an 
independent Consultant or business entity, with the sole authority for controlling and directing the 
performance of the details of the Services, District being interested only in the results obtained.  

 
6. Performance of Services.  

6.1. Standard of Care. Consultant represents that Consultant has the qualifications and ability to 
perform the Services in a professional manner, without the advice, control or supervision of the 
District. Consultant's Services will be performed, findings obtained, reports and 
recommendations prepared in accordance with generally and currently accepted principles and 
practices of his/her profession for services to California school districts.  
 

6.2. District Approval. The Services completed herein must meet the approval of the District and 
shall be subject to the District’s general right of inspection and supervision to secure the 
satisfactory completion thereof. 

 
6.3. Licenses. Consultant’s represents that s/he possesses all required licenses to perform the 

Services provided in this Agreement.  
 
7. Termination.  

7.1. Without Cause by District. District may, at any time, with or without reason, terminate this 
Agreement and compensate Consultant only for services satisfactorily rendered to the date of 
termination. Written notice by District shall be sufficient to stop further performance of services 
by Consultant. Notice shall be deemed given when received by the Consultant or no later than 
three days after the day of mailing, whichever is sooner.  

 
7.2. Without Cause by Consultant. Consultant may, upon thirty (30) days’ notice, with or without 

reason, terminate this Agreement. Upon this termination, District shall only be obligated to 
compensate Consultant for services satisfactorily rendered to the date of termination. Written 
notice by Consultant shall be sufficient to stop further performance of services to District. 
Consultant acknowledges that this thirty (30) day notice period is acceptable so that the District 
can attempt to procure the Services from another source.  

 
7.3. With Cause by District. District may terminate this Agreement upon giving of written notice of 

intention to terminate for cause. Cause shall include:  
7.3.1. Material violation of this Agreement by the Consultant; or  
7.3.2. Any act by Consultant exposing the District to liability to others for personal injury or 

property damage.  
Written notice by District shall contain the reasons for such intention to terminate and unless within 
three (3) calendar days after that notice the condition or violation shall cease, or satisfactory 
arrangements for the correction thereof be made, this Agreement shall upon the expiration of the 
three (3) calendar days cease and terminate. In the event of this termination, the District may secure 
the required services from another Consultant. If the expense, fees, and/or costs to the District 
exceeds the cost of providing the services pursuant to this Agreement, the Consultant shall 
immediately pay the excess expense, fees, and/or costs to the District upon the receipt of the 
District’s notice of these expense, fees, and/or costs. The foregoing provisions are in addition to and 
not a limitation of any other rights or remedies available to District.  

ACTION/DISCUSSION E

PGUSD Regular Meeting of September 1, 2022 124



 

Frontline Education 3  
 

Form Effective 8/25/2022 

 
8. Compliance. Consultant shall, at all times while providing the Services, comply with all federal, state, 

local and District laws, statutes, codes, ordinances, rules, regulations, policies, and requirements, as 
well as all state executive orders and all public health orders regarding student health and safety, 
including but not limited to, policies and procedures related to social distancing, the use of personal 
protective equipment (“PPE”) such as face coverings and gloves, and the sanitization of facilities to 
help prevent the spread of COVID-19 and other contagious diseases. 
 

9. District’s Evaluation of Consultant. The District may evaluate the Consultant’s performance. In no 
event shall an evaluation of Consultant be considered a prerequisite to the District exercising its rights 
under paragraph 7 above.  

 
10. Limitation of District Liability. Other than as provided in this Agreement, District’s financial 

obligations under this Agreement shall be limited to the payment of the compensation provided in this 
Agreement. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, in no event shall District be liable 
to Consultant, regardless of whether any claim is based on contract or tort, for any special, 
consequential, indirect or incidental damages, including, but not limited to, lost profits or revenue, 
arising out of or in connection with this Agreement for the services performed in connection with this 
Agreement.  

 
11. Indemnity.  Consultant shall defend, indemnify, and hold harmless District and its agents, 

representatives, officers, consultants, employees, Board of Trustees, members of the Board of 
Trustees (collectively, the “District Parties”), from and against any and all claims, demands, liabilities, 
damages, losses, suits and actions, and expenses (including, but not limited to attorney fees and 
costs including fees of consultants) of any kind, nature and description (collectively, the “Claims”) 
directly or indirectly arising out of, connected with, or resulting from any act, error, omission, 
negligence, or willful misconduct of Consultant, its agents, subcontractors, employees, material or 
equipment suppliers, invitees, or licensees (collectively, the “Consultant Parties”) in the performance 
of or failure to perform Consultant’s or Consultant Parties’ obligations under this Agreement, 
including, but not limited to Consultant’s or Consultant Parties’ use of District sites, performance of 
the Services, breach of any of the representations or warranties contained in this Agreement, or for 
injury to or death of persons or damage to property or delay or damage to the District or the District 
Parties.  Such obligation shall not be construed to negate, abridge, or reduce other rights or 
obligations of indemnity, which would otherwise exist as to a party, person, or entity described in this 
paragraph. The indemnification provided for in this Section includes, without limitation to the 
foregoing, claims that may be made against District by any taxing authority asserting that an 
employer-employee relationship exists by reason of this Agreement, and any claims made against 
District alleging civil rights violations by Consultant or Consultant Parties under the California Fair 
Employment and Housing Act (“FEHA”). 

 
12. Confidentiality. The Consultant and all Consultant’s agents, personnel, employee(s), and/or Sub-

consultant(s) shall maintain the confidentiality of all information received in the course of performing 
the Services. This requirement to maintain confidentiality shall extend beyond the termination of this 
Agreement. 

  
13. Notice. Any notice required or permitted to be given under this Agreement shall be deemed to have 

been given, served, and received if given in writing and either personally delivered or deposited in the 
United States mail, registered or certified mail, postage prepaid, return receipt required, or sent by 
overnight delivery service, or facsimile transmission, addressed as follows:  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

ACTION/DISCUSSION E

PGUSD Regular Meeting of September 1, 2022 125



 

Frontline Education 4  
 

Form Effective 8/25/2022 

District         Consultant  
 

Pacific Grove Unified School District   Name: Frontline Education   

435 Hillcrest Avenue     Address: 1400 Atwater Drive 

Pacific Grove, CA 93950     City/State/Zip: Malvern, PA 19355 

ATTENTION: Song Chin-Bendib,    Business Phone: (610) 722-9745   

Assistant Superintendent/CBO    Email (Optional): [Company E-mail] 
 

Any notice personally given or sent by facsimile transmission shall be effective upon receipt. Any 
notice sent by overnight delivery service shall be effective the business day next following delivery 
thereof to the overnight delivery service. Any notice given by mail shall be effective three (3) days 
after deposit in the United States mail.  
 

14. Integration/Entire Agreement of Parties. This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between 
the Parties and supersedes all prior discussions, negotiations, and agreements, whether oral or 
written. This Agreement may be amended or modified only by a written instrument executed by both 
Parties.  
 

15. California Law. This Agreement shall be governed by and the rights, duties and obligations of the 
Parties shall be determined and enforced in accordance with the laws of the State of California. The 
Parties further agree that any action or proceeding brought to enforce the terms and conditions of this 
Agreement shall be maintained in Monterey County, California.  

 
16. Waiver. The waiver by either party of any breach of any term, covenant, or condition herein contained 

shall not be deemed to be a waiver of such term, covenant, condition, or any subsequent breach of 
the same or any other term, covenant, or condition herein contained. 

  
17. Severability. If any term, condition or provision of this Agreement is held by a court of competent 

jurisdiction to be invalid, void or unenforceable, the remaining provisions will nevertheless continue in 
full force and effect, and shall not be affected, impaired or invalidated in any way.  

 
18. Attorney Fees/Costs. Should litigation be necessary to enforce any terms or provisions of this 

Agreement, then each party shall bear its own litigation and collection expenses, witness fees, court 
costs and attorney’s fees. 

  
19. Counterparts. This Agreement and all amendments and supplements to it may be executed in 

counterparts, and all counterparts together shall be construed as one document. 
  
20. Incorporation of Recitals and Exhibits. The Recitals and each exhibit attached hereto are hereby 

incorporated herein by reference. 
  
21. Non-Assignability. Consultant may not, without the written permission of the District, use other 

consultants within Consultant’s own firm, or outside experts to perform the services for the District.  
 
22. Fingerprinting. When the Consultant is working directly with students, the Consultant shall not 

commence Services under this Agreement until the Consultant has submitted and the District has 
approved the following document:  

 
☐DOJ Clearance Previously Received  
☐Fingerprinting/Criminal Background Check-Consultant himself/herself 
☒Fingerprinting done by the organization independently (declare under perjury)-   
Consultant’s Employee(s) 
 

ACTION/DISCUSSION E

PGUSD Regular Meeting of September 1, 2022 126



 

Frontline Education 5  
 

Form Effective 8/25/2022 

 
23. W-9. Consultant has provided a completed:  

☒W-9 Form  
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have executed this Agreement on the date indicated 
below.  
 
Pacific Grove Unified School District     Consultant  
Site representative or Assistant Superintendent   (Can sign BEFORE Board’s approval) 
(Signed AFTER Board approval) 
 

Signature: ____________________________   Signature: _______________________  

Name: Song Chin-Bendib             Name: __________________________ 

Title: Assistant Superintendent____________   Date: ___________________________ 

Date: ________________________________ 

 
Human Resources 
(Signed AFTER Board approval) 
 
☐Contracted work was not assigned using District’s normal employment recruitment process.   
Signature          Date     
 Director of Human Resources 
 
Type of Business Entity:  

 ☐Corporation, State  
 ☐Individual  
 ☐Partnership  
 ☒Limited Liability Company  
 ☐Sole Proprietorship  
 ☐Limited Partnership  
 ☐Other: ______________________________  

 
*Federal Code of Regulations sections 6041 and 6209 require non-corporate recipients of $600.00 or 
more to furnish their taxpayer identification number to the payer. The regulations also provide that a 
penalty may be imposed for failure to furnish the taxpayer identification number. In order to comply with 
these regulations, the District requires your federal tax identification number or Social Security number, 
whichever is applicable. 

ACTION/DISCUSSION E

PGUSD Regular Meeting of September 1, 2022 127



  

☐Student Learning and Achievement 
☒Health and Safety of Students and Schools 
☐Credibility and Communication 
☐Fiscal Solvency, Accountability and Integrity 
 

☐Consent  
☒Action/Discussion 
☐Information/Discussion 
☐Public Hearing 

 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
SUBJECT:  Agreement with Monterey County Office of Education Transportation Department  
 
DATE:   September 1, 2022 
 
PERSON(S) RESPONSIBLE: Lito Garcia, Pacific Grove High School Principal 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
The District Administration recommends the Board review and ratify the agreement with Monterey 
County Office of Education (MCOE) Transportation Department and Pacific Grove High School (PGHS). 
  
BACKGROUND:  
Due to the various PGHS pool issues making it inoperable and unavailable for the PGHS Water Polo 
teams to practice, California State University Monterey Bay (CSUMB) Aquatics Center pool has been a 
viable option for the teams’ practices, making student transportation necessary. 
 
INFORMATION: 
MCOE Transportation Department has been able to provide transportation for the PGHS Water Polo 
teams to and from the CSUMB Aquatics Center in Marina, CA. The agreement term of four (4) days was 
from August 16, 2022 thru August 19, 2022 but may be extended through September 15, 2022 pending 
the availability of PGUSD transportation department. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
$1,940.00 to be paid by Site Transportation Funds for 4 days (August 16, 2022 thru August 19, 2022). 
Future transportation costs dependent on the availability of PGUSD transportation department.  
 
 

ACTION/DISCUSSION F

PGUSD Regular Meeting of September 1, 2022 128



Agreement Between  
Pacific Grove Unified School District  

and  
Monterey County Office of Education Transportation Department 

 
 

A. PURPOSE  
The purpose of this agreement is to establish and document a relationship between Pacific 
Grove Unified School District (PGUSD) and the Monterey County Office of Education (MCOE) 
Transportation Department, hereinafter collectively referred to as the "Parties," for the purpose 
of creating an agreement to transport the Pacific Grove High School Water Polo teams to 
California State University Monterey Bay (CSUMB) Aquatics Center.  
 
B. PREMISES  
For the purposes of this Agreement, the premises are identified as Pacific Grove High School 
615 Sunset Drive Pacific Grove, California and CSUMB Aquatic Center 4113 2nd Ave Seaside, 
California. 
 
C. TERM  
The agreement term of four (4) days shall be from August 16, 2022 and commence August 19, 
2022. The term of this agreement may be extended through September 15, 2022 pending the 
availability of the PGUSD transportation department. 
 
D. PAYMENT  
Pacific Grove Unified School District agrees to pay Monterey County Office of Education a daily 
rate of $485.00.  
 
E. SCOPE OF SERVICES/AGREEMENT 
MCOE Transportation department agrees to pick up the Pacific Grove High School Water Polo 
teams at Pacific Grove High School at 3:30 p.m. and transport them to the CSUMB Aquatics 
Center during the term of the agreement.   
 
G. TERMINATION  
Pacific Grove Unified School District shall, at its sole discretion, have the right to terminate this 
agreement. 
 
H. AUTHORIZED REPRESENATIVES  
Correspondence and communication regarding this agreement shall be conducted only through 
authorized representatives of Pacific Grove Unified School District and MCOE Transportation 
department and shall not be delegated to persons who are not employees of PGUSD or MCOE.  
 
I. INDEMNIFICATION  
PGUSD shall indemnify, hold harmless and defend MCOE Transportation department, and its 
trustees, officers, employees, and agents from and against every claim, demand and/or liability 
which may be made by reason of the negligent acts or omission(s) of the Pacific Grove Unified 
School District in its performance of this agreement. MCOE shall indemnify, hold harmless and 
defend PGUSD and its trustees, officers, employees, and agents from and against every claim, 
demand and/or liability which may be made by reason of the negligent acts or omission(s) of 

ACTION/DISCUSSION F

PGUSD Regular Meeting of September 1, 2022 129



Monterey County Office of Education, and/or its employees or agents in their performance of 
this agreement.  
 
J. INSURANCE  
Pacific Grove Unified School District shall at its sole cost and expense, procure and maintain 
throughout the term of this agreement policies of general liability insurance and property and 
casualty insurance during the performance of the agreement.  

1. Comprehensive General Liability insurance with limits not less than $1,000,000 each 
occurrence.  
2. Comprehensive Automobile Liability with limits not less than $1,000,000 each 
occurrence, including coverage for owned, non-owned and hired vehicles.  

 
Agreement to the above conditions and acceptance of this agreement is confirmed by the 
execution of document by the authorized representatives below. 
 
 
Authorized Representative, PGUSD      Date 
 
 
Authorized Representative, MCOE      Date 

ACTION/DISCUSSION F

PGUSD Regular Meeting of September 1, 2022 130



  

☒Student Learning and Achievement 
☒Health and Safety of Students and Schools 
☒Credibility and Communication 
☒Fiscal Solvency, Accountability and Integrity 
 

☐Consent  
☒Action/Discussion 
☐Information/Discussion 
☐Public Hearing 

 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
SUBJECT: Board Calendar/Future Meetings  
 
DATE:  September 1, 2022 
 
PERSON(S) RESPONSIBLE:  Ralph Gómez Porras, Superintendent 
 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
The Administration recommends that the Board review and possibly modify the schedule of meeting 
dates on the attached calendar and determine, given information from the Administration, whether 
additional Board dates or modifications need to be established.  
 
BACKGROUND:  
 
The Board has approved Bylaw 9320, which states that regular Board meetings be held on the first and 
third Thursday of each month, from August through June. At the annual organizational meeting held in 
December, Trustees approve the meeting calendar as presented. The calendar is reviewed at each Board 
meeting.  
 
INFORMATION: 
 
Changes to the Board meeting dates must be approved by a majority vote of the Trustees.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 

ACTION/DISCUSSION G 

PGUSD Regular Meeting of September 1, 2022 131



  

Board Meeting Calendar August-December 2022 
 
 

Aug. 18 Regular Board Meeting District Office 
 Student Enrollment Update 
 Back to School Night Dates 
 Property Tax Report 
 Review of Legal Services Costs 
 Quarterly Facilities Project Updates* 

Sept. 1 Regular Board Meeting  District Office 
 Quarterly District Safety Update* 

Sept. 15 Regular Board Meeting District Office 
 Williams Uniform Complaint Report 
 Unaudited Actual Report 

Oct. 6 Regular Board Meeting District Office 
   Superintendent Goals                                                                    
 Bus Ridership 
 Week of the School Administrator 
 CAASPP/ELPAC Review of Data 

Oct. 20 
 

Regular Board Meeting District Office 
 Quarterly District Safety Update*     
 Budget Revision #1 on 2021-22 working budget (preliminary First Interim)                                              

Nov. 10 Regular Board Meeting  District Office 
 PGHS Course Bulletin Information/Discussion   

Nov. 17 Regular Board Meeting  District Office  
 Intent Form Due (to serve as Board President or Vice President)   
 Review of Special Education Contracts                                           
 Quarterly Facilities Project Updates* 

Dec. 15 
 

Organizational Meeting District Office 
 Election of 2020-21 Board President and Clerk 
 Budget Revision #2 
 First Interim Report 
 PGHS Course Bulletin Action/Discussion 
 Williams Uniform Complaint Report 
 Employee Recognition 
 Review of Legal Services Costs  
 Solicitation of Funds Report 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

ACTION/DISCUSSION G 

PGUSD Regular Meeting of September 1, 2022 132



  

DRAFT Board Meeting Calendar January-June 2023 
Thursday 
Jan. 5 

Regular Board Meeting District Office/Virtual 
   

 
Thursday 
Jan. 19 

Regular Board Meeting District Office/Virtual 
 Report on Governor’s Budget Proposal                                             
 Preliminary Enrollment Projection for 2023-24 
 Property Tax Update 
 School Accountability Report Cards                                                 

Thursday 
Feb. 9 
 

Regular Board Meeting District Office/Virtual 
 Budget Development Calendar 
 Possible Personnel Action Presented as Information 
 Preliminary Review of Site Master Schedules 
 Possible Personnel Action (RIF) 
 2022-23 Audit Report 
 Quarterly Facilities Project Updates* 

Thursday 
Mar. 2 

Regular Board Meeting District Office/Virtual 
 Open House Schedules Reviewed 
 TRAN Resolution  
 Budget Projections and Assumptions 

Thursday 
Mar. 16 

Regular Board Meeting  District Office/Virtual 
 Second Interim Report 
 Budget Revision #3 
 Williams/Valenzuela Uniform Complaint Report 

Thursday 
Apr. 6 

Regular Board Meeting  District Office/Virtual 
 Review of Strategic Plan and LCAP (as needed) 
 Approve 2023-24 Aug.- Dec. Board Meeting Calendar  
 Quarterly District Safety Update 

Thursday 
April 20 

Regular Board Meeting  District Office/Virtual 
 Review of Site Master Schedules 
 Review of Strategic Plan and LCAP (as needed) 
 California Day of the Teacher 
 Week of the CSEA Employee 
 Begin Superintendent Evaluation 

Thursday 
May 4 

Regular Board Meeting  District Office/Virtual 
 Continue Superintendent Evaluation 

Thursday 
May 18 
 

Regular Board Meeting District Office/Virtual 
 Complete Superintendent’s Evaluation 
 Review Governor’s Revised Budget 
 Suspensions/Expulsions Annual Report 
 Retiree Recognition 
 2023-24 Budget Public Hearing 
 LCAP Public Hearing  

Thursday 
June 1 

Regular Board Meeting District Office/Virtual 
 Williams/Valenzuela Uniform Complaint Report 
 2023-24 Budget Public Adoption 
 LCAP and Local Indicators Adoption 
 Approval of Contracts and Purchase Orders for 2023-24 

*Quarterly District Safety Update and Quarterly Facilities Projects Update as needed  

ACTION/DISCUSSION G 

PGUSD Regular Meeting of September 1, 2022 133



  

☐Student Learning and Achievement 
☒Health and Safety of Students and Schools 
☒Credibility and Communication 
☐Fiscal Solvency, Accountability and Integrity 
 

☐Consent  
☐Action/Discussion 
☒Information/Discussion 
☐Public Hearing 

 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
SUBJECT: Safety Update 
 
DATE:   September 01, 2022 
 
PERSON(S) RESPONSIBLE: Barbara Martinez, Safety Director 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
The District Administration recommends the Board be informed and provide feedback on updates related 
to District safety. 
 
INFORMATION: 
 

• District Comprehensive Safe School Plans 
All site safety plans are posted on PGUSD website and individual school websites 
https://www.pgusd.org/Departments/Safety/index.html 

 
• District Professional Development 

Additions to Big Five Protocols 
New staff were provided BIG FIVE safety training on July 29, 2022 
District-staff Keenan Training   
Partner with MPUSD Safety Training 

 
• 2022-2023 Site/Community Safety Community Meetings 

 
• Crossing Guard Update 

Staffing/Locations 
PGUSD Back to School Traffic and Safety Reminders 
PGUSD Back to School Traffic and Safety Reminders.docx 
 

• District wide Safety Needs Assessment  
 
 
  

FISCAL IMPACT: 
 
No fiscal impact to Safety Fund. 
 

INFORMATION/DISCUSSION A 

PGUSD Regular Meeting of September 1, 2022 134

https://www.pgusd.org/Departments/Safety/index.html


  

☒Student Learning and Achievement 
☒Health and Safety of Students and Schools 
☐Credibility and Communication 
☐Fiscal Solvency, Accountability and Integrity 
 

☐Consent  
☐Action/Discussion 
☒Information/Discussion 
☐Public Hearing 

______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
SUBJECT:  Presentation of Pacific Grove Middle School’s Social Emotional Learning Goals/Targets 
 
DATE:  September 1, 2022 
 
PERSON(S) RESPONSIBLE: Sean Roach, Pacific Grove Middle School Principal 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
The District Administration recommends the Board participate in learning about the Social Emotional 
SMARTIE goals that will be utilized as a guide for the use of the Pacific Grove Middle School’s (PGMS) 
CalHope and Chapman Grant money. 
  
BACKGROUND:  
This is an additional layer of Social Emotional goal setting intended for creating, tracking, and gauging 
the effectiveness of the programs and services paid for by the PGMS CalHope and Chapman Grant 
money. 
 
INFORMATION: 
This presentation is a mandated component of CalHope Grant participation. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 

This is of no cost to PGUSD. PGMS received the two grants totaling $90,000 in one-time monies. These 
SMARTIE goals will be used as a guide to help with the decision making and implementation of 
programs and services to support student social emotional health. 

 
 
 
 

INFORMATION/DISCUSSION B

PGUSD Regular Meeting of September 1, 2022 135



PGMS Smartie SEL Goals 

Priority 1 – Schoolwide SEL will Support an Equitable Environment that Empowers 
All Students to Achieve their Potential 

The results of the school climate survey in May (time-bound) will demonstrate a 
15% increase in positive responses (measurable) from students and families, and 
gains will occur among all identified demographic groups (inclusive, equitable). By 
end of year (time-bound), teachers who have received targeted classroom support 
will reduce office disciplinary referrals by 30% compared to last year (specific, 
measurable). Progress monitoring will be utilized to inform efforts in real time and 
allow for adjustments to practice immediately. These surveys will be conducted in 
the first month of the school year and again in the spring. The surveys will include 
the Olweus Bullying Survey, Core SEL Survey and the summative California Healthy 
Kids Survey (measures). 

Priority 2 – Teaching and Practicing SEL Competencies will Foster Empathy, 
Acceptance and Respect 

By the end of school year 2022-23 (time-bound, attainable), all school staff will 
receive training and apply core practices and language from an evidence-based SEL 
program: Character Strong and Open Parachute curricula (specific, measurable), 
which will be selected over the course of the present school year using feedback 
from staff, families and students (inclusive) in pilot classrooms. Feedback will be 
disaggregated by subgroup to ensure that the selected program is a strong fit for 
all students (equitable). These curriculums will be delivered weekly during our 45 
minute Advisory Period.  

Priority 3 – By Integrating SEL into Schoolwide Practices and Instruction We Will 
Teach Skills and Facilitate Opportunities for Students to Contribute to Positive 
Change By the end of school year 2022-23 (time-bound, attainable), student 
representatives from each advisory class will meet bimonthly and provide input and 
focus on SEL and community service (specific, measurable). These student-led 
initiatives will be shared with staff and include input from staff, families, and 
students and will be differentiated by grade level (inclusive, equitable). 

 

What we want to see PGMS become-stakeholder input 
 
 
Question:  are we still looking into that Keenan type training for students about mental 
health risk factors self-care? 
 

INFORMATION/DISCUSSION B

PGUSD Regular Meeting of September 1, 2022 136



Idea:  I would love to see fidgets or sensory tools and some classrooms including 
wiggle seats for our students. 
 
Idea:  Bringing in films like “Angst” and “Like” and watching schoolwide followed by 
discussion 
 
Vision Statement Ideas:  Love to see increased empathy and acceptance as a goal 
 
Question: Is Character Strong the SEL program PGMS is going to use? It appears the 
grant is asking for those details? Is PGMS considering an additional SEL program to 
add in? 
 
Idea: Consider a leadership group made up of a mix of students that focuses primarily 
on events and messages which promote equity, inclusion, diversity, etc. Have several 
staff members also attend this meeting to ensure the group is organizing itself with the 
above examples in mind. 
 
Question: Does PGMS have a way to measure the success of these programs? A 
beginning and end poll for each school  year? 
 
What’s currently happening to works towards improved SEL:   

● Character Strong/ Advisory 
● CHILL Friday games 
● Occasional teachers vs. students games 

 
 
What’s missing: (some due to COVID) 

● Assemblies to help create a united identity of our school 
● Assemblies (even if outside) to watch kids perform in their element (i.e. play, 

chorus, music, in-person talent show)  
● Student-generated “newsletter” to help create that identity 
● Common school-wide practices such as keeping an agenda as a daily practice 

(common practices help reinforce a school-identity) 
● Common language/mantras used by all teachers (i.e. “Here at PGMS, we push 

through, even when things get hard.”)  (We kind of have that with the Growth 
Mindset.) 

● Maybe in the Video Bulletin, there could be a mindful moment (meditate on a 
quote for 1 minute with nice music - maybe as an option to the pledge?)  Entire 
school at Forest Grove currently does Mindfulness, so half of students are 
already used to such a habit. 

● School-buddy or mentorship program for incoming 6th graders?  Maybe paired 
Advisory classes, so once a month, the pairs get together to do an activity 
together or reflect together? 

● Sensitivity training towards non-white people,  students from foreign countries, 
and people with disabilities especially after an incident, rather than 
consequences occuring in isolation with the single student only. 

INFORMATION/DISCUSSION B

PGUSD Regular Meeting of September 1, 2022 137



● Organize a ‘Wellness Fair’ with a variety of local self care, stress management, 
nutrician, mindfulness specialists to share their stuff. 

● Staff connection program. Meaning, when a student is depressed or suffering 
from anxiety that student has staff members who connect with them personally. 
Staff members can use that student as a helper or just have a weekly check-in. 
These personal interactions are so important for a student who doesn’t feel like 
they matter. Students can choose their helpers, staff would agree to make the 
connection. 

● Weekly wellness booth or center? Each week offer a SEL topic, activity, and/or 
information about something SEL related. Have something special offered, 
food, music?, so that it attracts students. 

● Quarterly public speakers on SEL topics. Have students write something on 
this topic in one of their classes to connect the two and have reflection time.  

● Video bulletin, have different students from different backgrounds volunteer to 
talk about themselves in a short video, where they are from, who they are, their 
culture, etc. what it’s like to be them in the world. Could be called a ‘PGMS 
Student Highlight’ video.  

● Would it be possible to open the gym in the morning for an optional quiet 
reflection time, calming music, meditation video? The library is this place for 
many but perhaps it would be cool to have a quiet place in the school that is 
easily accessible for students and has an adult present. Students can choose 
to read, be still, listen to the mindful moment…? 

● Ask leadership to take a deeper look at their activities and create programs or 
activities that focus on inclusion 

● Mentorship program/ Upstander program, something that involves students 
learning about micro-aggression and what to do if they are observers of this 
behavior 

● Can we ask teachers to volunteer an additional SEL lesson per week, could be 
integrated into what they are already teaching, and use these teachers' classes 
as a way to assess our SEL program?  

 
 
 
 
 
 

 

INFORMATION/DISCUSSION B

PGUSD Regular Meeting of September 1, 2022 138



  

☐Student Learning and Achievement 
☒Health and Safety of Students and Schools 
☐Credibility and Communication 
☒Fiscal Solvency, Accountability, and Integrity 
 

☐Consent  
☐Action/Discussion 
☒Information/Discussion 
☐Public Hearing 

 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
SUBJECT:   Pacific Grove High School Pool Modifications, Maintenance & Spares  
 
DATE:   September 1, 2022 
 
PERSON(S) RESPONSIBLE: Jon Anderson, Director of Facilities and Transportation 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
The District Administration recommends the Board review the Pacific Grove High School (PGHS) pool 
presentation and discuss options for consideration.  
  
BACKGROUND:  
 
The PGHS pool has had an unfortunate series of closures in recent years. This presentation will go over a 
plan to proactively avoiding lengthy closures through system modification, scheduled maintenance, and 
an inventory of essential spare parts.   
 
INFORMATION: 
 
A considerable amount of funding will be needed to support and implement this plan.   
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
 
TBD. 
 
 

 

INFORMATION/DISCUSSION C

PGUSD Regular Meeting of September 1, 2022 139



  

☒Student Learning and Achievement 
☐Health and Safety of Students and Schools 
☐Credibility and Communication 
☐Fiscal Solvency, Accountability and Integrity 
 

☐Consent  
☐Action/Discussion 
☒Information/Discussion 
☐Public Hearing 

______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
SUBJECT: Summer School Review 2022 
 
DATE:   September 1, 2022 
 
PERSON(S) RESPONSIBLE: Buck Roggeman, Director Curriculum and Special Projects 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
The District Administration recommends the Board receive the review about Summer School 2022. 
  
BACKGROUND:  
 
Pacific Grove Unified School District has historically offered a summer school program for students. The 
program serves three groups of students. Secondary students who enroll in credit recovery courses to 
make up for non-passing grades, elementary general education students who benefit from continued 
instruction during the summer, and special education students throughout the district who participate in 
the PGUSD’s extended school year program. In 2021, the elementary summer school classes became an 
extension of the reading intervention program in place at both elementary schools to help mitigate 
learning gaps resulting from the pandemic. 
 
INFORMATION: 
 
In 2022, PGUSD’s summer school program continued the model established last summer with three 
distinct programs in operation. The elementary general education program focused on reading 
intervention; the secondary credit recovery program allowed students to make up classes they failed 
during the school year, and PGUSD offered its extended school year (ESY) to special education students 
who have ESY as part of their individualized education program. 
Elementary Summary - The purpose of the reading intervention program was twofold: prevent 
backsliding during summer and help students show growth when they reported to school in the fall. The 
attached document contains enrollment numbers and the most current data we have for growth. 
Secondary Credit Recovery Summary - The secondary credit recovery program had a goal of 
improving both the percentage of students passing one course and the percentage of students passing two 
courses compared to the 2021 results. The program showed magnificent growth in these areas as shown in 
the attached document. 
Special Education Extended School Year Summary – PGUSD provides an extended school year for 
students with mild to moderate and moderate to severe disabilities. This year’s program served 47 
students in preschool through the transition program. 
 
Credit and commendation needs to be given to our dedicated summer school certificated and classified 
staff who served our student population. In addition, outstanding leadership was shown by Secondary 
Principal Doctor Larry Haggquist and Elementary/ESY Principal Clare Davies. 
 

INFORMATION/DISCUSSION D

PGUSD Regular Meeting of September 1, 2022 140



  

FISCAL IMPACT: 
No fiscal impact. Program operated within the approved budget. 
 
 
 

INFORMATION/DISCUSSION D

PGUSD Regular Meeting of September 1, 2022 141



Elementary Summer School Enrollment & Growth (# of students)

Grade Enrollment Growth Neutral Decline
Moved/No Fall 

MAP Data
K 13 4 3 5 3
1 4 2 0 2 0
2 7 2 0 4 1
3 4 3 1 0 0
4 7 4 1 2 0
5 3 - - - 3

Total 38 15 5 13 7

Middle School Credit Recovery Enrollment & Completions

Grade Enrollment
0 Classes 
Completed

1 Class 
Completed

2 Classes 
Completed

7 5 0 3 2
8 5 0 4 1
9 5 0 3 2

Total 15 0 10 5

High School Credit Recovery & Completions

Grade Enrollment
0 Classes 
Completed

1 Class 
Completed

2 Classes 
Completed

10 6 6 0
11 23 6 10 7
12 11 5 3 3

Total 40 11 19 10

Overall Secondary Year-to-Year Outcomes Comparison

Summer 
School Year Total Enrolled

Single Course 
Completions

% Single 
Course 
Completions

Two Course 
Completions

2021 49 21 42.90% 2
2022 55 44 80% 17

Extended School Year Enrollment
Program Enrollment
Preschool 7
Elementary Moderate/ Severe 7
Elementary Mild/Moderate 17
Middle School High School 
Moderate/ Severe 9
Transition 7
Total 47

INFORMATION/DISCUSSION D

PGUSD Regular Meeting of September 1, 2022 142



  

☒Student Learning and Achievement 
☒Health and Safety of Students and Schools 
☒Credibility and Communication 
☒Fiscal Solvency, Accountability and Integrity 
 

☐Consent  
☐Action/Discussion 
☒Information/Discussion 
☐Public Hearing 

 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
SUBJECT:  Future Agenda Items 
 
DATE:  September 1, 2022 
 
PERSON(S) RESPONSIBLE:  Ralph Gómez Porras, Superintendent 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
The Administration recommends that the Board review the list of future agenda items and direct 
Administration to add items to the list and/or schedule items for a particular agenda. 
 
BACKGROUND:  
Board Bylaw 9322 states in part that “Any member of the public or any Board member may request that a 
matter within the jurisdiction of the Board be placed on the agenda of a regular meeting.  The request 
[from a member of the public] must be …. submitted to the Superintendent or designee with supporting 
documents and information …” 
 
INFORMATION: 
Board members have the opportunity at the end of Open Session in a Regular Board meeting to request 
that items be added to the list for a future meeting.  Depending upon the timeliness of the item, it may 
also be assigned a particular meeting date. 
 
The following is a list of future agenda items as of the September 1, 2022 Regular Board Meeting: 
 

• Added March 3, 2022: A Board member requested a special meeting to discuss Cultural 
Proficiency professional development (Fall 2022) 

• Added March 3, 2022: Discuss elementary school reconfiguration as it relates to issues of equity 
(Early Fall 2022) 

• Added March 17, 2022: Board Self Evaluation (June 16, 2022) 
• Added April 21, 2022: Discuss “PG Promise” of funding CTE certification process (Fall 2022) 
• Added May 19, 2022: Teacher of the Year Recognition (Fall 2022) 
• Added June 2, 2022: Discuss CSBA Sample School Safety Resolution 
• Added June 2, 2022: A Board member requested bringing in someone to do a presentation 

regarding low-income housing in Pacific Grove.  
• Added June 16, 2022: Discuss proposal of skatepark in Pacific Grove 

 

INFORMATION/DISCUSSION E

PGUSD Regular Meeting of September 1, 2022 143


	AGENDA
	CONSENT
	Minutes of August 18, 2022 Board Meeting
	Minutes of August 23, 2022 Special Board Meeting
	Certificated Assignment Order #2
	Classified Assignment Order #2
	Acceptance of Donations
	Out of County or Overnight Activities
	Acceptance of Quarterly Treasurer’s Report
	Cash Receipts Report No.#2
	Otto Construction Wood Rot Repair at Monterey Bay Charter School
	Contract for Services with Pacific West Water Purification, Inc.
	Contract for Services with MayLee Sunseri at Pacific Grove Adult School
	Pacific Grove High School Equipment and Furniture Disposal
	Consolidated Application for Federal Funding, Part 1
	Contract Services with Open Parachute Social Emotional Curriculum

	PUBLIC HEARING I/ACTION/DISCUSSION A
	Public Hearing of Resolution No. 1092 Regarding Sufficiency of Instructional Materials for Fiscal Year 2022-23  	

	ACTION/DISCUSSION
	District Update on Response to COVID-19
	Resolution No. 1093 Commemorating the 75th Anniversary of Monterey Peninsula Community College District
	Plan for Arts, Music, and Instructional Materials Discretionary Block Gran
	Contract with Frontline Education for The Implementation of Time & Attendance Module
	Agreement with Monterey County Office of Education Transportation Department
	Board Calendar/Future Meetings

	INFORMATION/DISCUSSION
	Safety Update
	Presentation of Pacific Grove Middle School’s Social Emotional Learning Goals/Targets
	Pacific Grove High School Pool Modifications, maintenance and Spares
	Summer School Review 2022
	Future Agenda Items

	Arts Music IM block grant plan SUPP DOC 2212124.pdf
	Board item

	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	090122 Board Agenda REVISED no header.pdf
	DATE:  September 1, 2022
	LOCATION: IN PERSON
	Pacific Grove Unified School District Office
	435 Hillcrest Avenue
	Pacific Grove, CA 93950
	Mission Statement
	AGENDA AND ORDER OF BUSINESS

	090122 Board Agenda REVISED.pdf
	DATE:  September 1, 2022
	LOCATION: IN PERSON
	Pacific Grove Unified School District Office
	435 Hillcrest Avenue
	Pacific Grove, CA 93950
	Mission Statement
	AGENDA AND ORDER OF BUSINESS

	090122 Board Agenda REVISED.pdf
	DATE:  September 1, 2022
	LOCATION: IN PERSON
	Pacific Grove Unified School District Office
	435 Hillcrest Avenue
	Pacific Grove, CA 93950
	Mission Statement
	AGENDA AND ORDER OF BUSINESS




